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The consolidated financial statements of the University and its subsidiaries are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In order to assist

the readers in the understanding of the financial information, management notes (e.g. @ ) have been added where
considered appropriate to elaborate on the special terms used and how they are applied in the University's operation.
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REPORT OF THE TREASURER
S EHRS

It is my pleasure to submit the financial report of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University for the year ended 30 June 2019.

OVERVIEW

The 2018/19 financial year marked the end of the University Grants Committee (“UGC”) funding triennium 2016-19. The key strategies
set out in the Academic Development Proposal for the triennium were to recruit high quality staff, refine the undergraduate curriculum,
increase investment in research infrastructure, scale up knowledge transfer, enhance internationalisation, engage the nation, and
restructure our portfolio with regard to the provision of academic programmes. These strategic goals were achieved during the triennium
and have laid a solid foundation for the new funding triennium commencing from 2019/20.

Through rigorous financial planning, prudent management and proper control of the University’s budget based on value analysis,
the University and the Consolidated Entity recorded a healthy surplus of $356.0 million (2017/18: $256.7 million) and $414.2
million (2017/18: $322.9 million), respectively. Net assets of the University and the Consolidated Entity grew 6% to $6,338.7 million
(2017/18: $5,976.7 million) and $7,247.6 million (2017/18: $6,828.0 million), respectively. The University has successfully adopted
and implemented the UGC Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities during the 2018/19 year as
planned. The implementation of the guidelines has caused minimal impact on the allocation of costs among various UGC-funded and
non-UGC-funded activities as compared with last year.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

Income for the University in 2018/19 rose by $160.6 million to $6,426.5 million (2017/18: $6,265.9 million). The gain was due to the
increase in government subventions, consisting of mainly an additional supplementary grant related to the civil service pay adjustment
that took effect in April 2018.

The expenditure of the University remained relatively stable at $6,070.5 million (2017/18: $6,009.2 million). Staff costs and benefits
represented about 63% of the University’s total expenditure, representing an increase of $96.3 million as compared with 2017/18. The
increase was mainly due to the salary adjustments that reflected the civil service pay adjustment, prevailing market trends and staff
performance reviews. The University has also spent additional resources in recent years to modernise the campus through enhancement
works that support the evolving needs of teaching, learning and research. With the completion of these projects during the 2018/19
year, the spending on campus infrastructure and related items was decreased by $121.3 million as compared to that of 2017/18.

The total income of subsidiaries amounted to $1,577.0 million (2017/18: $1,595.6 million), and total expenditure was $1,522.1 million
(2017/18: $1,530.9 million), resulting in a surplus of $54.9 million for the year (2017/18: $64.7 million).

Total operating income for the year decreased slightly as compared with last year, which was mainly attributable to the reduction
of service income of the PolyU Technology and Consultancy Co. Limited due to the adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 15. On the other hand, total operating expenditure, excluding the contribution of $100 million (2017/18: $110 million) from
subsidiaries to the University, remained stable at $1,422.17 million (2017/18: $1,420.9 million).

Analyses of the University and Consolidated Income and Expenditure are provided in Figures 1-4.
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Income Analysis IR A D

Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions
Other Income

Total Income
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Consolidated {575

BAEIFEIRE 2018/19

University K&

2019
HK$'m
3,856
2,367

303
135
879

7,540

Figure 1: 2018/19 Consolidated Income Analysis
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Figure 2: 2018/19 University Income Analysis
B—:2018/19 FEXRBIRASH

. Government Subventions

BURSIER

. Tuition and Other Fees
BEREMKE

. Interest and Investment Gain

FBFRE R

@ Donations and Benefactions

BIERIBR

Other Income
HARKA

51.1%

31.4%

4.0%

1.8%

11.7%

. Government Subventions

BUSER

. Tuition and Other Fees
SEREMKE

. Interest and Investment Gain

FBFIRE WS

@ nDonations and Benefactions
IBEE R IBFR

Other Income
HArA

59.7%

24.3%

4.4%

3.6%

8.0%

3



4 PolyU Financial Report 2018/19

Expenditure Analysis X 21 Consolidated $2& University A&

2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'m %o HK$'m % HK$'m % HK$'m %

Teaching, Learning and Research ~ #22 « 2B R AU

Teaching and Research HBRNT 4,009 3,901 3,686 3,599
Library BEE 182 181 158 157
Central Computing Facilities P REAGFLIE 230 226 192 186
Other Academic Services H B RS 415 388 362 338
4,836 679 4,696  66.8 4,398 725 4,280 712
Management and General [SESEIES 426 6.0 398 5.7 347 5.7 327 5.5
Premises and Related Expenses ESy=E=lzal 1,130 159 1,243 177 994  16.4 1,118 186
Student and General Educational ~ 2% R—RHE
Services AR5 366 5. 342 49 293 49 277 46
Other Activities Hitt)E#) 338 47 354 5.0 14 02 7 01
Finance Costs R ER 2 00 6 01 2 00 6 01
Income Tax PSR 2 0.0 3 0.0 2 0.0 3 0.0
Remeasurement and Exchange BHER
Differences R 26 04 13) 0.2 20 03 9@ o
Total Expenditure RREs2 7126 100 7029 100 6,070 100 _ 6,009 100
Figure 3:2018/19 Consolidated Expenditure Analysis Figure 4:2018/19 University Expenditure Analysis
Bl=:2018/19 FEHFSHX DI B : 2018/19 FEXREHZ DM

Total
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7,126

(HK$'m)

@ Teaching, Learning and Research 67.9% @ Teaching, Learning and Research 72.5%
#2  BBRIH #2 BRI

@ Vanagementand General 6.0% @ Vanagementand General 5.7%
EER—RIER EBR—MRIER

@ Premises and Related Expenses 15.9% @ Premises and Related Expenses 16.4%
RERBREX RERBRREX

@ studentand General Educational Services  § 190fq @ studentand General Educational Services 4 Q0fq
BLER—MBAERS BER—MEERS
Other Activities 4.7% Other Activities 0.2%
HithiEE HithiZE)

@ Finance Costs 0.0% @ rinance Costs 0.0%
S ER MHER

@ !ncome Tax 0.0% @ 'ncome Tax 0.0%
PSR PS8

@ Remeasurement and Exchange Differences () 49/o @ Remeasurement and Exchange Differences (), 39/g
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RESEARCH

In 2018/19, the total number of ongoing research projects was 2,837 (2017/18: 3,047), of which 670 (2017/18: 903) were new projects.
The total number of registered research postgraduate students was 1,923 (2017/18: 1,867).

In addition to the basic research elements built into the academic departments’ one-line budgets, the University incurred a total
expenditure of $970.9 million (2017/18: $904.8 million) on specific Research Activities, including research projects and studentship. Of
this amount, $544.2 million (2017/18: $540.4 million) was supported by UGC funds while $426.7 million (2017/18: $364.4 million)
was supported by non-UGC funds.

To encourage the local academics collaborate with organisations beyond academia to deliver more impactful and translational research
projects, the RGC launched the Research Impact Fund (RIF) in 2018/19 and supported 30 projects with a total amount of $193 million
in the year. PolyU attained 10 RIF projects with a total RGC grant of $65.0 million and ranked first in both the number of RIF supported
projects and grant amounts awarded by the RGC in this exercise. In addition, the University was awarded the RGC Theme-based
Research Scheme (TRS) project on “Sustainable Marine Infrastructure Enabled by the Innovative Use of Seawater Sea-sand Concrete
and Fibre-Reinforced Polymer Composites” in the 2018/19 exercise. The approved budget of this project was HK$52.5 million, which

topped the chart in terms of amount among the five TRS projects awarded in this exercise.

With the establishment of the Photonic Laboratory on the campus in Shenzhen, the University was able to acquire two research grants
of RMB36.9 million from the Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s Republic of China via the National Key Technologies
R&D Programme (BIZXFIFEE260H3251E]) in 2018/19. The two grants are for research projects on the short-range optical inter-
connection technologies and core technologies for optical transmission systems respectively.

The University was once again one of the top winners in this year’s 47th International Exhibition of Inventions of Geneva, capturing 18
awards in a variety of disciplines, including healthcare, wearable energy sources, green living, smart city, manufacturing spectrum in
textile and precise polishing. The University’s success at the exhibition demonstrates its research capabilities and accomplishments in

innovation and technology.
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INVESTMENTS

The prolonged trade war between the US and China and the increased volatility in global financial markets trigger a global economic
slowdown. Global economic growth continues to falter due to the escalating trade tensions, and the rise of de-globalisation coupled
with geopolitical issues. Yields fell sharply as market sentiment made a U-turn due to rising interest rates and a fear of recession
following widespread hopes of synchronised global easing by Central banks, led by the US Federal Reserve and the European Central
Bank.

Guided by good governance and risk management, the University has adopted the investment strategies developed by the Investment
Committee, which are based on the Statement of Investment Policies and Guidelines (“SIPG”) approved by the University Council.
Asset allocation of the University’s investments has been appropriately managed, taking into consideration of the different cash flow
requirements as well as the strategic development of the University.

Current investment strategies and our management approach are prudent and well established. However, vulnerabilities in the
traditional portfolio construction model of bonds and equities have led the University to consider alternative investments for
diversification, aiming to reduce overall portfolio volatility and achieve more robust returns.

Funds of the University, excluding the UGC Hostel Development Fund (HDF), and major subsidiaries are pooled together for effective
investment management. Approximately 40% of the investible funds are managed by external investment managers. As of 30 June
2019, 76% of the University’s investments were in fixed income securities (2017/18: 76%), and 24% were in equities (2017/18: 24%).
The University and the Consolidated Entity recorded an Interest and Investment Gain of $281.4 million (2017/18: $247.8 million)
and $302.6 million (2017/18: $263.5 million) respectively for the year. The increase was primarily attributable to the significant bond
returns with higher valuations in the fixed income portfolios.

HDF, a significant one-off capital grant of $2,937 million, has been separately managed while adhering to the University’s SIPG.
However, investment return of HDF is initially treated as Deferred Income until the assets are put into use when the related income is
recognised. Interest and investment gain of $26.5 million has been recognised as deferred income of HDF as at 30 June 2019.
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CAPITAL PROGRAMMES

For the year 2018/19, the University’s total expenditure in capital programmes was $138.7 million (2017/18: $164.8 million), comprising
capital development programmes of $78.7 million (2017/18: $87.6 million) and various alterations, additions and improvement projects of $60.0
million (2017/18: $77.2 million).

The University signed a service agreement with the UGC regarding the UGC Hostel Development Fund (HDF). PolyU received a lump sum
capital grant of HK$2,936.6 million on 1 February 2019 for the development of two hostel projects, one at Ho Man Tin Slope (HDF of $1,268.4
million) and another at Kowloon Tong (HDF of $1,668.2 million), comprising 1,279 and 1,680 bed spaces, respectively. For the Ho Man Tin
Slope project, the site formation and foundation works are anticipated to start in the first quarter of 2020. The project for the academic block at
Ho Man Tin Slope, jointly developed with the hostel project, is awaiting funding approval by the Finance Committee of the Legislative Council,
which is anticipated in the fourth quarter of 2019. The site formation and foundation works of both the hostel and academic building projects
are expected to commence in the first quarter of 2020, subject to funding approval and granting of the site by the District Land Office. For the
Kowloon Tong project, ground investigation works are anticipated to start in the second half of 2019.

Construction of the footbridge linking the main campus and the podium level of Block Z, with a capital expenditure of $163.3 million ($51.6
million incurred during the year), is scheduled for completion in August 2019, in time for the new academic year. Upon completion, the
footbridge will improve pedestrian connectivity between the main campus and Block Z.

Pending approval from the Public Works Subcommittee and Finance Committee of the Legislative Council, the Pao Yue-kong Library Extension
and Revitalisation project will commence in early 2020. The LER project comprises the construction of an additional floor (6/F) on top of the
existing library building and revitalisation of the existing floors (G/F to 5/F).

An analysis of the University’s capital programmes is provided in Figure 5.
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CAPITAL PROGRAMMES (CONT'D)
HEEIaa (48)

Capital Programmes Analysis EE2IBE 217

2019 2018
HK$'m % HK$'m %
Redevelopment of Block X HENEX LB R5TE] 2 1.4 23 14.0
Footbridge Linking Phase 8 RIS 21T ARIEST 2 52 37.4 41 24.8
Other Capital Programmes & AA&I Projects EhEZIERIEE RINENETIE 85 61.2 101 61.2
139 100 165 100
Figure 5: Capital Programmes Analysis @ 2018/2019 HK$139 million
1.39 &%E 7T
BE : ERIEE SR e
2017/2018 HK$165 million
1.65 @# 7T
250
200
c g
e 150
z K
U>% 101
=X 100 85
52
50 M
23
2
0
Redevelopment of Block X Footbridge Linking Phase 8 Other Capital Programmes & AA&I Projects
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SELF-FINANCING ACTIVITIES

To support the University’s strategic development, PolyU engages in diversified self-financing activities, of which the major income
sources are the tuition fees of self-financed programmes, service income, rental income, lodging fees of student hostels and investment
income. In 2018/19, the self-financing activities maintained a steady income of $1,275.7 million (2017/18: $1,265.8 million). As
expenditure was reduced to $888.6 million (2017/18: $1,033.0 million), this resulted in an increase of the surplus to $387.1 million
(2017/18: $232.8 million).

Over the years, the University has supported the Government’s initiatives to promote well-rounded student development and lifelong
learning by offering various high-quality self-financed programmes. During the 2018/19 year, the tuition fee income of self-financed
programmes amounted to $703.9 million (2017/18: $708.4 million), which accounted for 55% of the total income for self-financing
activities (2017/18: 56%). To avoid cross-subsidisation of UGC resources to non-UGC-funded activities, the University has adopted the
Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded Activities issued by UGC, with the related methodologies, control
and review procedures applied to self-financed programmes.

PolyU will continue to strengthen its financial position and sustainability by increasing the diversity of self-financing activities through
proper financial planning and analysis. To be a leading university that provides the best holistic education, the University will continue
to offer high-quality self-financed programmes to develop qualified professionals for society. At the same time, the University will
manage its self-financed programme portfolio with a forward-looking perspective and due reference made to changing market demands
and needs, together with the aim of enhancing internationalisation and attracting excellent students.

BEREEY
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DONATIONS

The University received cash donations totalling $176.5 million (2017/18: $281.3 million) during the year, including $100 million in
contributions from subsidiaries (2017/18: $110 million). The donations were made by alumni, friends and organisations supporting the
University’s development and used for research activities, scholarships and various education initiatives. To comply with HKFRS financial
reporting standards, the donations and benefactions of $234.7 million (2017/18: $319.1 million) were recognised as income in the Income
and Expenditure Statement for the year. As some of the donations solicited during 2018/19 were realised in 2019/20 in order to optimise the
benefit of the implementation of the Eighth Matching Grant Scheme and Research Matching Grant Scheme, donation income recognised in
2018/19 was 26% lower than last year.

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Foundation (“PolyU Foundation”) successfully solicited support from our alumni and partners, as
evidenced by the encouraging responses to fund-raising campaigns such as the Fund-raising Dinner 2018/19 and Golf Tournament 2019. As at
30 June 2019, the balances of the General Donation Funds and Endowment Funds were $524.2 million (2017/18: $520.6 million) and $399.8
million (2017/18: $375.2 million), respectively. These funds will be used by the University to support its future development.

The ongoing success of the fund-raising campaigns continued to have a positive impact on the University’s financial position. The University
is immensely grateful to our donors. The generosity of these donors affirms the strong potential and proven capabilities of the University in
academic and research development. The University will continue its fundraising efforts with a view to diversifying income sources for its long-
term development.

An analysis of the University’s donations is provided in Figure 6.

RERBASBHEF.765RBITIREIBN(017/18 : 2.813887r) » AP BIEREWBLAIN1EBET(2017/18 - 1.1EBT) - BRE
SXRBZHABEROINAL - HBZIRRBRELR > MBRSERBINEE - RBERSEHBIEE - RENXSBUBIRSERMIR
BHNEHRS  AFEWZRIBERNBERIBMINNE2.347F81(2017/18 : 3.191{8)87T) - BESE/\WEHMEsERTR
BB S EINENR » LD EARFEMENBMBIEER201920FEMHR - £2018/19FEHEROVIBIRBALEFHD26% ©

SBEBTRBESTHMINSIRENGIERHNSZE » HEREY > HINIBARERRE2018/19KRSHWARIKE2019F R EEL - &
B2019F683081F » —RBEEETRBABBETN[BEIDBIAS.242E8(2017/18 : 5.2068871) K 3.998{8%855(2017/18 :
3.7521B85T) » ARSI REBRRKRERE o

ABRPNZIRENSDSEMML)  BEFERREREBNFE - ABRDLBEFMEREBE —BMRNESE - BAIREISEIED
B S ASNEMMNRIRH - BEfTHEEENTESZHERE - ABREEIEBMETVTBHBWARR  LZHABHRESE
o

A BRI HTEISETT -



BAEIF5IRE 2018/19

DONATIONS (CONT'D)
1B (&)

Donations Analysis 18854

2019 2018
HK$'m % HK$'m %
Donations for Research Activities R EEn8ED 42 17.9 35 11.0
Scholarship, Bursaries, Prizes and Loan REFT BT BEREE 14 6.0 23 7.2
Capital Projects Heg 13 5.5 20 6.3
Others Hih 166 70.6 241 75.5
235 100 319 100
Figure 6: Donations Analysis @ 2018/2019 HK$235 million
B : BB PR
2017/2018 HK$319 million
3.19 T
250
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200
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é ?E 150
z %
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50 42 35
. T 13 20
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Donations for Research Activities Scholarship, Bursaries, Prizes and Loan Capital Projects Others
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FINANCIAL OUTLOOK

The 2019/20 financial year will kick start a new funding triennium with the UGC and the University’s Strategic Plan 2019/20-2024/25.
The University has signed the University Accountability Agreement (UAA) for the 2019-22 Triennium with the UGC, which sets out
the commitments and obligations of the University over the funding period. The new Strategic Plan is aligned with the UAA and is
formulated under the same five key strategic areas, which are (1) quality of the student experience of teaching and learning, (2) quality
of research performance and the research postgraduate experience, (3) knowledge transfer and wider engagement, (4) enhanced
internationalisation and, (5) financial health and institutional sustainability. The Strategic Plan outlines the University’s strategic goals for
teaching, learning and research to be achieved in the next six years.

The University will also strive to enhance the academic standing and the impact of PolyU in Hong Kong and the world. Through the
provision of the best holistic education for students, the University aims to nurture professionals and leaders with a strong sense of
social responsibility, innovation, critical thinking and effective communication skills. Already a world leader in a significant number of
disciplines, the University will further enhance its educational offerings and research development in emerging areas, such as financial
technology, artificial intelligence and robotics. New programmes in these areas will be launched in the coming triennium in line with
the needs of society.

MERE

2019208 U BB EB SN =FHAB AR AE2019/20-2024/2500FE L2 BaTE] o ABMHBEEE] 52019-22=FHIEUK
BREERS  HPEI S AREEHIARNNRGEINET - ABFORBERSBHEABREAEHERET B WREBAEBEVEIRE
BEEGITE  BF(1)2ERHRIASNER  QORRBERAEERBRNESR : Q)NHEBRARSHE ; (4)I1REFLE (5)RRE
FROIFHEE o ST 8IMDR 3 RERFNFEHNE  BBIME LB KBIRNKIEBE -

ABIMEHDRAEAESBUEZRKNBMBUNRED - ERRBERURBNEANE  AEERBEERBINHSEER
EREIR - BIRBPENSRBEBNEEATNRM - AEEEZEERNERE T\ - TR5E—F 058 B2 3 E A sy B A0
IO WEMEIM ~ AT BRI - EELBBHNMRES TR RSN =FHBE  UFEHEHREK
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FINANCIAL OUTLOOK (Cont'd)

The Central and HKSAR Government’s initiatives to develop the Greater Bay Area (GBA) will provide many opportunities for education
and research collaborations between the University and mainland institutions. Enhancing the role of the University in the GBA will be
one of the key strategic focus of the University in years to come.

The new Research Matching Grant Scheme launched on 1 August 2019 will complement the University’s plans to strengthen
interdisciplinary research collaborations and industry partnerships. In addition, the University has submitted proposals with world
leading institutions under the AIR@InnoHK and Health@InnoHK research clusters to support the HKSAR Government’s InnoHK initiative
to develop Hong Kong as the hub for global research collaborations. The opening of the Centralised Animal Facilities in the Shenzhen
Research Institute later in 2019 will strengthen the University’s ability to attract more research funding in the mainland. The University
will also continue to proactively recruit top talent from around the world and will leverage its world-class research infrastructure
to capture research opportunities, work with academic and business partners and make a greater contribution to the sustainable
development of Hong Kong, the nation and the world.

The University is in good financial health to achieve the strategic goals of its core functions in learning and teaching, and research.
Moreover, the University will closely monitor sector-wide and institution-specific key performance measures as set out in the UAA to
ensure the financial sustainability of the institution over the long term.

MBRE (48)

PREFNSBREIFHANEBHERESE - KAASRAMKE 2BNHNSNMRSIFRHEESHEE  MNBABENERNABES
RBRERKEFRBOVRIBEI 2 —

MOV FRECEH MBI ESTEIBR2019F8 81 BRIE) » BIHEIASIEESRMFASIFURMEEROBHER - I KABIMEZIRIER
B S 1E » fEAIR@InnoHK R Health@InnoHKBIFTE 8122 2ES @ ML IBEBREBEMNInnoHKE S » BB BERE/EIRIESIE
Py e 2019F FHFEEFRYIFATLIRFHARNBDPERPL » SNBABEAMBESBELHEEENED - ABRBEBRBEREEIK
IR AT - WAIBEBLNRRIE - BEKS - BBMNBREBHSIF RSB BXNERNYFBRERIFLEEAGR

ABEFNZHRERSIER > BUESE - RENNRD EEMREZOINENRIEER - 1t ABBBINERABHRERZEPY
FEELPIA AT E ORI RIGRIERR - MIERABRROV B IFFENE -

Ms Loretta Fong Wan-huen hREuT
Treasurer of the University KEFE
24 September 2019 2019693248
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (“the University”) and its subsidiaries
(together “Consolidated Entity”) set out on pages 20 to 136, which comprise the Consolidated and University Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2019, the Consolidated and University Income and Expenditure Statements, the Consolidated and University
Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and University Statements of Changes in Fund Balances and the Consolidated
and University Statements of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Consolidated Entity and
the University as at 30 June 2019 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Consolidated Entity in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The Council of the University is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in
the financial report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONT'D)
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY (CONT'D)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council is responsible for assessing the Consolidated Entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Council intends to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the Consolidated Entity’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 15 of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Consolidated Entity’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONT'D)
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY (CONT'D)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Consolidated
Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Consolidated Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Consolidated Entity to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the Consolidated Entity. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 September 2019
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
7 BRIE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
BE2019F683081LFE

Note Consolidated #7& University K&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFBTE) I 2019 2018 2019 2018
Income AN
Government Subventions IR 3 3,855,801 3,644,316 3,838,738 3,628,707
Tuition and Other Fees LERHME 4 2,367,115 2,360,509 1,559,075 1,565,814
Interest and Investment Gain FBAZEUES 5 302,633 263,473 281,411 247,796
Donations and Benefactions BRRIER 6 135,438 210,591 234,650 319,073
Other Income =Ll 7 879,358 875,397 512,595 504,492
7,540,345 7,354,286 6,426,469 6,265,882
Expenditure E35a 8
Teaching, Learning and Research 0B BBERRBT
Teaching and Research BRI 4,008,950 3,900,641 3,685,945 3,599,414
Library BE: 181,801 181,216 157,922 156,920
Central Computing Facilities PR EBASELIE 230,025 226,212 191,895 186,529
Other Academic Services HhEBRH 415,106 388,118 361,850 337,955
Institutional Support HWEDIE
Management and General EIER—RIAE 425,197 397,420 346,717 327,024
Premises and Related Expenses RS RABRIRZ 1,130,437 1,243,371 994,584 1,117,566
Student and General BER—MBE
Educational Services B3 366,235 342,196 294,418 276,668
Other Activities HiE) 338,394 353,584 13,696 6,855
7,096,145 7,032,758 6,047,027 6,008,931
Finance Costs BB ER 1,525 6,441 1,525 6,441
7,097,670 7,039,199 6,048,552 6,015,372
Surplus from Operations EEReF 442,675 315,087 377917 250,510
Share of Loss of an Associate [EIEBEATESE 19 - 47) - -
Share of Losses of Joint Ventures EIEEE QTR 20 (732) (2,411) - -
Surplus before Taxation BRIRBIZRER 441,943 312,629 377917 250,510
Income Tax PSR 9 (1,919) (3,136) (1,919) (2,964)
Surplus for the Year REERER 440,024 309,493 375,998 247,546

The notes on pages 27 to 136 form part of the financial statements.

DIFIRE27 EE 1362 ZM R EHHIRE 2217 -
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THEHRER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
HE2019F683081LFE
Note Consolidated 58 University A£2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BTF8Tat) BosE 2019 2018 2019 2018
Surplus for the Year REERER 440,024 309,493 375,998 247,546
@ Other Comprehensive Income FER
for the Year Hitz Bl
Items that will not be reclassified = EHEFEE
to Income and Expenditure Statement: W ERIBAVIER:
Remeasurement (Loss)/Gain of Defined KEBMEIARGTE]
Benefit Retirement Schemes SR E0V(E1R)/ 1IN (19,953) 9,121 (19,953) 9,121
Items that may be Hi%oJge
reclassified subsequently to SHEREE
Income and Expenditure Statement: W ERIBAVIER:
Exchange Differences on Translation REBANWEALT
of Financial Statements of B 75ERZ<00
Chinese Mainland Subsidiaries (ERZELE (5,874) 4,267 - -
(25,827) 13,388 (19,953) 9,121
® Total Comprehensive Income FER
for the Year FRESEIERS 414,197 322,881 356,045 256,667
Attributable to: ERER:
Consolidated Entity/University: REt/ A
Transfer from Restricted Funds BEES 10 (272,032) (150,592) (234,569)  (150,592)
Transfer from UGC Funds HEBER 1 (74,476)  (134,621) (74,476)  (134,621)
Transfer to Other Funds RfeREE 12 760,705 608,094 665090 541,880
Total Comprehensive Income FER
for the Year REENEE 414,197 322,881 356,045 256,667

There is no tax effect relating to the above components of the other comprehensive income.

M EEMSIAZBNEIEINSZRIERE -

BIRMIE AT EROIEREL -

transferred to UGC Funds and Other Funds.

translation of operations of the Chinese mainland subsidiaries.

FEREMEBHNSRBEARIEARESRHBAFMERFNRZMEENFIEE/ESHMNENSIA - PINRTBFRASBIEHSTBONRNEHEENRE

@ Other Comprehensive Income for the Year includes items which represent changes in net assets/fund balances not arising from transactions controlled by the
University in its capacity as the fund holder. Examples are remeasurement gain or loss of defined benefit retirement schemes and exchange differences on

@ ror the Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, the portion of income with restricted use would be transferred to Restricted Funds, while others would be

FFEERZARSPAFRERENNESEEREES  HhSEEHEGESRAMES -

The notes on pages 27 to 136 form part of the financial statements.

DUERE27 2 E 1368 MR AMBERFK 2 —I0MD °
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MR R

AS AT 30 JUNE 2019
201965308

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current Assets
Fixed Assets
Investments in Subsidiaries
Interests in Associates
Interests in Joint Ventures
Non-current Financial Assets
Employee Benefits Assets

Current Assets
Current Financial Assets
Staff Loans
Inventories
©® Accounts and Other Receivables
Cash and Deposits with Banks

Current Liabilities

Bank Loan for On-lending
to Staff

Loans and Borrowings
® Accounts and Other Payables
Provision for Employee Benefits
O Deferred Income
Tax Payable

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings
Provision for Employee Benefits
Deferred Income

Deferred Capital Funds
Net Assets
Representing
Restricted Funds
UGC Funds
Other Funds
Total

APPROVED AND AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE BY THE COUNCIL ON 24 SEPTEMBER 2019

Dr LAM Tai-fai, SBS, JP

(A F87551)

IFRBEE
BEEE
MEARZEE
AT
GENTELS
SERBEMEE
BTRMNEE

RENEE
MENEREE
HWEET
8
[EUSERIR
RERIRITER

RENRIE
BETHIWE
ZSATERR

ERREE
FEASBRTR
SmREAlbE
SESELSA
[ETRIA

PREERE
BEEINREAE
ERBEE
ERREE
B TaAE
SEELSIA

Note
BEE

17
18
19
20
21

28

22
23

24
25

23
26
27
28
29

26
28
29

10
1
12

Consolidated 558

University K&

REGR2019F9IF24BH AN SFIE D

MAIBE L, SBS, JP

Chairman of Council RESETR
Ms Loretta FONG Wan-huen PREZt
Treasurer of the University RETGE

The notes on pages 27 to 136 form part of the financial statements.

DIEIRE27 EE 136 2 RARHIRET 2 — 81D -

2019 2018 2019 2018
5,193,987 5,391,242 5,031,082 5,225,887
- - 130,333 138,907
33,146 35,400 - -
1,666,603 718,326 1,666,603 718,326
546 599 546 599
6,894,282 6,145,567 6,828,564 6,083,719
3,435,006 3,337,019 3,435,006 3,337,019
18,260 19,830 18,260 19,830
4,434 4,298 - -
685,324 546,061 685,297 575,848
5,952,875 3,636,419 5,787,584 3,439,095
10,095,899 7,543,627 9,926,147 7,371,792
18,260 19,830 18,260 19,830
42,991 44,141 42,991 44,141
1,269,270 1,267,686 2,046,139 1,989,524
382,258 396,063 292,810 307,340
634,497 570,389 623,284 557,585
4,949 4,544 4,777 4,372
2,352,225 2,302,653 3,028,261 2,922,792
7,743,674 5,240,974 6,897,886 4,449,000
14,637,956 11,386,541 13,726,450 10,532,719
421,321 464,312 421,321 464,312
374,357 362,588 371,703 360,060
3,102,870 116,264 3,102,870 116,264
3,898,548 943,164 3,895,894 940,636
3,491,838 3,615,354 3,491,838 3,615,354
7,247,570 6,828,023 6,338,718 5,976,729
3,126,261 3,126,850 2,963,356 2,961,495
1,842,281 1,885,314 1,842,281 1,885,314
2,279,028 1,815,859 1,533,081 1,129,920
7,247,570 6,828,023 6,338,718 5,976,729
Professor Jin-Guang TENG B IR IR
President mE

Miss April WONG Soo-kam
Director of Finance

BRZ/AE

U IBER
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©® Accounts and Other Receivables include Investment Proceeds Receivable of $135.5 million (2018: $132.1 million), while Accounts and Other Payables include

Investment Proceeds Payable of $256.2 million (2018: $286.6 million), as disclosed in notes 24 and 27 respectively. These Investment Proceeds Receivable/
Payable arise from the unsettled securities transactions by external investment managers of the University as at year end.

[EWERIR RIGIRBBUIFRIALY1.3550855(2018 : 1.321 08 7x) - MBI IRRBIGIRERIIIAN2.562{8875(2018 : 2.866f2)87T) » BB D BIFIER
MisE24527 o ELR BB/ BN RIRBASABENBIIRELIERFREKCENESIBMESE

According to Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, government grants
are recognised as income during the year in which they are spent. Since the major source of income of the University is government subvention, the University
has to adopt HKAS 20 for the accounting treatment of government grants in its financial statements. Balance of Deferred Income as at year end represents
unspent portion of grants and specific donations.

IRIESESSTHER( "SEH4ER], )$E2057 - BUTERANBUTENKE  BFERSREMETHDBR/UWN - XN EZINNAFRBETER - ARAILE
S ERE20REEMHRIFEEEOSRIE - EFROVELEWVNABREBOBERRIBERE -

Following HKAS 20, government grants spent on the purchase of fixed assets/capital expenditure are initially recorded as Deferred Capital Funds and subsequently
recognised as income in alignment with the depreciation charge of the related assets. The balance in Deferred Capital Funds represents the net asset value of
the grant supported assets.

SIPBSTHERFE205  ARBEAEEENELARZNHNENNBASLHARIEEAES  THANEREEESTINENTRED AL - EELR  EIEE
FEEZRBBRENEHEENFEEE -
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

EEREEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
HZE2019F683081LFE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July 2017

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2018

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 15

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9

Adjusted Balance
at 1 July 2018

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2019

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Balance at 1 July 2017

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2018

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9

Adjusted Balance
at 1 July 2018

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2019

(AFHTat)
20178751 Bises
FEANREBIE
EEER

2018F 6233084587

VIBIEREBIHRS
HRIF15RRE

MIBER BB HRS
HERIZEIRIIRE

2018F7818
FIEEILASRR

FEARZE

BEigk

201968308 %565

(L F85zah)
201757 81 BH#58R
FENREBEIER
B

2018F 633084583

MIBERE B BHIRS
HRIE ROV E

2018574218
SREBIRIEER
FEAREZBEINZE

EEa it

2019568308485

The notes on pages 27 to 136 form part of the financial statements.

DISIIRE27 2 E 13622 RETHREZ2—81D °

Consolidated 55

Restricted Funds UGC Funds Other Funds
(note 10) (note 11) (note 12) Total
HTES HESES HitbES
(Ff15£10) (B35E11) (fg5312) a5t
2,736,655 2,051,638 1,716,849 6,505,142
(150,592) (134,621) 608,094 322,881
540,787 (31,703) (509,084) -
3,126,850 1,885,314 1,815,859 6,828,023
- - (594) (594)
- - 5,944 5,944
3,126,850 1,885,314 1,821,209 6,833,373
(272,032) (74,476) 760,705 414,197
271,443 31,443 (302,886) -
3,126,261 1,842,281 2,279,028 7,247,570
University K&
Restricted Funds UGC Funds Other Funds
(note 10) (note 11) (note 12) Total
RNEED HESES HithES
(HMg5E10) (M35E11) (MFEE12) Rt
2,566,325 2,051,638 1,102,099 5,720,062
(150,592) (134,621) 541,880 256,667
545,762 (31,703) (514,059) -
2,961,495 1,885,314 1,129,920 5,976,729
- - 5,944 5,944
2,961,495 1,885,314 1,135,864 5,982,673
(234,569) (74,476) 665,090 356,045
236,430 31,443 (267,873) -
2,963,356 1,842,281 1,533,081 6,338,718




RERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
HZE2019F683081LFE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Operating Activities

Surplus before Taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Finance Costs
Interest Income

Net Realised and Unrealised Gain
on Investment Portfolio

Impairment Loss/(Reversal of) on
Investments in Subsidiaries

Share of Loss of an Associate
Share of Losses of Joint Ventures

Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Grants transfer from
Deferred Capital Funds

Foreign Exchange Loss

Net Surplus before
Changes in Working Capital

Increase in Accounts and
Other Receivables

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

Increase in Accounts and Other
Payables

(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for
Employee Benefits

Decrease/(Increase) in
Employee Benefits Assets

(Decrease)/Increase in
Deferred Income

Cash Generated from
Operations

Tax Paid

China Corporate Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Generated from

Operating Activities

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(ATFB751)

BE5H

PREREIRRER
FEUTES:
ne
UHER
FIBUIN
BIRRABIRG

SEREGFINES
ME ARG RIERE/
(RERSIERE D)
[EISIENTGIE
[BIEEERIEE
HEETEEEZEE

BIR8
BB AT 2R

INEEFE RS 1E
EEETEEH
PRER
[EUSERIR Z
B0
ZE21B0)wD
[EIJRRFRZ
180
RN
(B8 10
SIRNEEZ
/(K8 10)
SRIELIA 2
(Ri)/38 10
EpEEE) v
RBERN
SZAYRRIR
S PEIEEMS

2E5az
FPIRERAN

Note
BifEE

8.1

30

Consolidated #=8
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University K&

2019 2018 2019 2018
441,943 312,629 377,917 250,510
485,435 488,494 447,972 449,908

1,525 6,441 1,525 6,441
(129,075) (89,541) (108,596) (75,389)
(173,558) (173,932) (172,815) (172,407)

- - 9,175 (2,697)
- 47 - -
732 2,411 B 3

2,898 976 604 690
(352,489) (366,027) (352,489) (366,027)

6,910 3,117 6,910 3,117
284,321 184,615 210,203 94,146
(112,009) (22,456) (78,442) (77,006)

(136) 835 - 3
8,225 149,512 61,395 236,707
(21,989) 18,599 (22,840) 11,899
53 (287) 53 (287)
(12,427) (26,889) 5,495 (12,014)
146,038 303,929 175,864 253,445

(1,514) (3,452) (1,514) (3,452)
144,524 300,477 174,350 249,993
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)
HRERERE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
HZE2019F68308 1 FE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFBTst)
Investing Activities ETE
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets BEEFTEE
Investment in a Subsidiary HWBATINE
New Loans to Staff BB FILER
Loans Repaid by Staff HHEEM
Proceeds from Disposal of an HEREAT 2
Associate FTSRIA
Net Cash Received/(Paid) BSERARESZ
on Sale/Purchase of Equity E ViR
and Trading Securities (S H)FRIE
Proceeds from Sale/Redemption E5/BOENEEZ
of Financial Assets FriSsRIE
Interest Received ERFIR
Purchase of Held-to-maturity BEREERIH
Debt Securities B85
Net (Increase)/ Decrease in =@B%
Short-term Deposits with over el
Three Months to Maturity QERE R
when Placed SPUBI0)EA
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from BEEH
Investing Activities SBIRECREB)RA
Financing Activities MEEH
Subventions Received BB
Bank Loans Drawn Down for EEFHEEZ
On-lending to Staff RITER
Repayment of Bank Loans for EREEIHHEZ
On-lending to Staff RITER
Repayment of Bank Loans BRIRITER
Repayment of Government Loans BRHRER
Finance Costs Paid for ENERZ
Loans and Borrowings FHER
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) RME T2
Financing Activities FRERNORE)
Net Increase in RERIREHFEYZ
Cash and Cash Equivalents SFIB N0
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate PEZREE),2
Changes 22
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERIBEHEY2
at 1 July FHSE
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERIBEEBYZ
at 30 June FHS

The notes on pages 27 to 136 form part of the financial statements.

IBIRE27 E2E136B2MREUFRERZ2—81D °

Note
BirsE

25

Consolidated #38& University K22
2019 2018 2019 2018
(269,775) (334,812) (229,414) (302,564)
_ - (600) (700)
(910) (940) (910) (940)
2,480 5,820 2,480 5,820
- 1,321 - -
205,379 (28,066) 204,636 (29,591)
179,689 401,701 179,689 401,701
93,208 90,178 72,728 76,036
(1,279,174) - (1,279,174) -
(1,639,251) 148,417 (1,639,862) 149,438
(2,708,354) 283,619 (2,690,427) 299,200
3,292,114 220,467 3,275,783 202,647
910 940 910 940
(2,480) (5,820) (2,480) (5,820)
- (291,400) - (291,400)
(44,141) (44,141) (44,141) (44,141)
- (6,441) - (6,441)
3,246,403 (126,395) 3,230,072 (144,215)
682,573 457,701 713,995 404,978
(5,528) (2,351) (5,528) (2,351)
1,013,249 557,899 839,201 436,574
1,690,294 1,013,249 1,547,668 839,201
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 5 4R R Y 2

1.

Significant Accounting Policies

FEEFEBER

1.1

1.1

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply with the Statement of
Recommended Practice for the UGC-funded Institutions (“SORP”) and Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-
UGC-funded activities (“CAGs”) issued by the University Grants Committee (“UGC”) in Hong Kong. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Consolidated Entity and the University are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Consolidated Entity and University. Note 1.3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Consolidated Entity

and University for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

BHER

A BRZEREBSSEINE( "SR S )bﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ;_ﬁﬁﬁﬁ (BRMBRSER) ("HMHRSER L )(LRBERS
PRBEERNERHHRSER <<El/ SR (TSR ) REE  REBLATVSHRANURASHEENEES
("#HESE, )ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ@%ﬁl’é’éﬁﬂB%WB@E%E@EU&%ZQSQEﬂéﬁiﬁE%ﬂégéﬁbE@JBTJEBZZIS DEHESI( TR D BB )
REMIRE - RERRANNEZGSIERMBEIIWT -

BEEIABERMZERIGECERASZEN SRS REUNI IR RH MO B R SER RERNSTE « HizE1.35]
FHEBERELEIMELENS DTBZ HPER  BLEPBRREFRS &X;EB%TJEQLJE%afﬁﬂ?a%’ﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁi’%ﬁb°
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Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 comprise the University and its subsidiaries (together referred

to as the “Consolidated Entity”) and the Consolidated Entity’s interests in associates and joint ventures on the basis set out in note 1.5.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies set out below. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenditure. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements and major

sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 38.

TS ERRAVRBLERE
EEMBREABEARRAEWEAT(EE "H5582, )U2019F68308 ABE DN HRERIREMET1.5R\NESLSME
EHERIREEBLTZREBMRBR -

BRTXEHERARBRABIN  AUBRREZELNAERIRREE - RREISTOUHRSENNYHREFTERECIERE
TR RIER ~ 55T RARE - MZFHIEN » S5 RBEASHEFRVERBRAPRNEE » BF » WARHZHOEE - ZFH5TR
BEERER DIRBETERE S EBEEERIBER TESIENSIBEMRRMIEL - EHRMAEIZEBRRERAEMERKR
SHNNEERBBERBEMEDAENER - BRBRASERIRZFEET -

ZEGSTRABRRBITERE - WEHESEIREXEFLZLF BTN - AIBIBSTRSREZIEESR ; WXES
HRLIAERRE - BIBEIESI SRE MR MR AR -

BHESEBRERYSRSERFMFEHAMFTREBEAFZENHEROSTZNMEC LN ER IR - SRHIE38P -
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@ The University has a total of 7 directly held principal subsidiaries which can be broadly classified into four types according to their principal activities as follows:

FREZEFECHEIEMBEAS

Principal Activity

B
(i) Education
BE

(ii) Research

[t
(iii)  Intra-group support

frEREmelE

(iv)  Others
Eith

For the preparation of consolidated financial statements, the income and expenditure of subsidiaries with principal activities as education, research and
intra-group support are consolidated to the respective income and expenditure lines following the University’s accounting practice. For other subsidiaries
under (iv) above which are auxiliary operations to the University, their income is consolidated to Other Income, whereas expenditure is consolidated to the
corresponding lines (mainly Management and General, Premises and Related Expenses and Other Activities) under Institutional Support. Expenditure of the

=

LB IZEREHAMD R0 NOHE:

Subsidiaries
WEAS

College of Professional and Continuing Education Limited

SERFBRHBEERERAT

Hong Kong Community College
EBELER

PolyU Research Limited
IBARHBIRAT

Campus Facilities Management Company Limited

REREEEERAT

Hotel ICON Limited
HBEBRAT

PolyU Technology and Consultancy Co. Limited
IBARE R BREBRAT

PolyU Enterprise Plus Limited
EATEFEBRAT

University relating to cost of operation of the subsidiaries concerned is classified under Other Activities.

Total income and expenditure of the subsidiaries for the year are $1,577.0 million (2018: $1,595.6 million) and $1,522.1 million (2018: $1,530.9 million)

respectively.

RIMAVGFEHHRE UHB NRGEBATZESRAIZEFOMBLAINBRARALSRASNGSTH N FESIAMBIREKPOVERIANMZIAS - MU
EERRIVOEMHEAS  dREEFHRENHER  HNARARSFESSIARMRAMRESZE THRRIAB(EZABIER—RIAE  RERBRMX

FELREE)) < )ELMBADNE ERL SR N\ AS AMSE0HEZIEE -
FFEE WEBADEHBIINRFAZDBIR15.770fE 52018 : 15.956f0850)R15.22 18852018 :15.309%8T) ©
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1.3

1.3

Changesin Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Consolidated Entity and the University. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Consolidated

Entity and University’s financial statements.

1.3.1 HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
1.3.2 HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

1.3.3 HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

The Consolidated Entity and the University have not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the

current accounting period.

1.3.1 HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition and measurement. It sets out the requirements for

recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Consolidated Entity and University have applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items that existed at 1 July 2018 in
accordance with the transition requirements. The Consolidated Entity and University have recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening fund balance at 1 July 2018. Therefore, comparative

information continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

BEBENET
EBGMAGREMZIRINS BYBRSEIRSBYBHRSEINNEE]  IRGSEBRABNAZSHFTEEREN - H
P MMBETRIGEERRABNYBIRFKER -

1.3.1 BBYHRSEAEIR - TMIE
1.3.2 SBPHMSHEAE 15K - RESPESHIZIN
1.3.3 SBERYFREEFE)F225E - INERXZRBTHE
FERRAMIRIENFINETRESSTFESREB T ERNNERE -
1.31 FEUBRSLEREONR - EMITH
EBUHRESEIEIRMABBIELE39E - TMTE : BBRSTE - WERFI S ENEE « TNBEN—
LEEFTMEESHEIEDBMNFTEEK -

FERARBEREBERE  WR2018F728 18 ENEEBHERS BYBMSHERIEIN - ;RSEMNAZEE
VIERNRST R ERE2018F7H1 BONFNEEHRE - Bt - EWRER S SRBRIES BT ERIE3IRRS -
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1.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

1.3

1.3.1

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont'd)

The following table summarises the impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on Other Funds at 1 July 2018.

Consolidated University
$'000 $'000
Balance at 30 June 2018 1,815,859 1,129,920
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 (Note 12)
Remeasurement of Investments in Institutional Entities
and other Equity Securities, now measured at FVPL 5,944 5,944
Adjusted Balance at 1 July 2018 1,821,803 1,135,864

As a result of the remeasurement of Investments in Institutional Entities and other Equity Securities on 1 July 2018,
the carrying amount of Non-current Financial Assets was increased from $718.3 million as at 30 June 2018 to $724.3
million as at 1 July 2018 (note 21).

Details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies and the transition approach are set out
below:

a. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal classification categories: measured at amortised cost,
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). These
supersede HKAS 39's categories of held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets measured at FVPL. The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the
business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. Under
HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the standard are
not separated from the host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

SRTBRAEE) (48)

1.3.1

FEMBREENFEOR - TMTR(4F)
TEREBER2018F7 1 BBEEEBYHRMSHERFIRHEMESOHE -

we N
$'000 $'000
R2018FE683084585 1,815,859 1,129,920
IBIERS BRI IRSHERFIRoFE (Mizt12)
RUCEMER AR AESNIRENETTE
REEANBESTNEBRTE 5,944 5,944
R2018E7 818 HELSES 1,821,803 1,135,864

BRI BB R AR A E AR ER2018F7 B1800EH5tE @ IPREIEMEENIRBEN2018F68308697.183(%
BITIE0EI201857 518097 2438 T (5E21) -

BENEEGSTIREE) 2B RFEBETENFFIFESI0T

a. TRMEENERBIENDER
ESBYHRSENBIRTEMEE DR _BERLRR  IWEIHNASTE  HARBESIAREZBNEST BRIZAR
BESINEHSTE - SN RRMN I SBBFHERIFE3RNVIER - DRIRITEEIIINE - ERMREUGRE » JHEE
EREERZANBEST NESSTIENEHNEE - SBYFRSEANZIRPHENEED R HIERENEENEHIR
INREGHNIRERERMERT - RESBUHRSERESR > SERSHATHEENRNAIVIETERSRTEDFHD
8 RRZESTLEA—BREE TR -
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Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
ERTBERNEE (&)

1.3.1

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont'd)

BBV REEANE N - THMITH(4F)

The following table shows the original measurement categories for each class of the Consolidated Entity's and the
University's financial assets under HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying amounts of those financial assets determined
in accordance with HKAS 39 to those determined in accordance with HKFRS 9.

TRITIRESBEHEREIIRGCE/NASNSAETNEENRFST 2R TRREBEZENEENEMEER
BERIRESBHHRSEREIRETSETHR -

Consolidated #5

HKAS 39  Reclassification Remearsurement HKFRS 9
carrying amount at (Note 12)  carrying amount
30 June 2018 at 1 July 2018
5B B4R SHHE HifistE BBUBRSEN
3958 (B5E12) FIR
R2018FE68308 R2018F7818
BEREE BEREE
(In thousands
of Hong Kong dollars)  (IAF#87551)
Financial assets carried Z#iHmAstE
at amortised cost NEREE
Cash and Deposits RERIRIT
with Banks =R 3,636,419 - - 3,636,419
Staff Loans HHESEM 19,830 - - 19,830
Accounts and FE LS
Other Receivables BRI8 546,061 - - 546,061
Held-to-maturity BEEEE
Debt Securities BHES 897,019 - - 897,019
5,099,329 - - 5,099,329
Financial assets BAREE
carried at StAERH
FVPL TREE
Trading Securities BHEES
(note (i) (M35E(D) 3,158,325 - - 3,158,325
Investments in RILBHER
Institutional Entities EbgA
and other Equity BHOLE
Securities (note (ii) (MEE (i) &
and note 21) BIEE 21) - 1 5,944 5,945
3,158,325 1 5,944 3,164,270
Financial assets SBT5HER
classified as #3918 fY
available-for-sale ot HE
under HKAS 39 THEE

(note (ii) (FF5E(i)) 1 (1) B .




1.3

Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

DETBCRAEE) (48)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont'd)

1.3.1

Note:

BosE

FEMBHREER

(In thousands

of Hong Kong dollars)
Financial assets carried @5 A5t=

at amortised cost

Cash and Deposits
with Banks

Staff Loans

Accounts and

Other Receivables

Held-to-maturity
Debt Securities

Financial assets
carried at
FVPL

Trading Securities
(note (i)

Investments in
Institutional Entities
and other Equity
Securities (note (ii)
and note 21)

Financial assets
classified as
available-for-sale
under HKAS 39
(note (ii))

(A FBE5)

BEREE
RERIRIT

=M
HEEE™M
FEUS

IR1B
BEEREH

BEHEHS

BANBE
StAIEZEHY
cmEE

BEE#H
(FF5E (i)

RIEBHRBR
HAE A
FBHENERE
(PysE(ii) &
Bk 21)

EBEHER
£39IBPHY
PHLE
EREE
(Pax (i)

EON - EMIR(E)

University K&

BAEIF5IRE 2018/19

HKAS 39  Reclassification Remearsurement HKFRS 9
carrying amount at (Note 12)  carrying amount
30 June 2018 at 1 Ju[y 2018
5B B4R S8 BifistE BBHBIRSER
3958 (MF5E12) EEk
R2018%68308 R2018%F7818
BEREE BEREIE
3,439,095 - - 3,439,095
19,830 - - 19,830

575,848 - - 575,848

897,019 - - 897,019
4,931,792 - - 4,931,792
3,158,325 - - 3,158,325

_ 1 5,944 5,945

3,158,325 1 5,944 3,164,270

(1) -

(i) Trading securities were classified as financial assets at FVPL under HKAS 39, these assets continue to be measured
at FVPL under HKFRS 9.
(ii) Under HKAS 39, Investment in Institutional Entities and other Equity Securities were classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and measured at cost. They are classified as FVPL under HKFRS 9.

) IR

BB EFTERFE3R 0 EBES

EfERANBESI N\EREE -

(i) 1R1E

EBGSTHERIE395R
SHRIEIRLFEH

BSORPEARNBESTNERGTBNTNEE -
CRIEBEEREMRAESNRED

ERRERIZARIBESINERSE -

BRUNBESMEE @ WIZMASTE - RIES

RIESBYHRSERFINR

FEE
BB
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1.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
1.3.1 HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont'd)

a. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont'd)
For the explanation of how the Consolidated Entity and University classify and measure financial assets and recognise
related gains and losses under HKFRS 9, see respective accounting policy notes in note 1.6, 1.9, 1.11 and 1.15.
The measurement categories for all financial liabilities remain the same. The carrying amounts for all financial
liabilities at 1 July 2018 have not been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.
The Consolidated Entity and University did not designate or de-designate any financial asset or financial liability
at FVPL at 1 July 2018.

b.  Credit Losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (ECL) model. The ECL
model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Consolidated Entity and University applies the new ECL model to financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents, staff loans, accounts and other receivables, and held-to-maturity debt

securities).

For further details on the Consolidated Entity’s and University’s accounting policy for accounting for credit losses,
see note 1.9.

The adoption of the new ECL model has no significant impact to the financial statements of the Consolidated
Entity and University.

1.3 SFFBERINEE (&)

1.3.1 FBYHRESLEMNE O - TMITE(HF)

a. THEENETHREENDRGEE)
BEFCERRABUURESBYHRSEINFIROERGTEENEE - RIBDBRIIBRNERE  FoISRM
511.6,1.9, 1. 11 R 115 IS FTIRMIGE ©
METHBENSIBRIRENE - METHMEER2018F7 81 BHRBEIARSE B HIRSERFE IR
IBEMRE -
RFECRRASR2018F7H1BIDRBIBERIEBERTEANBESINERFIBECENEENETNEE -

b. EREBE

EBYHRSEAEIRL "RHEEEE RANNNEBSSTENFEIIRN "BEEBE ., B - AHEERES
BRABRFEISNENEEBHNCERRE - Dt SRS BEFHEREIRN "2HELHE . VBRI
PreBRREERSE -

FREBRABRFNVAHEEEERINERRIZBBNASTIENENEE (RBRENIBEFHEY)  AHEER &
WERIER B 2R BIEHE )

BREGRSEBRASBNEAGEGHIRNEDFIE  HSRIMEE1.9 -

RAMNRREEGERAHNFSRERABNMFRFIBEATE -



BABIFSIRE 2018/19 35

1.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

1.3.1

13 BitHENE

1.3.1

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont'd)

c. Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except

as described below:

Information relating to comparative periods has not been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of
financial assets resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in Other Funds as at 1 July 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2018 continues to be reported under HKAS 39 and thus may not

be comparable with the current period.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at 1 July
2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9 by the Consolidated Entity and University):

e The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held; and

e The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading to be classified as at

FVOCI (non-recycling).

If, at the date of initial application, the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition would have involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has been recognised

for that financial instrument.
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1.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

1.3

1.3.2 HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sales of goods and rendering

of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows

arising from contracts with customers.

The Consolidated Entity and University have elected to use the cumulative effect transition method and have
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening fund balance at 1 July 2018.
Therefore, comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 18. As allowed
by HKFRS 15, the Consolidated Entity and University have applied the new requirements only to contracts that were
not completed as at 30 June 2018.
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1.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

1.3

1.3.2 HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes on previous accounting policies are set out below:

a.

Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from provision of services was recognised over time, whereas revenue from sale of
goods was generally recognised at a point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods had

passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains control of the promised good or service in
the contract. This may be at a single point in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies the following three situations

in which control of the promised good or service is regarded as being transferred over time:

()~ When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Consolidated

Entity's and University’s performance, as the Consolidated Entity and University perform;

(i) When the Consolidated Entity's and University’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example

work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(iiiy  When the Consolidated Entity's and University’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Consolidated Entity and University, and the Consolidated Entity and University have an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the Consolidated Entity's and University’s activities do not fall into any of these 3
situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point

in time, being when control has passed.

Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators that is considered in determining when

the transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant impact on when the Consolidated Entity and University

recogn ises revenue.
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1.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

1.3.2 HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

b. Presentation of contract liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised when a customer pays non-refundable
consideration, or is contractually required to pay non-refundable consideration and the amount is already due,

before the Consolidated Entity and University recognise the related income.

Previously, tuition and other fees and service income from hotel operation and consultancy services received in
advance were presented in the statement of financial position under “Receipts in Advance”. The Consolidated
Entity and University have reclassified the amount of $298.2 million and $226.6 million respectively from
“Receipts in Advance” to “Contract liabilities” (note 27) on 1 July 2018 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15

respectively.

1.3.3 HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

This Interpretation provides guidance on determining “the date of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising from a transaction

in which an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction” is the date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset
or liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance of recognising the related item, the date of the transaction for each payment or receipt should be determined
in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any material impact on the financial position and the financial
result of the Consolidated Entity and University.
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Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Consolidated Entity. The Consolidated Entity controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the Consolidated Entity has power, only substantive rights (held by the

Consolidated Entity and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no

evidence of impairment.

When the Consolidated Entity loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in Income and Expenditure Statement. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1.6) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or joint venture (see note 1.5).

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 1.9.2), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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Associates and Joint Ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Consolidated Entity or the University has significant influence, but not control or joint

control, over its management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Consolidated Entity or the University and other parties contractually agree to

share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Consolidated Entity’s share of
the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Consolidated Entity’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 1.9). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Consolidated Entity’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Statement, whereas the Consolidated Entity’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax

items of the investee’s other comprehensive income is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Associates and Joint Ventures (Cont'd)

When the Consolidated Entity’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the joint venture, the Consolidated
Entity’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Consolidated
Entity has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Consolidated Entity’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Consolidated
Entity’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the Consolidated Entity’s net investment in the associate or the joint
venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Consolidated Entity and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Consolidated Entity’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in the Income and
Expenditure Statement.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, retained investment is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases, when the Consolidated Entity
ceases to have significant influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair

value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1.6).

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position, investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 1.9.2), unless classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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@ 1.6 OtherlInvestmentsin Debt and Equity Securities
The Consolidated Entity’s and the University’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:
Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:
1.6.1 Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

(@) Investments in equity securities are classified as FVPL. Changes in the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement.

(b) Debt securities held for the collection of contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from the investment is calculated using the effective
interest method.
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1.6 Other Investmentsin Debt and Equity Securities(Cont'd)

1.6.2

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

(@) Investments in securities held for trading were classified as financial assets measured at FVPL. Any
attributable transaction costs were recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in

the Income and Expenditure Statement.

(b)  Dated debt securities that the Consolidated Entity and/or University have the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity were classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at

amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 1.9.1).

() Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured were recognised in the Statement of Financial

Position at cost less impairment losses (see note 1.9.1).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Consolidated Entity and University commits to purchase/

sell the investments or they expire.
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Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1.9.2).

The cost of a fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.
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1.7 Fixed Assets (Cont'd)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed asset are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement on

the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the

straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

- Buildings

Building Structures situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years after the date of completion.

Building Services Installation are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years after the date of completion where the assets are situated.

- Furniture, Equipment & Fittings 3 - 20 Years

- Library Collections 5-10 Years
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Fixed Assets (Cont'd)

Leasehold land granted by the Governments of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) for usage by the Consolidated Entity and University is recorded at a nominal amount.

Where parts of a fixed asset item have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other equipment under construction and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 1.9.2), and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed

assets when completed and ready for use.

Leased Assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Consolidated Entity and
University determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the

arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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The University owns two campus buildings and a teaching hotel which are leased to Hong Kong Community College and Hotel ICON Limited, subsidiaries of
the University, respectively. These leases are classified as operating leases while the buildings are classified as leased assets.

ARBHENMERERFR-—FABEEHNEETMAMNBEAI-SBFLERNEBEERAT - ZHERARIKENE  MABFYERBRRAEE
BE




BABIFSIRE 2018/19 47

1.8 Leased Assets (Cont'd)

1.8

@ Classification of assets leased to the Consolidated Entity and University
Assets that are held by the Consolidated Entity and University under leases which transfer to the Consolidated Entity
and University substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Consolidated Entity and
University are classified as operating leases.

(b) Assets Held for Use in Operating Leases
Where the Consolidated Entity and University lease out assets under operating leases, the assets are included in the
Statement of Financial Position according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with
the Consolidated Entity’s and University’s depreciation policies. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 1.9.2. Revenue arising from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with the revenue recognition policies as set out in note 1.19.7.

(c) Operating Lease Charges
Where the Consolidated Entity and University have the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the Income and
Expenditure Statement in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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1.9 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets

1.9.1

Credit losses from financial instruments

1.9.1.1 Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

The Consolidated Entity and University recognise a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on
debt securities, cash and deposits with banks, accounts and other receivables and staff loans measured at

amortised cost.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including fixed income securities and equity securities measured at

FVPL, are not subject to ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Consolidated Entity and
University in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Consolidated Entity and University

expect to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following discount rates where the effect of discounting

is material:

- Fixed-rate financial assets, accounts and other receivables: effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;

- Variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the

Consolidated Entity and University are exposed to credit risk.
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1.9 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.9.1 Credit losses from financial instruments (Cont’d)
1.9.1.1 Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Cont'd)

In measuring ECLs, the Consolidated Entity and University take into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about past events,

current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and

- Lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default events over

the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Consolidated Entity and University compare the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Consolidated Entity and University consider that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Consolidated Entity and University in full,
without recourse by the Consolidated Entity and University to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Consolidated Entity and University consider both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience

and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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1.9 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.9.1 Credit losses from financial instruments (Cont’d)

1.9.1.1 Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Cont'd)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

Failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

An actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and
Existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Consolidated
Entity and University.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk

is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a

collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as

past due status and credit risk ratings.
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1.9 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.9.1

Credit losses from financial instruments (Cont’d)

1.9.1.1 Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Cont'd)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss. The Consolidated Entity and University recognise an impairment gain or loss for all financial

instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

For staff loans and accounts and other receivables measured at amortised cost, the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs), which are those losses that are

expected to occur over the expected life of the account and other receivables.

For all other financial instruments measured at amortised cost, the Consolidated Entity and University
recognise a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.9.1 Credit losses from financial instruments (Cont’d)

1.9.1.1 Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Cont'd)

BEERME(HE)

The loss allowance is estimated using a provision matrix based on the Consolidated Entity’s and University’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors or financial instrument

and an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Consolidated Entity and University
determine that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in

Income and Expenditure Statement in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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1.9 Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.9.1 Credit losses from financial instruments (Cont’d)

1.9.1.2 Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

1.9 BERME(E)

Prior to 1 July 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used to measure impairment losses on debt and equity
securities and other current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost. Under
the “incurred loss” model, an impairment loss was recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment included:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss was determined and recognised as follows:

For accounts receivable and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, impairment loss was measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting was material. This assessment was made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and had not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which were
assessed for impairment collectively were based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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1.9 Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.9.1 Credit losses from financial instruments (Cont’d)

1.9.1.2

19 BERE(HE)

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018 (Cont'd)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease could be linked

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss was reversed
through the Income and Expenditure Statement. A reversal of an impairment loss should not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other financial assets carried at amortised cost was considered
doubtful but not remote, associated impairment losses were recorded using an allowance account. When
the Consolidated Entity and University were satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against the gross carrying amount of those assets directly. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account were reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

directly were recognised in Income and Expenditure Statement.
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1.9 Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.9.2

Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

(a)  Fixed Assets; and

(b)  Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures in the University’s Statement of Financial Position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
the Income and Expenditure Statement in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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1.10

1.10

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.
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Accounts and Other Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Consolidated Entity and University have an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration

is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1.9.1).

Interest-bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is

recognised in accordance with the Consolidated Entity and University accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Accounts and Other Payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect

of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-refundable consideration before the Consolidated Entity and
University recognise the related revenue (see note 1.19). A contract liability would also be recognised if the Consolidated
Entity and University have an unconditional right to receive non-refundable consideration before the Consolidated Entity
and University recognise the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note
1.11).

FEURBRIE

[EISGRIAIR ARG e TE A BRI BV RS 1D - WWRAEMIZABHIR ZEIRFRIGE —BISRE - EBEAERENR2E
ERAFEY

[EISGRIRIRAERR LA E BB E R - MR Ast8(RMsE1.9.1) -
AtRfER

éJrgthﬂﬁﬁfmgﬁimfﬂﬁ?ﬁ?&%ﬁizﬁ?ﬁﬁi% o RMESDE - st RERAERFEKEIZBBENASE - AISHAZRBEFESER
BEEMA ST PERES ©

FEATBRTR
[EASBRIRSFGIRASEENESD - HRRIREENASE  EENRIEBLAEX  BHRBSIZMNASE -
BHERE

RIFE IR ASHEBBRIWAR - BSP A PRENNEFERSHEE(RMEE.19) - WRIFS IR ASEEBABRIIA
280 BEEMEIRaBREAENER - BIEBSHR(E - E@iER T » BENEIERIB AR (RHIEE1.11) -



58 PolyU Financial Report 2018/19

1.15 Cash and Cash Equivalents

1.16

1.15

1.16

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,

and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents

are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note 1.9.

Employee Benefits

1.16.1

1.16.2

Short Term Employee Benefits and Contributions to Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes

Salaries, annual bonuses, staff leave entitlements, contract gratuity, contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme Obligations

The Consolidated Entity’s and University’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement schemes is calculated
separately for each scheme by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present value and the fair value
of any scheme assets is deducted. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Consolidated Entity and University, the recognised asset
is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the scheme or

reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
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1.16 Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

1.16.2 Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme Obligations (Cont'd)

Service cost and net interest expense/income on the net defined benefit liability/asset are recognised in the Income
and Expenditure Statement. Current service cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a scheme are
changed, or when a scheme is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by employees,
or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as an expense in the Income and Expenditure Statement at the
earlier of when the scheme amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination
benefits are recognised. Net interest expense/income for the period is determined by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to the net defined
benefit liability/asset. The discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Consolidated Entity’s and University’s obligations.
Since there are limited issues of high quality corporate bonds in Hong Kong Dollar, the yields of Exchange Fund

Notes and Government Bonds denominated in Hong Kong Dollar are used as a reference to set the discount rate.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement schemes are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on scheme assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling

(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset).

1.16.3 Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Consolidated Entity and University can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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1.17

1.18

1.19

1.17

1.18

1.19

Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax which is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Consolidated Entity or the University has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue Recognition

Income is classified by the Consolidated Entity and University as revenue when it arises from the sale of goods, the provision

of services or the use by others of the Consolidated Entity’s and University’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the

Consolidated Entity’s and University’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use
the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Consolidated Entity and University is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.
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1.19 Revenue Recognition (Cont'd)

@ 1.19.1

1.19.2

Government Subventions

Matching grants are recognised as income when the grants have been received or are receivable from the University
Grants Committee (“UGC”). Other government subventions are initially recognised as Deferred Income when they

are received.

Recurrent grants other than earmarked grants for specific purposes are recognised as income to the extent of the
related expenditure incurred plus any such grants, which are received in excess of the related expenditure incurred
but are required to be transferred to General and Development Reserve Fund and Research Funds in the reporting

period in accordance with prevailing UGC guidelines.

Earmarked grants for specific purposes are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred

during the reporting period.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for specific purpose spent on capital expenditure are initially recorded as
Deferred Capital Funds and recognised as income over the useful lives of the related assets when the assets are put

into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

Government grants in the form of leasehold land are recognised as income at a nominal amount.

Tuition and Other Fees

Tuition and other fees are recognised on an accrual basis over the duration of the courses. Unearned tuition fees are
treated as contract liabilities.
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© Apart from following the HKFRSs, the University is also required to observe UGC Notes on Procedures governing the use of respective grants and treatment for
any excess/shortfall of grants over expenditure. In accordance with such prevailing guidelines, surplus Block Grants and Supplementary Grants/Adjustments
received from UGC but not yet spent at the year end date are transferred to the General and Development Reserve Fund (included in UGC Funds (note 11)).
Any surplus of Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes can only be carried forward after approval is received from UGC.
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1.19 Revenue Recognition (Cont'd)

1.19

1.19.3 Interest Income and Investment Gain
Interest income from the investment of unspent Hostel Development Funds are initially recognised as Deferred
Income as it accrues. It is recorded as Deferred Capital Funds when spent on capital expenditure and recognised
as income over the useful lives of the related assets when the assets are put into use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expenses incurred for that period.
Other interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset. The fair value of financial assets carried at FVPL are remeasured at the end of the reporting
period and recognised as investment gain or loss.

1.19.4 Dividend Income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

1.19.5 Donations
Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment instruments for general purposes are recognised as
income when it is probable that they will be received, which is generally upon receipt of cash.
Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment instruments for specific purposes are initially recognised
as Deferred Income when received. They are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred
during the reporting period.
Donations of fixed assets are recognised as income in the period when the depreciation of related fixed assets is
charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement.

1.19.6 Service Income
Service income including income from hotel operations is recognised at the time when the relevant services are
rendered.
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1.19 Revenue Recognition (Cont'd)

@® 1.19.7 Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the
Income and Expenditure Statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

1.19.8 Sales Income

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of and accepts the products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods and/or services, then the amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under the contract, allocated between all the goods and services promised

under the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Revenue from sales of goods was recognised on a similar basis in the comparative period under HKAS 18.
1.20 Research Expenditure

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and

understanding, is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

1.21 Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Income and Expenditure
Statement.

119 AR (48)
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@ Rental income is mainly derived from the two campus buildings and a teaching hotel (note 1.8) which are leased to Hong Kong Community College and Hotel
ICON Limited respectively.
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1.21

1.21

Translation of Foreign Currencies (Cont'd)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. The assets and liabilities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income and accumulated in Fund Balances.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in Fund Balances which
relate to that foreign operation is reclassified from Fund Balances to the Income and Expenditure Statement when profit or

loss on disposal is recognised.
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1.22 Related Parties

1.22

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Consolidated Entity or University if that person:

(M)
(i)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Consolidated Entity or University;
has significant influence over the Consolidated Entity or University; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Consolidated Entity or University or the Consolidated

Entity’s parent.

An entity is related to the Consolidated Entity or University if any of the following conditions applies:

(@)

(viii)

The entity and the Consolidated Entity or University are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Consolidated Entity or

University or an entity related to the Consolidated Entity or University.
The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the
Consolidated Entity or University or to the Consolidated Entity’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,

that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Income and Expenditure by Segment
DERRA R B 32

Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the UGC SORP and are not designed to fully comply

with the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating segments.

In accordance with SORP, the University discloses an analysis of income and expenditure recognised by its reported segments
that are defined by source of funding, namely UGC-funded Activities and Non-UGC-funded Activities.

In fulfilment of its missions, the University engages in activities funded by various sources. The University has been in
compliance with the requirement as stipulated in the UGC’s Notes on Procedures that there should be no cross-subsidisation
of UGC resources to non-UGC-funded activities. With effect from the year ended 30 June 2019, the University has adopted
the Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded Activities (CAGs) issued by UGC. The cost allocation
methodology was not adopted retrospectively for the year ended 30 June 2018. The cost allocation methodology for the year
ended 30 June 2018 is stated in the financial report 2017/2018.

The University’s cost allocation methodology for the year ended 30 June 2019 is as follows:

Academic assignments are allocated among staff members according to their expertise under a total workload concept.
Workload plan of individual academic staff is prepared, collected and validated as the basis for allocating academic staff cost
to different institutional activities and funding sources. In addition, the cost of visiting lecturers and full-time staff on extra

workload basis is charged directly to the self-financed programmes.

Most buildings on the main campus of the University are for mixed uses. The premises and related cost, including building
depreciation, is allocated to various institutional activities and funding sources by room booking information for bookable
premises such as classroom, or by various appropriate cost drivers for non-bookable premises such as student amenities space

and office space.

Except for the non-staffing cost directly attributable to research projects and self-financed programmes, all other non-academic
staff cost and non-staffing cost incurred by academic departments and the cost of the overseeing faculty office are allocated
to academic departments and further to institutional activities and various funding sources by appropriate and relevant cost

drivers.
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Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)
DEBRARERX (48 )

The central cost is assigned to academic departments by various cost drivers according to the nature of the central administrative
departments and further allocated to different institutional activities and funding sources by the proportion of the total cost

incurred by academic departments.
Below is the classification of reported segments in accordance with UGC CAGs for the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019:

(@)  UGC-funded Activities
UGC-funded Activities include programmes and research projects supported by UGC grants. UGC grants represent the

major funding source of the University and the core roles of the University are to support the UGC-funded activities.

According to the UGC CAGs, certain activities with non-UGC funding sources, e.g. projects funded by government
bureaux which complement teaching, research and student activities for the benefit of UGC-funded students and/or
enhancement of UGC-funded programmes, can be deemed to be UGC-funded activities. As such, income and expenditure

for these deemed UGC-funded activities are also reported as UGC-funded Activities in the segment reporting.

(b)  Non-UGC-funded Activities

Non-UGC-funded Activities, excluding those deemed UGC-funded activities, represent other activities funded by

sources other than UGC, including self-financed funds and donations.

The above classification of UGC-funded Activities and non-UGC-funded Activities in the segment reporting for the year ended
30 June 2018 has been revised to report the income and expenditure of deemed UGC-funded activities as UGC-funded

Activities to conform with the latest segment reporting format.
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2. Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

DEBA RS (48)

2.1 Consolidated Income and Expenditure by Segment

AR B

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Income
@ Covernment Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions
Other Income

Expenditure

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General

Premises and
Related Expenses

Student and General
Educational Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

(Deficit)/Surplus from Operations
Share of Loss of an Associate
Share of Losses of Joint Ventures
(Deficit)/Surplus before Taxation
Income Tax
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income

for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer from UGC Funds
Transfer (from)/to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

(AFBst)
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2019
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
FEHESEEH
UGC-Funded  Self-financing Donation

Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Total

HEz BEaRE PS8R . )
BEENEE) Nt & 2D /Gt #ast
3,838,738 17,063 - 17,063 3,855,801
830,991 1,536,124 1,536,124 2,367,115
104,198 156,798 41,637 198,435 302,633
788 134,650 135,438 135,438

97,369 778,824 3,165 781,989 879,358
4,871,296 2,489,597 179,452 2,669,049 7,540,345
3,098,401 822,682 87,867 910,549 4,008,950
132,471 49,005 325 49,330 181,801
171,021 59,004 - 59,004 230,025
320,251 89,652 5,203 94,855 415,106
281,642 142,473 1,082 143,555 425,197
798,749 310,996 20,692 331,688 1,130,437
210,700 119,850 35,685 155,535 366,235
382 338,012 - 338,012 338,394
5,013,617 1,931,674 150,854 2,082,528 7,096,145
- 1,525 - 1,525 1,525
5,013,617 1,933,199 150,854 2,084,053 7,097,670
(142,321) 556,398 28,598 584,996 442,675
- (732) - (732) (732)
(142,321) 555,666 28,598 584,264 441,943
(1,919) (1,919) (1,919)

(142,321) 553,747 28,598 582,345 440,024
(17,297) (8,530) - (8,530) (25,827)
(159,618) 545,217 28,598 573,815 414,197
(37,664) (175,362) (59,006) (234,368) (272,032)
(74,476) . - - (74,476)
(47,478) 720,579 87,604 808,183 760,705
(159,618) 545,217 28,598 573,815 414,197

@ The Government Subventions in UGC-Funded Activities included subventions from UGC and other government bureaux/departments. For details, please refer to note 3.
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2. Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)
DEBUR AR FAZ (48 )
2.1 Consolidated Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)
mEREORKX (4E)

2018
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
IEHESETH

UGC-Funded  Self-financing Donation
Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Total
nED BaRE FriS1aR
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MF87t51) EENEE])] a8 5D INET st
Income A
@ Government Subventions BT HER 3,628,707 15,609 - 15,609 3,644,316
Tuition and Other Fees LEREMER 836,259 1,524,250 - 1,524,250 2,360,509
Interest and Investment Gain FBAIGE U 89,815 149,497 24,161 173,658 263,473
Donations and Benefactions ESLEYSEEEAN - 1,518 209,073 210,591 210,591
Other Income EABIRA 100,141 773,309 1,947 775,256 875,397
4,654,922 2,464,183 235,181 2,699,364 7,354,286
Expenditure sz
Teaching, Learning and Research ~ #2 « 2B KRR
Teaching and Research HERRIGH 2,859,105 961,132 80,404 1,041,536 3,900,641
Library BB 137,058 43,878 280 44158 181,216
Central Computing Facilities cPIREBAERNE 167,752 58,460 - 58,460 226,212
Other Academic Services Hib BB R 304,773 77,300 6,045 83,345 388,118
Institutional Support HWETIE
Management and General EER—KEE 254,439 139,365 3,616 142,981 397,420
Premises and RER
Related Expenses BEES 902,984 313,612 26,775 340,387 1,243,371
Student and General SR’
Educational Services HER 209,266 106,999 25,931 132,930 342,196
Other Activities Hith)E&h 6,892 346,692 - 346,692 353,584
4,842,269 2,047,438 143,051 2,190,489 7,032,758
Finance Costs BIBER - 6,441 - 6,441 6,441
4,842,269 2,053,879 143,051 2,196,930 7,039,199
(Deficit)/Surplus from Operations  &iE(E518)/&REF (187,347) 410,304 92,130 502,434 315,087
Share of Loss of an Associate fEIEEENTDESE - 47) - (47) 47)
Share of Losses of Joint Ventures fEIEEE N TESE - (2,411) - (2,411) (2,411)
(Deficit)/Surplus before Taxation FRIRBU(ES1E)/ RER (187,347) 407,846 92,130 499,976 312,629
Income Tax Fr{SR - (3,136) - (3,136) (3,136)
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year KREE (B18)/RER (187,347) 404,710 92,130 496,840 309,493
Other Comprehensive Income FEA
for the Year Hith2=B®IS 9,121 4,267 - 4,267 13,388
Total Comprehensive Income FENR
for the Year BT (178,226) 408,977 92,130 501,107 322,881
Attributable to: BRI
Transfer from Restricted Funds NEES (35,697) (64,328) (50,567) (114,895) (150,592)
Transfer from UGC Funds HESES (134,621) - - - (134,621)
Transfer (from)/to Other Funds HihEE (7,908) 473,305 142,697 616,002 608,094
Total Comprehensive Income =
for the Year BE|EINES (178,226) 408,977 92,130 501,107 322,881

@ The Government Subventions in UGC-Funded Activities included subventions from UGC and other government bureaux/departments. For details, please refer to note 3.
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2. Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

DEBA R (48)

2.2 University Income and Expenditure by Segment

REDEBKSZ

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Income

@® Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions

Other Income

Expenditure

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General

Premises and
Related Expenses

Student and General
Educational Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

(Deficit)/Surplus before Taxation
Income Tax

(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer from UGC Funds
Transfer (from)/to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

(U F87TET)
AN
AT AR
LERHER
LSRN =g
IR RIB
A

Fisz
HE BB KA
HE KR
S
PR EBELIE
HithZEmRHS
WEE

BER—IRE

KSR
BB

BER R
WER
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WHEM

FRIRBI(EIR) BER
e
AFE(EE)EER

FER
Hith 2 BIES

g
REBUES

BB
HWEE=E
HEEES
HipE=E

i3
Rz B

2019
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
EZEEE
UGC-Funded  Self-financing Donation
Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Total
HED BeRE FT{S185

BEENEE M) )] INET 5
3,838,738 - - - 3,838,738
830,991 728,084 - 728,084 1,559,075
104,198 135,576 41,637 177,213 281,411

- - 234,650 234,650 234,650

97,369 412,061 3,165 415,226 512,595
4,871,296 1,275,721 279,452 1,555,173 6,426,469
3,098,401 499,677 87,867 587,544 3,685,945
132,471 25,126 325 25,451 157,922
171,021 20,874 - 20,874 191,895
320,251 36,396 5,203 41,599 361,850
281,642 63,993 1,082 65,075 346,717
798,749 175,143 20,692 195,835 994,584
210,700 48,033 35,685 83,718 294,418
382 13,314 - 13,314 13,696
5,013,617 882,556 150,854 1,033,410 6,047,027
- 1,525 - 1,525 1,525
5,013,617 884,081 150,854 1,034,935 6,048,552
(142,321) 391,640 128,598 520,238 377,917
- (1,919) - (1,919) (1,919)
(142,321) 389,721 128,598 518,319 375,998
(17,297) (2,656) - (2,656) (19,953)
(159,618) 387,065 128,598 515,663 356,045
(37,664) (137,899) (59,006) (196,905) (234,569)
(74,476) . . . (74,476)
(47,478) 524,964 187,604 712,568 665,090
(159,618) 387,065 128,598 515,663 356,045

@ The Government Subventions in UGC-Funded Activities included subventions from UGC and other government bureaux/departments. For details, please refer to note 3.

HESEHTHNRTENBERESREMBFIPINER - BRIFTIE @ #SRMES -




2. Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

DEBBR AR (48 )

2.2 University Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

REDERKZ (#8)

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Income
@® Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions

Other Income

Expenditure
Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services
Institutional Support

Management and General

Premises and
Related Expenses

Student and General
Educational Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

(Deficit)/Surplus before Taxation
Income Tax

(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer from UGC Funds
Transfer (from)/to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

BAEIF5IRE 2018/19

n

2018
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
IENESETE
UGC-Funded  Self-financing Donation
Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Total
HEY BaRE FTiS18%
(AF8T5t) ECU)EED) M) NEEl INET a5t
Y9N
AT SR 3,628,707 - 3,628,707
BEREMER 836,259 729,555 - 729,555 1,565,814
M BRRBIS 89,815 133,820 24,161 157,981 247,796
BRRIER - - 319,073 319,073 319,073
EABIIA 100,141 402,404 1,947 404,351 504,492
4,654,922 1,265,779 345,181 1,610,960 6,265,882
Fis2
HE& - BERRIH
HWE R R 2,859,105 659,905 80,404 740,309 3,599,414
B 137,058 19,582 280 19,862 156,920
PREASTINE 167,752 18,777 - 18,777 186,529
HAbHBARFS 304,773 27137 6,045 33,182 337,955
HETIE
Bk —IEE 254,439 68,969 3,616 72,585 327,024
RER
BRIRSS 902,984 187,807 26,775 214,582 1,117,566
BER
HBERS 209,266 41,471 25,931 67,402 276,668
HithiEED 6,892 (37) - (37) 6,855
4,842,269 1,023,611 143,051 1,166,662 6,008,931
HHBER - 6,441 - 6,441 6,441
4,842,269 1,030,052 143,051 1,173,103 6,015,372
PRIRBI(ES1E)/ BER (187,347) 235,727 202,130 437,857 250,510
FT{SHR - (2,964) - (2,964) (2,964)
REE (E518)/BER (187,347) 232,763 202,130 434,893 247,546
FER
Hip2 B 9,121 - - - 9,121
Efgl*_]
L EUIS (178,226) 232,763 202,130 434,893 256,667
BER:
ﬁﬁﬁ‘f (35,697) (64,328) (50,567) (114,895) (150,592)
HESH (134,621) - - - (134,621)
,Jm%ff (7,908) 297,091 252,697 549,788 541,880
FER
AN (178,226) 232,763 202,130 434,893 256,667

FSREMEES -

@ The Government Subventions in UGC-Funded Activities included subventions from UGC and other government bureaux/departments. For details, please refer to note 3.

HESEHTHNRTENBERESREMBTEPINEL) - BRISTIS -
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. Government Subventions

BUR SR

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Subventions from UGC
@ Block Grants
Grants Received

Less: Provisional Virement-out for
Home Financing Scheme (“HFS*)
& Housing-related Expenses
other than HFS

Additions of Fixed Assets

@® Transfer from Deferred Capital Funds
in respect of Depreciation Charge
for the year

@ Net Supplementary Grants

Earmarked Grants
University Grants Committee
Home Financing Scheme (HFS)
Housing-related Expenses
other than HFS
Knowledge Transfer

Additional Clinical Placement for the
Allied Health Programmes

Allocation of Additional Funding to
Institutions

Funding Scheme for Teaching and
Learning Related Initiatives in
2012-2015 Triennium

Funding Scheme for Teaching and
Learning Related Initiatives in
2016-2019 Triennium

Special Grant to Enhance the Support for

Students with Special Education Needs

Special Grant for Handling the Staffing
Consequences of Phasing-out of the
Sub-degree Programmes

Enhancement of the Joint Institutions Job
Information System (JIJIS)

Funding Support for the Implementation
of UGC Cost Allocation Guidelines

Others

Research Grants Council
General Research Fund
Early Career Scheme Fund
Collaborative Research Fund
Theme-based Research Scheme
Others

@ Rates and Government Rent Refund

Capital Grants and Alterations,
Additions, Repairs, and Improvements
(“AA&I") Block Allocations

@ Grants from Government Agencies

(AT BT
HEBEE
sEmaS
ElmEE
I B TSR E)
SHER RS
A REEARIR
SoisERERIE
BraEeE
B
BEEARSH
FEBIFE

FIEHERENE

IBEREHEE
Hesg

[BATERNSTBIHFS)

FRErERNsEIINREE
BB

FEIER G mENE

B SEHRAES
e

DS TR
TBIMBENE

201222015489
B YuE=
wENE

2016201948
B YaES
wEIE

SRR E TR
RIMENE

RIERSE S EUESI &ML
REHHBEXEN
RIEE

DOSEEESHEAS TIF
ERFRHONIS)
BITHESMARD
165109HENE
Hitb

EM=EIIS]
BRECHITEE
BREEFEEsE
BIEFEE
ERETFUTE
Hith

RS Z 80 R BUTIRAE
EEMEE RO

D02 ~ HEER
NETIRRERER

DU S,

Consolidated #75

University K22

2019 2018 2019 2018
2,889,282 2,859,230 2,889,282 2,859,230

(68,849) (73,140) (68,849) (73,140)

(106,366) (152,032) (106,366) (152,032)
158,202 206,503 158,202 206,503
2,872,269 2,840,561 2,872,269 2,840,561
319,031 200,032 319,031 200,032
3,191,300 3,040,593 3,191,300 3,040,593
1,666 1,901 1,666 1,901
3,841 4,537 3,841 4,537
9,667 8,974 9,667 8,974
9,003 11,803 9,003 11,803
1,858 7,504 1,858 7,504
510 3,558 510 3,558
11,493 4,762 11,493 4,762
678 88 678 88
745 134 745 134
564 - 564 -
2,405 9,438 2,405 9,438
24 246 24 246
42,454 52,945 42,454 52,945
80,259 87,957 80,259 87,957
16,014 16,872 16,014 16,872
6,605 3,603 6,605 3,603
10,331 8,518 10,331 8,518
10,444 7,683 10,444 7,683
123,653 124,633 123,653 124,633
62,190 59,634 62,190 59,634
180,558 147,145 180,558 147,145
3,600,155 3,424,950 3,600,155 3,424,950
255,646 219,366 238,583 203,757
3,855,801 3,644,316 3,838,738 3,628,707




4,

Tuition and Other Fees

BEREMKE

Consolidated 55

AR E 2018/19 73

University K&

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFEst) 2019 2018 2019 2018
® UGC-funded Programmes HEZEANRE
Tuition Fees BB 818,344 824,717 818,344 824,717
Other Fees HbIE 12,648 11,542 12,648 11,542
830,992 836,259 830,992 836,259
Non-UGC-funded Programmes IFHNESERIZ
Tuition Fees BEIIN 1,501,673 1,495,227 703,866 708,428
Other Fees Hiblg & 34,450 29,023 24,217 21,127
1,536,123 1,524,250 728,083 729,555
2,367,115 2,360,509 1,559,075 1,565,814
5. Interestand Investment Gain
B E W
Consolidated =& University A£2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF8cst) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Interest Income FBUIA 129,075 89,541 108,596 75,389
Net Realised and Unrealised BIRRAREIR
Gain on Investment Portfolio HEREIFIES 173,558 173,932 172,815 172,407
302,633 263,473 281,411 247,796

@ Block Grants are resources allocated to the University for basic infrastructure, teaching and research activities for a funding period, usually a triennium, without
precise requirements attached in support of subvented activities.

ERBDTRBTEIRRERBESR=ZFNIFERER ASRMTAENED  AESIWRBRRMERL  HEBHDSVABRRAESIELTE)
BB -

@ Government grants received during the year which have been spent on fixed assets are not immediately recognised as income but are transferred to Deferred
Capital Funds. An amount equivalent to the depreciation charge of the related assets is recognised as income during the period in which the depreciation
incurs.

BEIEERTEENENRRASEWEIREFESEBR/WA » MBERERLEEFAEST  WHEBHEEEENERIGRAZIRITENTREDRUIA -

@ In accordance with the prevailing UGC guidelines, Supplementary Grants and/or Supplementary Adjustments will be provided on top of Block Grants for
changes in salary level with reference to civil service pay revisions. Supplementary Grants reflect an upward revision when the Government revises civil
service pay upward while Supplementary Adjustments reflect a downward revision. Net Supplementary Grants is the excess of Supplementary Grants over
Supplementary Adjustments.

RBEHRESNES|  ABBRABEFHMNAEMEENS THNSHEREMBDESIINESIEHMESI/EHBE - ERFLALBEHH - XA2SEEIE
WHEDE  BRATHAAKEFH  RESHENNSELHNIEHAE - FIBAADSRICHRNSTSRISHBENETE -
@ Rates and Government Rent paid for buildings and properties occupied by the University for education purpose (note 8.2 under Premises and Related

Expenses) are fully refunded by the Government.
FRABRUSHENEHNEARTRPEMATOEMAR BT IE (T8 2RSSR BHEMAR) PIBBN 2 ERE -

Grants from Government Agencies include grants received from Hong Kong and Chinese mainland government agencies.

LUS#E B BB E BN PEAMEUTHBLINEIBBER

The Government provided tuition fee waiver for all local students enrolled in UGC-funded Research Postgraduate programmes for 2018/19 academic year. A
total of $7.6 million was received from UGC for all eligible students and included in the tuition fee income for the year ended 30 June 2019.
WERR2018/1IBFE NBEHESENNERNARENNBA B ERHUBERR - BE2019F683081LFE  SBEWAREBMESEBSEHILEIN
760BBTHESER °
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® 6. Donations and Benefactions

BEERIBR

Consolidated #78 University K&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF8BTsth) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Donations for Research Activities RIS ENEED 41,956 34,704 41,956 34,704
Scholarship, Bursaries, Prizes and Loan REE  HEE BERBEE 14,809 25,107 14,061 23,631
Capital Projects 22188 13,001 19,927 13,001 19,927
Others Hith 65,672 130,853 165,632 240,811

135,438 210,591 234,650 319,073

Donations received from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust and The Hong Kong Jockey Club were $13.3 million (2018: $14.9
million) and RMB 2.6 million (2018: RMB 2.4 million) respectively for the year ended 30 June 2019.

BHZE2019F68308LLFE SBETSHRSCHTETNEBERSERDFIR1,3308855(2018 : 1,4908855)F2608 AR
(2018 : 240 ARHEE) ©

7. Other Income

HAhUTA
Consolidated #z& University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF87Tsth) 2019 2018 2019 2018
@ Service Income BRFBUIN 643,599 650,240 189,751 189,424

Student Hostels B4EES 80,653 81,768 80,653 81,783

Contract Research RFSH 54,471 65,165 54,471 65,165

Rental Income FRBUIA 19,637 16,630 125,614 121,277

Rental Contributions from Staff HHsEEES 3,151 3,504 3,151 3,504

Others Hib 77,847 58,090 58,955 43,339

879,358 875,397 512,595 504,492

@® Donations with specific purpose follow the accounting treatment for government grants. They are recognised as income when the related expenditure has
been incurred. Including sponsorship income and donations without designated purposes recognised as income upon their receipt, a total sum of $135.4
million (2018: $210.6 million) and $234.7 million (2018: $319.1 million) are recognised as donation income at the Consolidated and University level
respectively in 2018/19 as shown in the above note 6. Donations received on cash basis for the Consolidated Entity and the University during the year were
$77.3 million (2018: $172.9 million) and $176.5 million (2018: $281.3 million) respectively.

BREBZNBBRBIAERNSSIRIEDE  EEMMASEERFZBBZI B/ - WERHIEMT  BERBRBEBESERBAWNANESEHEN
BRRERTRENRE  FERRASR2018/19FEEBAKANBIBOBIR1.354EB (2018 @ 2.1068875) R2.347{F85(2018 : 31918 T) © £7
SRRAZBRAFEWEINIRZIRBD B1/R0.773855(2018 : 1.729855)F01.7658850(2018 : 2.813{F87T) ©

@® Service income of the University mainly represents income from self-financed centres/clinics and sub-contracting service income received from subsidiaries.
Consolidated service income mainly includes income from consultancy and hotel operation.

FROBRBUANEIRBEEEZEP VDAV NARBEMEBATIZEHRBUN < FERBUNTRRIEB[RBEEBWN -




8. Expenditure

s

8.1 Analysis of Expenditure
<D

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research

Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities

Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Educational Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure excluding
Finance Costs and Income Tax

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research

Teaching and Research
Library

Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Educational Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure excluding
Finance Costs and Income Tax

(UFBTsh)

W2 BB AT
BRI
BE:
PREBFENE
EHERSS

WETIE
gk —IEE
& R BRRS
BER—RBER
Hitn)58)

WHER KSR
DIINBRASZ

(787551

B BB
HERK R
BE88
PREBJERIE
HihH BT

HELE
BIER—RIAE
RS R ARIRZ
BER—BHERE
HitE58)

WHERRMSR
DAINRBRESZ

BAEIF5IRE 2018/19

Consolidated #5258

2019
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
SR BiEh%
Rkl (Pf5E8.2) e #Bst
3,148,686 733,625 126,639 4,008,950
88,316 81,048 12,437 181,801
137,972 66,303 25,750 230,025
304,129 106,143 4,834 415,106
3,679,103 987,119 169,660 4,835,882
319,414 100,324 5,459 425,197
205,986 622,229 302,222 1,130,437
116,685 248,380 1,170 366,235
154,384 177,086 6,924 338,394
796,469 1,148,019 315,775 2,260,263
4,475,572 2,135,138 485,435 7,096,145
Consolidated 78
2018
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2) Depreciation Total
HHEM= BB
Kigkl (fg518.2) e 85t
3,063,855 716,666 120,120 3,900,641
86,689 80,878 13,649 181,216
132,509 64,581 29,122 226,212
287,454 96,827 3,837 388,118
3,570,507 958,952 166,728 4,696,187
304,900 90,019 2,501 397,420
206,352 725,791 311,228 1,243,371
116,679 224,181 1,336 342,196
149,874 197,009 6,701 353,584
777,805 1,237,000 321,766 2,336,571
4,348,312 2,195,952 488,494 7,032,758

75
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8. Expenditure (Cont'd)
FsZ (4)

8.1 Analysis of Expenditure (Cont'd)

oM (48)

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research
@ Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
@ Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Educational Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure excluding
Finance Costs and Income Tax

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research

Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities

Other Academic Services

Institutional Support

Management and General

Premises and Related Expenses

Student and General Educational Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure excluding
Finance Costs and Income Tax

(b F 5551

W2 BBERAT
BRI
B8
hREBAGERIE
EAHEMRSS

HETE
BER—IAE
WERBREMZ
BER—RBER
Hitn)58)

WHER RSN
BIINBRASZ

(UFBTsh)

B2 BBERAT
HE K P
BE:
SPREBFLNE
EHERSS

HETIE
EER—IEE
ES)=E=lalEE
BER—RHERS
EihiEE)

WHERRMSHR
DAINBRASZ

University K&

2019
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
WS EiEh%
Rigkl (bg5%8.2) e s
2,823,359 736,914 125,672 3,685,945
78,364 70,581 8,977 157,922
116,777 57,052 18,066 191,895
271,027 87,282 3,541 361,850
3,289,527 951,829 156,256 4,397,612
265,236 80,756 725 346,717
162,518 542,148 289,918 994,584
103,179 190,166 1,073 294,418
263 13,433 - 13,696
531,196 826,503 291,716 1,649,415
3,820,723 1,778,332 447,972 6,047,027
University K2
2018
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
SR EERR
Rk (fig518.2) e #ast
2,760,659 719,532 119,223 3,599,414
77,155 70,123 9,642 156,920
112,566 54,993 18,970 186,529
255,752 79,611 2,592 337,955
3,206,132 924,259 150,427 4,280,818
253,583 72,880 561 327,024
160,401 659,478 297,687 1,117,566
104,254 171,181 1,233 276,668
29 6,826 - 6,855
518,267 910,365 299,481 1,728,113
3,724,399 1,834,624 449,908 6,008,931
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8. Expenditure (Cont'd)

< (%)
8.2 Analysis of Operating Expenses
EER DM
Consolidated #7& University A2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF87551) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Teaching, Learning and Research  #{£3 « E3Z2 & RIFff
Teaching and Research HERN
Office and Equipment Expenses BEPIR S HFEs 247,942 253,342 243,108 247,000
Research Activities IS ED 237,872 225,014 245,995 234,222
Research Studentships PnEESs 218,160 205,892 218,160 205,892
Staff Development, Conferences BEIBIIEERE
and Duty Visit BHERAFH 29,651 32,418 29,651 32,418
733,625 716,666 736,914 719,532
Library BE8E
Office and Equipment Expenses BBPIR S mFEs 11,021 10,479 9,962 9,496
@ Magazine and Electronic Materials TRBSTER 70,027 70,399 60,619 60,627
81,048 80,878 70,581 70,123
Central Computing Facilities P REBAGLNE
Office and Equipment Expenses BFI R imRasz 8,571 9,936 8,374 9,573
Computer Equipment Maintenance BSRIBRER
and IT Infrastructure BEARIRGERE 57,732 54,645 48,678 45,420
66,303 64,581 57,052 54,993
Other Academic Services H RS
Office and Equipment Expenses BRPIR BRI 85,537 79,582 66,676 62,366
Others Hith 20,606 17,245 20,606 17,245
106,143 96,827 87,282 79,611
Total 4028 987,119 958,952 951,829 924,259

77

@ Teaching and Research represents expenditure on teaching and research related activities of the University with major spending on academic staffing costs.
Research expenses supported by both government grants and external funding are also included.

HEBRAT2IEABHERMNEB0BEMS - T2 REHBEFZ KRB - M BIEB AR RINERERNORFES

@ Other Academic Services includes expenditure of academic support units, such as Academic Secretariat, International Affairs Office, Education Development
Centre, Research Office, Industrial Centre, etc.

HibHBRFBEHNSIEIPINMAL > WHBRER  BRFHE - HEBRPDL  MASHRNIEPDLHF -

@ Books and periodicals which can be used over a number of years are capitalised as fixed assets — library collections. Magazines and Electronic Materials
represent the direct expense of other books and periodicals which are not capitalised.

TBHFNSHEIAT 2 EHERCKREECARETEE - BERES - IREFENRMBEEMREBREMMNSERBIINEEER -
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8. Expenditure (Cont'd)
Fsz (48)

8.2 Analysis of Operating Expenses (Cont'd)

EEM oMW (8)

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Institutional Support

@ Management and General
Office and Equipment Expenses
Publicity and Recruitment Expenses
Audit, Legal and Professional Fees
General Insurance

Others

Premises and Related Expenses
Office and Equipment Expenses
Utilities
Rental of Leased Premises
Repairs and Maintenance
Building Alterations and Works
Rates and Government Rent

@ Cleaning and Security Services

Others

Student and General Educational Services
Office and Equipment Expenses
Scholarships and Financial Aids
Student Development
Sports Facilities

Others

@ Other Activities
Consultancy

Service Cost and Others

Total

(UFBTsh)
HETE

eIk —IEE

BEPIR R IR
EERBIEE

B ERRBEER
—ReiRER

Hits

RS RARIRZ

EBPIR RIS
KEE
HEyERS
EIBERE
RENER T2
ERRIATIRE
ERRRLRBE
Hith

BER—RBER

BEPIR BRI
RESRBEHBUER
B4 BRGE

ac

Hih)5Eh

BEE
RIBEREM

Consolidated #55&

University K&

2019 2018 2019 2018
43,074 29,251 33,032 20,530
21,957 29,029 16,880 25,006
4,195 5,353 2,588 3,618
6,530 6,687 4,478 4,638
24,568 19,699 23,778 19,088
100,324 90,019 80,756 72,880
17,073 20,943 13,923 15,428
157,107 156,863 122,366 122,563
24,677 25,836 23,353 24,582
167,997 148,524 127,270 119,227
110,142 231,400 110,142 231,400
62,191 59,634 62,190 59,634
76,431 72,688 82,662 85,955
6,611 9,903 242 689
622,229 725,791 542,148 659,478
12,278 11,071 12,017 10,790
139,649 118,789 107,887 92,237
79,299 79,453 54,042 53,829
13,501 11,712 13,501 11,712
3,653 3,156 2,719 2,613
248,380 224,181 190,166 171,181
52,060 66,343 13 166
125,026 130,666 13,420 6,660
177,086 197,009 13,433 6,826

1,148,019 1,237,000 826,503 910,365

Public Affairs Office, etc.

BIER—RIEERBTIZESPINMS  WANERE - HBENENRAHEHES -

(23] Management and General includes expenditure of administrative support units, such as Human Resources Office, Finance Office and Communications and
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8. Expenditure (Cont'd)
F< (#48)
8.3 Remuneration of Higher Paid Staff
7= U B 2 F
The number of University staff members, whose equivalent remuneration* for the past year exceeded $1.8 million irrespective
of the funding sources, fell within the bands stated below:

TRFNSFE ZR180BEBTHIRVET TN ABEHBEERLE -

2019 2018
$1,800,001 - $1,950,000 81 76
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000 62 52
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000 37 30
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000 28 30
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000 29 18
$2,550,001 - $2,700,000 13 18
$2,700,001 - $2,850,000 16 5
$2,850,001 - $3,000,000 8 6
$3,000,001 - $3,150,000 6 6
$3,150,001 - $3,300,000 6 4
$3,300,001 - $3,450,000 4 6
$3,450,001 - $3,600,000 2 -
$3,600,001 - $3,750,000 4 4

$3,750,001 - $3,900,000 1 6

$3,900,001 - $4,050,000 3 -
$4,050,001 - $4,200,000 3 2
$4,200,001 - $4,350,000 1 -
$4,350,001 - $4,500,000 2 -
$4,500,001 - $4,650,000 1 -
$4,800,001 - $4,950,000 - 1
$5,250,001 - $5,400,000 1 -
$7,200,001 - $7,350,000 - 1

308 265

* Equivalent remuneration includes salaries, allowances, contributions to retirement schemes, gratuities, housing benefits and other
benefits. For staff who are provided with staff quarters owned by the University, their housing benefits are calculated by reference
to the rateable values assessed by the Rating and Valuation Department.

*FSEREHE R0 BRESEIOER (RIS ERBAREMISH - BEARRUMENEES 2HBE  HEREN
DEEEGESTEHBS 2BREMBESE -

79

@ Cleaning and Security Services of the University are partly contracted out to a wholly-owned subsidiary. The sub-contracting fee paid to the subsidiary for the
cleaning and security services is eliminated on consolidation. The major expense incurred by the subsidiary is staff costs for the performance of services which
is included under Premises and Related Expenses — Staff Costs and Benefits.

KRG BERRREZRBINAT —AEEMBLAT - tEHER L  BENWBEATINERRRERHFESRKIEN - MEMWELAINEEZNEARBERMZ
BLERADBBENSREBMS - HHEMAZRBH -

@ Other Activities includes expenditure for non-core operations of the University i.e. other than teaching and research related activities. These operations
include mainly provision of consultancy service and hotel operation, which are carried out through the University’s subsidiaries.

Hi)ZERIBEABOFFERES BIHBRMIISEUIN E )N - ELEFTEREBMELIMBHNBRRBVESER
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Taxation
R

Income Tax in the Income and Expenditure Statement of the Consolidated Entity and the University represents:

W ARIRAIR G R R A RBIATSHRG

Consolidated #z& University A&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MLF#c5t) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFER - 172 . B
China Corporate Income Tax PEITEZEATISI 1,919 2,964 1,919 2,964
1,919 3,136 1,919 2,964

The University and four of its subsidiaries, College of Professional and Continuing Education Limited, PolyU Technology and
Consultancy Co. Limited, Hong Kong Community College and Hotel ICON Limited, are exempted from payment of Hong Kong

Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Other subsidiaries of the University in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for other subsidiaries has been made in the consolidated financial statements as these subsidiaries either have no assessable
profits for the year ended 30 June 2019 or have cumulative tax losses brought forward from prior years that exceed the
assessable profits for the year. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits of a subsidiary for the year. Taxation for Chinese

mainland operations is charged at the appropriate prevailing rates of taxation in Chinese mainland.

KIESBMBHEAESR  ANROEMELT  SXRFEABBERERAT  EXNRERBEAERAT « SBFLERK
HBEERAICHBREBRER -

ARASBHEMHELIREINEBAIER - BREMHELAIUIRBEELL2019F6 33080 FEEHRIE - siHEHE
FENRFTHEESRAFENBNRIE  FERIDIBIMELHBERAIELE BREHROVE - 2018FEEBAERIR
IBEZMBARFEAGSTEIMRFVHIZNE16.5%518 - BIAEBORIBZMUBANIRITERERESE -



10. Restricted Funds
BEEE

10.1 Fund Balances
EEER

(In thousands of
Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July 2017

Total Comprehensive Income
for the year

Inter-fund transfer
Balance at 30 June 2018

Total Comprehensive Income
for the year

Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2019

(UF3B7Tst)
201778184585

FEA
REBUNS

BELEE
2018F 6330815847

FER
REEWNES

EEa i
2019683084588

BAEH RS 2018/19 81
Consolidated #7&
2] 7]
Scholarship
and Student Specific
Capital Research  Development Donation  Endowment
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
SN R BHBE BERE BBAISEE
HEF HEF HE HE HE st
1,021,203 618,194 135,460 653,134 308,664 2,736,655
- (84,094) (47,102) (65,907) 46,511 (150,592)
246,232 95,193 54,515 124,813 20,034 540,787
1,267,435 629,293 142,873 712,040 375,209 3,126,850
(124,312) ~ (72,365) (50,943) (38,541) 14,129 (272,032)
94,714 5,360 39,893 121,003 10,473 271,443
1,237,837 562,288 131,823 794,502 399,811 3,126,261

@ As the duration of research projects is normally 2 to 3 years, funding for research projects supported by UGC Block/Matching Grants are set aside under
Research Funds. Apart from UGC Block/Matching Grants, research projects supported by external funding or other non-UGC income are also set aside under

the Research Funds.

—RRASIBISEME=FATN - BENTONESRE/ELHHDSENSROEIRNES - FUESER/EH MBI » RO BERTTAZEI
PWERNFFHREBWNCSOEINNES -

@ All donations are channelled and accounted for under the PolyU Foundation. The donations with designated purposes according to the wishes of donors
and the University’s decision are transferred to the accounts designated for such purposes. As at 30 June 2019, the balances of General Donation Funds and
Endowment Funds were $524.2 million (2018: $520.6 million) and $399.8 million (2018: $375.2 million) respectively.

FERBBRIEAEZIR - BIRBEBEARFTMHENRBEREBBENTMARSIMOVREMREERTMRORIA - IR2019F68308 » —KRIBBE
SR BAIBEBEDNBERD BIAS5.242(8585T(2018 : 5.206{2850) R 3.998EB T (2018 : 3.75288 7T) °




82

PolyU Financial Report 2018/19

10. Restricted Funds (Cont'd)

BEREE (8)

10.1 Fund Balances (Cont'd)

B (48)

(In thousands of
Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July 2017

Total Comprehensive Income
for the year

Inter-fund transfers
Balance at 30 June 2018

Total Comprehensive Income
for the year

Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2019

(MUFBsh)
2017678184583

FER
REEWS

EEa e
2018683081583

FEA
EEEEAS

BETER
2019863308585

University X2
D 7]
Scholarship
and Student Specific
Capital Research  Development Donation  Endowment
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
REETR
EEN Rt BEBE RERE BARIBRE
850,873 618,194 135,460 653,134 308,664 2,566,325
- (84,094) (47,102) (65,907) 46,511 (150,592)
251,207 95,193 54,515 124,813 20,034 545,762
1,102,080 629,293 142,873 712,040 375,209 2,961,495
(86,849)  (72,365) (50,943) (38,541) 14,129 (234,569)
59,701 5,360 39,893 121,003 10,473 236,430
1,074,932 562,288 131,823 794,502 399,811 2,963,356
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Restricted Funds (Cont'd)

BEES (/E)

10.2 Nature and Purpose of Restricted Funds
BEESHNUHERBR
(a) Capital Funds

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BEXRESE
Capital Funds represent the balance of net book value of the Fixed Assets which are financed by non-deferred

funds.
BAEESEMIERIENESIEENETEENERDFE -

Research Funds
BAEE

Research Funds represent funds earmarked for the development of research, including those from the HKSAR

Government, government related organisations and external private organisations.

MINEEEREEBPEANERSERMANES - BEREBEBFITHEEA « BUSBREIMEREINLAKE
WEE -

Scholarship and Student Development Funds
BRFRBLEERES
Scholarship and Student Development Funds represent the funds which are reserved for scholarship payment

and earmarked for supporting student activities in order to enhance the all-rounded development of students.

BETRBLURETEREMRINEBRTRENBETHNMEABESHTERRNES -

Specific Donation Funds
BERBES
Specific Donation Funds represent funds, including donations, earmarked for specific activities, programmes or

projects of the University.

KHERBESEFIRBEEPEBREFETE  RIENREBHES -

Endowment Funds

BERBRES

Endowment Funds represent the funds which the University would, according to the wishes of the donors, keep
the principal intact and only use income generated from the fund to support University activities of designed

purposes.

BAEBETERANRBBEESNERRETAEAHLRIMNEEENUAEZHARBTESHNESE -
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11. UGC Funds

HETEE
11.1  Fund Balances
EE4HEER
Consolidated and University #7& K A&
General &
Development Matching
Reserve Grant
Fund Funds Total
— R
BE [
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAFBTat) REES #HENS st
Balance at 1 July 2017 20175781 8%58% 1,780,491 271,147 2,051,638
Total Comprehensive Income for the year FENREZEKE (91,550) (43,071) (134,621)
Inter-fund transfers BT (31,574) (129) (31,703)
Balance at 30 June 2018 2018633084587 1,657,367 227,947 1,885,314
Total Comprehensive Income for the year FERNREZEKE (23,153) (51,323) (74,476)
Inter-fund transfers BT 31,460 (17) 31,443
Balance at 30 June 2019 20195F 63308158 1,665,674 176,607 1,842,281

11.2  Nature and Purpose of UGC Funds
PEGETNMHERAR

(a)

(b)

General and Development Reserve Fund

—REERFERES

The General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent UGC funds (i.e. the recurrent
grants other than earmarked grants for specified purpose) of the University. The balance of the GDRF at the end
of funding period (usually a triennium) that can be carried over to the next funding period is limited to a maximum
of 20% of the University’s approved recurrent grants other than the earmarked grants for specific purposes for that
funding period. Should the balance of the GDRF at the end of the funding period exceed the ceiling allowed, the

excess amount is refundable to the UGC.

—MEBEREBESAFINADAZAESEZENIF I BREERVISEREHMPTI/IVESMHAE) - R
BRHEER=FHRBRETFEI N —BERAN — MR ERBRES BRI RIERE 2 IE B /D
TEERBERAREEBRIIEEREMEEIRING20%ARIE < 45 —BRBEERBHBESRBERPBRIEZ
foER BB MHRE LR BEEDAEEETHNES -

Matching Grant Funds

o hBE

Matching Grant Funds are funds granted by the HKSAR Government on a matching basis for qualified private
donations raised by the University. The matching grants can be used for supporting activities within the ambit of

UGC-recurrent grants.

BT RS BFITINEBIANARMESMERBHNMNARBRIZE Y RIMIFLMBERR - 2ty
BT TARTCHEGEEMIET Y ERLENNEE -



12.

Other Funds
HihnEE

12.1  Fund Balances

HEEEER

(In thousands of
Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July 2017

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Inter-fund transfer

Balance at 30 June 2018

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 15
Deferred revenue recognition for consultancy
services

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9
Remeasurement of Investments in Institutional
Entities and other Equity Securities

Adjusted Balance at 1 July 2018
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2019

(LAFBTat)
20175781 B8R
FERREBUES
E2EE
20185F63308158%

I ER S B IR SHERIE 15RO E
TeSRE5saRFS0Y
pIRTAIPAN

I ERE B BIRSHERN L IRNFE
EHTERNKEHER
BB ARSES0IRE

201847 B 1 BiRRE&IEER
FENREZBEIER
BaE
2019633084587

BAEIF5IRE 2018/19

Consolidated #7&

7]
Self-
financing General
Activity Donation
Funds Funds Total
—RE
BEgE 18Rg
BEEST HE a5t
1,235,230 481,619 1,716,849
355,396 252,698 608,094
(295,405) (213,679) (509,084)
1,295,221 520,638 1,815,859
(594) - (594)
5,944 - 5,944
1,300,571 520,638 1,821,209
572,917 187,788 760,705
(118,649) (184,237) (302,886)
1,754,839 524,189 2,279,028
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12. Other Funds (Cont'd)

HihEE (48)
12.1 Fund Balances (Cont'd)
BEEER(48)
University K&
D
Self-
financing General
Activity Donation
Funds Funds Total
—hg
(In thousands of S 186
Hong Kong dollars) (UFB7Tst) BEES HE a5
Balance at 1 July 2017 20175781 81588 620,480 481,619 1,102,099
Total Comprehensive Income for the year FEAREZEES 289,182 252,698 541,880
Inter-fund transfer BETE (300,380) (213,679) (514,059)
Balance at 30 June 2018 2018563308 #58R 609,282 520,638 1,129,920
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 MIBER S B BRSHER RO E
Remeasurement of Investments in Institutional BHtERNEWER
Entities and other Equity Securities HIREAESFIGE 5,944 - 5,944
Adjusted Balance at 1 July 2018 201857 B1 B EGH 615,226 520,638 1,135,864
Total Comprehensive Income for the year FERIREEINE 477,302 187,788 665,090
Inter-fund transfers BELEE (83,636) (184,237) (267,873)
Balance at 30 June 2019 2019%6 8308 #5Ex 1,008,892 524,189 1,533,081

12.2 Nature and Purpose of Other Funds
Hith B SR AR

(a) Self-financing Activity Funds
BEESEREES

Self-financing Activity Funds represent the reserves generated from self-financed programmes and activities.

BEEZEREETAEARNBBEZENRER SIS 2HERE -

(b)  General Donation Funds
—RRIBIEEE
General Donation Funds represent donations without designated purposes which can be used at the

discretion of the University’s Management for its future development.

—RIBBESRYBAINEEBEITRERRRKEE  WEESERROVIBEHERG
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@ 13. Matching Grants and Matched Donations
Fo ¥ Bh & & B FEBC 1 15 18

Consolidated and University

RERAE
2019 2018
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
By BE [ B
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF8st) e [iEaEElE HHEhE [RESE IS
Balance at 1 July 7818158 227,947 656,564 271,147 691,384
Income A
Interest and Investment Gain FERBEIZ 3,829 24,694 3,171 11,024
Expenditure sz
Teaching and Research Enhancement RAHBRAIG 13,634 3,450 15,083 2,507
Scholarships and Prizes REFTREFE 39,710 2,811 30,834 3,244
Bursaries e - 582 - 725
Internationalisation and BIFRME R
Student Exchange Activities BEQREH 1,808 856 325 892
Student Development BEBETE - 529 - 1,555
Capital and Related Expenditure HERBHAZ - 20,329 - 36,763
Others Hith - 217 - 158
55,152 28,774 46,242 45,844
@ Transfer to Restricted Funds EIRFITEES (17) - (129) -
Balance at 30 June 633081587 176,607 652,484 227,947 656,564

All expenditures were incurred on degree and above level of study.

BRI RBT R EEIRIZHHR

@ Matching Grant Schemes were introduced by the government in 2003 to assist universities in strengthening their fund-raising capacities. The government
provides matching grants to match private donations in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Schemes. The matching grants and the matched
donations should only be used for supporting activities within the ambits of UGC recurrent grants and in accordance with the rules set out under the Schemes.

RIRARBNESEED  EHHBESTBIR2003FMIL - BT RBSTEIGEREASHZNDABBRHRELEHDE - RHBNEREELYBBERER
MESTEREEMEHNESHER I EREBENNED -

@) similar to research projects supported by Block Grants, unspent Matching Grants allocated for research projects are transferred to Research Funds (included in
Restricted Funds (note 10)). In order to show a full picture of funding and related expenditure under Matching Grants, the corresponding amount is transferred
back from Research Funds to Matching Grants when the research expenditure are incurred and recorded in Teaching and Research Enhancement in this note.

IR D ECIERTAENEEHEDT & RANKOEERTTAZNEHEDTSBAMNES (BEAERTEET(MIEE10) - B I BEREURE HMENE UK
RABEMS - RIS SBRTE SR ECEHEN S0 R R LM SEOIR A BB RBA
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@ 14. Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

FEE B ARG E

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Balance at 1 July
Receipts
Interest and Investment Gain
Payments
Programme Costs
Service Related Programmes
Cultural Related Programmes

Career Related Programmes

Balance at 30 June

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July
Receipts
Interest and Investment Gain
Payments
Programme Costs
Service Related Programmes
Cultural Related Programmes

Career Related Programmes

Balance at 30 June

(AFBTst)
781 B8R
SR
FIBREBUWS
NN
BB
BR75ERAIEE
Xii8RIIRE
e iE|2IE(S

68308#58%

(ATF387T5)

7R 1 B8k
SR
FBNREULS
(NN
BB/
IR¥51ERIIAE
XA AERAIAE
TLEABRIIRE

633081585

Consolidated #5&

2019 2018
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
i3 [ Bo¥y B
FRENE Bo¥ii8rg FENE [ EEhE]
3,573 3,085 4,659 3,805
76 72 61 76
629 707 313 357
228 367 207 139
585 120 627 300
1,442 1,194 1,147 796
2,207 1,963 3,573 3,085

University A £

2019 2018
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
By BE By B2E
fHENE Bo¥yiBa AT Bo¥9igeg
2,925 2,713 3,491 3,324
64 62 44 65
629 707 313 357
228 367 207 139
120 120 90 180
977 1,194 610 676
2,012 1,581 2,925 2,713
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@ 15. Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students
5 R BN EREE

Consolidated #78& University A £
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (T8 5Tsth) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Balance at 1 July 7B18#8 3,334 1,934 506 1,156
Receipts ISR
Grants HEhE 5,631 6,412 3,607 3,545
Interest and Investment Gain FNBABEUR 85 52 22 19
5,716 6,464 3,629 3,564
Payments IR
Subsidy to Students B4 50 3,750 3,444 3,332 3,074
Unspent Grants returned to Government & BN IR AREIHENE (2,569) (1,620) (56) (1,140
Balance at 30 June 683081585 2,731 3,334 747 506

€ The Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme, Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange and Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to "Belt and Road" Regions are
three funding schemes for our post-secondary students launched and supported by the Education Bureau ("EDB") of HKSAR. In compliance with
the Schemes’ requirements, details of the related grants, matched donations and expenditure are separately disclosed in notes 14 to 16. The
matched donations for the related grants of the Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme as shown in note 14 were received during the period from 1
October 2015 to 30 June 2016 which was the last round of application for matching grant.

Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange and Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to "Belt and Road" Regions subsidise students of full-time locally-
accredited undergraduate and sub-degree programmes to participate in exchange activities. According to the EDB's Operating Guide, only
students in receipt of means-tested student financial assistance from Student Finance Office of the Working Family and Student Financial
Assistance Agency or whose families in receipt of the Comprehensive Social Security Assistance are eligible. Since the actual number of eligible
students was less than that covered in the allocated grants, the unspent grants from Deferred Income received for the period from September
2017 to August 2018 and September 2016 to August 2017 were returned to the Government during the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018
respectively.

Since the grants under the three Schemes are designated for specific purposes with refund condition for any unspent grants, the accounting
treatment of these grants follows HKAS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. Grant income
recognised during the year, equivalent to the amount spent, has been included under Grants from Government Agencies in note 3, with the
unspent portion being presented under Deferred Income in note 29. Same treatment is also adopted for the matched donations of the Pilot
Mainland Experience Scheme.

SEFLBENMERSTE S EBEERIIRENFENE LEE - S —BIEXRENSTENEREBFTHEHERRIRZHNE L BEEE)5t
Bl - AR ESHEIZRK - BRMEIE « CEEHBBURMZNGFIBEDAIRMIEEI4ET16RKE - WHE14MTTR - £8F E2ERIBERBIPOHRERRIBEE
R2015F 10818 E2016F6F308HANE @ ZIBRAELMNTORE WP -

FEBLEIIORENFERELBE—F - BhRAENSIBIENBEA NS 2 ORI ARNERBIBMRENBESMGINONED - REUSB/NEE
sl CERBEDAFNNGHEBRXERSBLEENSHRE NELENRMBMNNNSSEENNEREFWEIFESTHSRIEED - BREBESEBBEA
HORABEDENBANEMIENAL > BEN2017FIBE2018F8FK2016F9IBE2017F8 FHRBINROVEEE P ARIEABEVESD 2D BIR2018/19
K2017/18F ARSREIN A PEL » RS FEA

BR=E5t BNMUEEBRTEMERYEREANIFOMBRRIEN » WHNSCRREB ST ERF205% - WA BERNEFEDNREFLEHENS
STERIE - AFEZHERNVMEIZIIN @ BIDEMOVEIER - ©RIGEM3A2MEOVBUFHBEIRA - MERIEMUBHI B 2 MEMNT296DRIENAR - F£EF
BEAmERtEINCIERYREIAERNSS DIERIE -
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@ 16. Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road"” Regions for Post-secondary Students

B S -RIEREETE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July
Receipts
Grants

Interest and Investment Gain

Payments

Subsidy to Students

Unspent Grants returned to Government

Balance at 30 June

(UF787551)
7818458
R
iHliNES
FMEARE WS

(NES
SLER

RE PRSI ARGANMENE
63308 #58%

Consolidated $578 University A2

2019 2018 2019 2018
970 5,264 69 4,187
1,271 1,204 421 200
26 49 4 32
1,297 1,253 425 232
508 291 284 153
(760) (5,256) (25) (4,197)
999 970 185 69




17. Fixed Assets

BEEE

(In thousands of

Hong Kong dollars)

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2017
Additions during the Year
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange Difference
Balance at 30 June 2018
Additions during the Year
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange Difference
Balance at 30 June 2019

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2017
Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals
Exchange Difference
Balance at 30 June 2018
Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals
Exchange Difference
Balance at 30 June 2019

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2018

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2019

(UFBTsh)

DEN

R201787818
AREEIBE

R

=

ERER
R2018%F 623308
AREEILE

EER

=

(EREZR
R20195F 68308

SR8

R2017€7818
REEINE

HHES 2l

FES R
fR2018565308
AEEITE

S 2l

PES 2R
R2019565308

2018F64308

REFE

2019648308

REFE

Consolidated 55
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Construction Furniture,
in Equipment & Library
Buildings Progress Fittings Collections Total
24f ~ B0 B8

1B TRETRE RES s (S
8,740,601 143,237 1,903,506 630,418 11,417,762
33,566 112,779 124,248 7,960 278,553
81,487 (81,487) - - -
- - (53,796) (2,729) (56,525)

2,234 - 607 - 2,841
8,857,888 174,529 1,974,565 635,649 11,642,631
2,483 135,112 150,537 6,001 294,133
63,348 (63,348) - - -
- - (71,795) (3,567) (75,362)
(3,924) - (886) - (4,810)
8,919,795 246,293 2,052,421 638,083 11,856,592
3,864,982 - 1,354,869 597,401 5,817,252
293,522 - 182,528 12,444 488,494
- - (52,981) (2,568) (55,549)

606 - 586 - 1,192
4,159,110 - 1,485,002 607,277 6,251,389
288,178 - 186,137 11,120 485,435
- - (68,943) (3,521) (72,464)
(1,103) - (652) - (1,755)
4,446,185 - 1,601,544 614,876 6,662,605
4,698,778 174,529 489,563 28,372 5,391,242
4,473,610 246,293 450,877 23,207 5,193,987

Leasehold land is granted by the Governments of the HKSAR and the PRC for usage by the Consolidated Entity at a nominal

amount.

SBRITHERN R PERNNENFSREBNESIIBNURHAEEIR -
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17. Fixed Assets (Cont'd)
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BEEE (&)

(In thousands of

Hong Kong dollars)

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2017
Additions during the Year
Transfers
Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2018
Additions during the Year
Transfers
Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2019

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2017
Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2018
Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2019

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2018

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2019

(UFBTsh)

WS
2201747818
REEIRE
wEaR
HE
R201856H308
REEIRE
R
HE
R20195 68308

KIEE

20177818
REEINE
BE
R2018564308
REEINE

HE I

R2019% 64308

2018F64308

REFE

201964308

REFE

University K&

Construction Furniture,
in  Equipment & Library
Buildings Progress Fittings Collections Total
B ~ 32108 B

BT TETRE REE (e st
8,636,669 143,237 1,540,928 586,864 10,907,698
33,566 112,779 94,647 5,313 246,305
81,487 (81,487) - - -
- - (48,481) (234) (48,715)
8,751,722 174,529 1,587,094 591,943 11,105,288
2,483 135,112 112,346 3,830 253,771
63,348 (63,348) - - -
- - (60,589) (2,410) (62,999)
8,817,553 246,293 1,638,851 593,363 11,296,060
3,840,111 - 1,074,722 562,685 5,477,518
290,306 - 150,918 8,684 449,908
- - (47,840) (185) (48,025)
4,130,417 - 1,177,800 571,184 5,879,401
285,000 - 155,108 7,864 447,972
- - (59,985) (2,410) (62,395)
4,415,417 - 1,272,923 576,638 6,264,978
4,621,305 174,529 409,294 20,759 5,225,887
4,402,136 246,293 365,928 16,725 5,031,082

Leasehold land is granted by the Government of the HKSAR for usage by the University at a nominal amount.
EBRITABRNEDARERNES LR NBEIER -
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Investments in Subsidiaries

MEASZIRE

University K2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF387551) 2019 2018
Unlisted Shares, at Cost FEERRD - IERA 233,250 232,650
Less: Impairment Loss B REESE (102,917) (93,743)

130,333 138,907

An impairment test was performed by comparing the carrying amount with the recoverable amount of the subsidiaries as at 30 June
2019. The recoverable amount of the subsidiaries is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. When the
recoverable amount of the subsidiaries exceeds the carrying amount, the impairment loss is reversed up to the amount that has been
recognised in prior years. Following the result of this exercise, an impairment loss of $9.2 million (2018: a reversal of impairment
loss of $2.7 million) was recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement for the year. Out of the $102.9 million (2018: $93.7
million) in accumulated impairment loss as at 30 June 2019, approximately $88.3 million (2018: $79.2 million) was attributable to

research activities conducted through the relevant subsidiaries.

A B S BHEA FR201956 5308 2 EHER TWOREELGER - WEAD 2 THOBBSEEASBEHEE
HAREMEEREPNREERE - SHBAS 2 INOEBLEREE & WEEENTROEEEFEMEREERA
R - B RIEER - A R IR IR 2 B RS B R 9208 5552018 « HERBRE270885T) « BF2019668308 -
REDHEEIER1.029EBT(2018 : 9,370EE5T) - BPH08,830EBIL(2016 : 7,92088 5T BEISEBM BATETORFHE
% o

93

€ PolyU Research Limited and its subsidiaries (PearL Modern TCM Research Limited, 12k & &5 &b (FYI) BEA D and LEHVRERSHEY)ERAD) are

set up to conduct research and development activities in the Chinese mainland. Funding to cover the research, development and operational expenditures
is provided to these subsidiaries in the form of capital injection. Impairment loss reflects the net expenditure arising from such activities of these subsidiaries
for each year.

BARERAIREAMBATIERIERPHMEMBRAT  BRESHEBRYNBRAIREFIDRILABORINERAIT)OMIE S 3 EAMIET
R RERNES - EEZDBARLUTEL VRN BRIMEMISEEREESER - BEBBRIRIZE DT 2FME -




94

18.

PolyU Financial Report 2018/19

Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
MEASIZRE (&)

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. All of

these are subsidiaries as defined under note 1.4 and have been consolidated into the financial statements of the Consolidated Entity.

TNIREROWEAD - FRRBERBIN » AIOKREIZEEK - BLAIBEEM 1 4ARTEZMEAT @ WIRRIFESEH

BEP -

Place of
Incorporation/

Particulars of

Proportion of Ownership Interest

BIESLE idnas

Consolidated

Establishment Issued and Entity’s
and Paid Up Effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of Subsidiary Operation Capital Interest University Subsidiary Activity
BT
SE/AIIR R#R2 ot HEAT
WEBAS B EEIMES RRAETIB BiRER AEHH BB EFBEH
Campus Facilities Hong Kong 100,000 100% 100% - Facility
Management Shares Management
Company Limited Services
WERIEETE BB 100,0008% BdiE=pEs
BRATY
College of Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Education
Professional and Guarantee
Continuing
Education Limited
SERISENE =5 TS ns
SRERAT BRAT
Hong Kong Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Post-
Community College Guarantee secondary
Education
EBE 80 BB BR i
BRAY
Hotel ICON Limited Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Operation of
Guarantee Teaching and
Research Hotel
EEERRAT BB BR BRI
BIRAT BISEE
PolyU Enterprise Plus Hong Kong 20,700,000 100% 100% - Investment
Limited Shares Holding
SMEATEEBRAT BB 20,700,0008% wEER
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Proportion of Ownership Interest

PrERERES R
Place of

Incorporation/ Particulars of ~ Consolidated

Establishment Issued and Entity’s
and Paid Up Effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of Subsidiary Operation Capital Interest University Subsidiary Activity

21T
SEM/ANIT R R me8e BT
B T BB SRS RAFFHIB BiFER ABHEH ] FBEH
PolyU Research Hong Kong 191,550,000 Shares 100% 100% - Investment
Limited (note a) (2018: Holding
190,950,000 Shares)

EARWRERAT (Mista) &8 191,550,000 REmR
(2018:
190,950,0008%)

PolyU Technology and Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Consultancy
Consultancy Co. Limited Guarantee Services

TEAREL R AR BB HELES BRIRPS

BRAT BRAT

PearL Modern TCM Hong Kong 65,950,000 Shares 100% - 100%  Research and

Research Limited (note b) (2018: Development
65,350,000 Shares)

IBRIRA PR BB 65,950,0008% AT R %
MEFMBIRAT (iztb) (2018:

65,350,000f%)

Pearl. Western Hong Kong 15,270,000 Shares 100% - 100% Investment
Development (2018: Holding
Company Limited (note c) 15,020,000 Shares)

IBAFBEEE &8 15,270,000% wERE
BRAT (Mi5tc) (2018:

15,020,0008%)

PearL Technology Hong Kong 300,000 Shares 100% - 100% Investment
Partnership Limited (2018: Holding
(note ¢) 100,000 Shares)

BB 300,000f% SEIRRY
(2018:
100,000£%)

The Hong Kong Hong Kong 20,000,000 100% 100% - Dormant
CyberU Limited Shares
(In members’
voluntary winding up)

EBHE L2 &8 20,000,000f% ENEEIAS]
BRATY

(RREEENEEP)
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Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
WEASZIRE (4F)

Proportion of Ownership Interest

PrERRERLIER
Place of
Incorporation/ Particulars of ~ Consolidated
Establishment Issued and Entity’s

and Paid Up Effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of Subsidiary Operation Capital Interest University  Subsidiary Activity

BT

SEM/RRIT R R#2 ot Linj==NS

MBS B BEMES BRAGHIE BiFER REHH 58 FBREH
¥ EENYRIREREE PRC $48,550,000 100% - 100% Research and
CRYNERAT (2018: Development

(note d) (Bfi5Ed) $47,850,000)
=s] 48,550,000/ 7T, Rt R FEsE

(2018:

47,850,000587t)
4 IRRESEM PRC $112,150,000 100% - 100% Research and
(CRYNBRAT Development
Support
& 112,150,000 SRR RS

BT
¥ IBARRHYEER PRC RMB500,000 100% - 100% Consultancy
(FRYINBRAT Services
cp 500,000 A& BRR

* These companies are not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and
total income constituting approximately 0.1% and 0.0% respectively of the related consolidated totals.

* EREFSS NS HAIFL FMERTOEELRIED - MILFMEADVREEFERBUIIAD BN HIBEIRGIBENO.1%kK0.0% -

# These companies are audited by KPMG Huazhen LLP for the year ended 31 December 2018.
t BERAERSHBHMALSHNBELAIEZE2018F1283182FE00EELEED -

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the University subscribed for additional 600,000 shares of PolyU Research Limited.

HZE2019F 64308 LFE » AREEINTEEIE AR AR T 600,000 58

During the year ended 30 June 2019, PolyU Research Limited subscribed for additional 600,000 shares of PearL Modern TCM Research Limited.
HE2019F 68308 LFE » IBARITERATERINBEEIE KIR PRI T AT E IR S 600,00088 L@k

During the year ended 30 June 2019, PolyU Enterprise Plus Limited subscribed for additional 200,000 shares of PearL Technology Partnership Limited
and additional 250,000 shares of PearlL Western Development Company Limited.

HZE2019F68308 LFE » FIBRPEBRAIZAINGBIEPearl Technology Partnership Limited 200,0000% &5 38 /% K IE XA ISR EIRAT
250,0008% @A -

During the year ended 30 June 2019, PearL Modern TCM Research Limited injected capital of $700,000 into ELEE#IMRIFLEIECEYINERAT.
#HZE2019F63308 L FE @ BARAPHINAABRATIE 08B TEEMOMRRFERIINERAT -

PearL-DigiPower (Offshore) Company Limited was dissolved by members’ voluntary winding up in April 2019.

PearL-DigiPower (Offshore) Company Limited 253201954558 -

EBIB T REZRYIFFEMT is set up as a business unit in Shenzhen under the jurisdiction of the PRC to conduct training, research and development
activities.

SBERIASRYIAERSRE CRIEBERRBESMELERGEN) RPEARHNBDRIITMIL 2 BHEEEN - #BIBI - Bt
REEEE -
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Interests in Associates

e A Em

Consolidated #78 University K&

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAF3B7sh) 2019 2018 2019 2018

Share of Net Assets RS2 FEE ; R R -

During the year ended 30 June 2019, PearL-DigiPower (Offshore) Company Limited, a subsidiary of the University, disposed of all 30%
equity interests in DigiPower Holdings Limited, which wholly owns DigiPower Technology Limited.

E 22019965308 LEFE A - PearL-DigiPower (Offshore) Company Limited » KEH—REHIEAS) - HE S SEFAERERERATNE
BB30%EHE - BB R BIRATRIEES DigiPower Technology Limited o

The following is summarised financial information for the Consolidated Entity’s interest in associates, based on the amounts reported in the

consolidated financial statements:

TIRGEEREZELATNESE Y BENME  BRRBREANFEOHUBMEMIRSHNERA

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MUFB7tst)

2019 2018
Carrying Amount of #ENIN
Interests in Associates IERERE(E : )
Consolidated Entity's Share of RERrRS
Loss from Operation and Other BIEXEB ISR

Comprehensive Income REMEEINS _ 47)
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Interests in Joint Ventures
SE N TR

Consolidated {55 University A&

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAF38Eh) 2019 2018 2019 2018

Share of Net Assets fEI5 2 EE 33,146 35,400 i, _

The following list contains the particulars of joint ventures as defined under note 1.5, all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose
quoted market price are not available, and are considered not individually material. All of these joint ventures are accounted for using

equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

ay

TORMFIMREZARNEGERT @ LEFSERTHERRRNIGRENF LMEEER  WEERRBUIFEAX - ELEENRT
ZERABBERIZSYHRENE ©

Proportion of Ownership Interest

PTEER LR

Place of Particulars of Consolidated Effectively
Name of Establishment  Issued and Paid Up Entity’s Effective Held by Principal
Joint Venture and Operation Capital Interest Subsidiary Activity

BRILR: EEITREE et fEEYNS]
A EEIMES RAFHE e EREH EREH
Xi‘an Tongli PRC RMB 50% 50% Education and
Technology 30,000,000 (note a) Technology
Enterprise Ltd Development
BLBIEREL b 30,000,000 (Mt=Ta) HER
TEBZRBRAT AR BRI
BLBIEREERRS PRC RMB 50% 50% Education

155112805 3,000,000 (note a)
p 3,000,000 (Mista) nE

AR

The above entities are not audited by KPMG.

EEFASSEIBHAMIEU LESERTOVETEZEE -

PearL Western Development Company Limited, a subsidiary of the University, holds 50% of Xi’an Tongli Technology Enterprise Ltd, which
wholly owns 752 3@ 1% B fF 55 15 5| 220

ERMBATEABLBEERBRAIFEOLBIERNREEBEERATS0%0IER - BLRENKREEFIRBRATINEEHTD
ZRI2EIFRRSISEIER
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20. InterestsinJointVentures (Cont'd)
ENTERE (8)

@ The following is summarised financial information for the Consolidated Entity’s interest in joint ventures, based on the amounts reported

in the consolidated financial statements:

TIRGFECERREELTNER Y BENE  WESEREFFSYBREMBSHKIE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LLF8T5h) 2019 2018
Carrying Amount of 5EN T
Interests in Joint Ventures FExEEE 33,146 35,400
Consolidated Entity's Share of Losses O8RS
from Operation and Other BEXEB ISR
Comprehensive Income REMEEINE (732) (2,411)
21. Non-current Financial Assets
ERMEREE
Consolidated and University
RoRARE
30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAF8B7T5T) 20195263308 201857818 2018564308
Financial assets carried at amortised cost ZEIERNASTENTHEE
Debt Securities (note a) BE#%ES (Mizta) 1,660,050 718,325 718,325
Financial assets carried at FVPL BRRBESTNAERNTRERE
Institutional Entities and other WEEEMNES R ELA AR ASE S
Equity Securities (note b) (M35Eb) 6,553 5,945 -
1,666,603 724,270 718,325
Available-for-sale financial assets B EIZNASTEN
measured at cost EREE
Institutional Entities and other LB R B AR A GRS
Equity Securities (note b) OED)) - - 1
1,666,603 724,270 718,326

(@)  The carrying value of non-current debt securities as at 30 June 2019 was $1,660.1 million (2018: $718.3 million) and stated at

amortised cost less impairment loss. The debt securities are not past due or impaired.

(b)  Priorto 1July 2018, Investments in Institutional Entities and other Equity Securities were classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
measured at cost in accordance with HKAS 39. They were reclassified to financial assets measured at FVPL upon the initial application
of HKFRS 9 at 1 July 2018 (see note 1.3.1).

(@) FERENEFHBHFR2019F6830B00REMERT6.601{2ET(2018 : 7.18(8180) » MIRESHAMAIDBIRERIEIIR « EF5ES
A EEA SR

(b) R2018F7H1B.281 - RILBHEREMRAZSNNERRIZVBSBEIEIEIIRRRRIRBENERNEE » MNET
Ik - HR2018F7H1 BHI0ER S BYBRSEINFEIRITZN D BAZAABES NBRIENENEE(RE1.3.1)

€D Financial information of Joint Ventures include the operating results of the two joint ventures, whose principal activities are education and technology
development in the mainland. The surplus or deficit for the year is dependent on their activity level.

BHESELAINTHENBEMEEANBLUABRANABER/EBEBORIB2EBINR - AEFRBNBEDIVR OB BEZTENERRR
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Non-current Financial Assets (Cont'd)

FERDEMEE (B)

The following list contains the particulars of institutional entities and other equity securities as defined under note 1.6.1(a)

and 1.6.2(c) which are unlisted corporate entities.

TOURMIEET.6.1(@)R1.6.2(MRE 2 HBHEBR EMRAES  WERTIEIFLMEEEE -

Place of Particulars of

Incorporation Issued and
Name of Institutional Entities and Paid Up Held by Held by Principal
and other Equity Securities Operation Capital University Subsidiary Activity

TR A Ko ELARAY A58 25 R BEITREE WE T

=L BEME RAFFIB AEBFHE 58 E2EH
Joint Universities Computer Hong Kong 8 Shares 12.5% - Information Technology
Centre Limited Services
AREBESBIEPOBRAT &B 8 i & LIRS
Joint University Programmes Hong Kong Limited by 12.5% - Coordination and
Admissions System Guarantee control of the Joint
Admissions System
AEBHEIBER &8 BR RREIEABES
BRAT BEWE
JULAC Joint Universities Hong Kong Limited by 12.5% - Functional storage facility
Research Archive Limited Guarantee for research and archival
purposes
ABEE ST B/ &B BR E=2MmEE

BRAT BRAT
The Hong Kong Research Hong Kong Limited by (note a) - Research, development
Institute of Textiles and Guarantee and technology transfer
Apparel Limited in fashion and textiles
technologies
S BRI P &8 BR (ffy5Ea) ISEEYSEali: AR OF SN
ARAE HRAT) RIS KNS
Avalon Polytom (HK) Limited Hong Kong 10,450 Shares - 3% Product
development
) 10,450 f% E R
Volant Railway Technologies Hong Kong 200 Shares - 10%  Development and service
Company Limited for railway monitoring
(note b) system
(Fif5Eb) BB 200 Bz IS E SRR
PRt
Avalon Polymills (HK) Hong Kong 15,000 Shares - 15% Research and
Limited development for novel
antimicrobial textiles
&8 15,000 % iAWl ek Rt

NEHHo
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21. Non-current Financial Assets (Cont'd)
FRBEMEE (E)

(a) The Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles and Apparel Limited (“HKRITA”) is a company limited by guarantee with the University

as the sole member for hosting and operating a leading centre of excellence in research, development and technology transfer in
fashion and textile technologies, supported by the Innovation and Technology Fund. The membership of its Board of Directors
comprises representatives from the University, the HKSAR Government, textiles and clothing-related industries, trade associations
and public bodies, etc. Without the right to variable returns from its involvement with HKRITA and the ability to affect those returns
through its power over HKRITA, the interest in HKRITA has been accounted for as a financial asset, instead of a subsidiary, and
included in the Investments in Institutional Entities.
EBIHRMNKAEPODIZ—BERBRAT  ARNARHEE—MNE @ LEWEEE—BBBNEIFRRES SR NURMEE 55
RADERS A SR ERTF BB P  ZPONEEBMERHAR « SBRAITHEIT « M RNKEEIE BHBRAR
BERRAXRIEN - HmRANASHSEEBIHHRNKTIEROOEEMESNEREZEHEILOR - RERERNFEZSFLR
AR P OEERTIELMEAS - MELEMEEIER - U BBEREEREINRE 2R -

(b) Volant Railway Technologies Company Limited has ceased operation on 31 January 2019 and is in the process of deregistration.

Volant Railway Technologies Company Limited 1R20195 1831 B2 25510 (E3E THEEEEM -
22. Current Financial Assets
REEMBEE
Consolidated and University
RERAE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF8T5t) 2019 2018
Financial assets carried at FVPL BARBESINABRNTREE
@ Trading Securities EE5ES
Equities Securities EENES 1,872,771 1,757,350
Fixed Income Securities BEBNZES 1,226,480 1,400,975
3,099,251 3,158,325
Financial assets carried at amortised cost IRHERN A St BNEREE
Debt Securities FBRRHEHES 335,755 178,694

3,435,006 3,337,019

€ Apart from held-to-maturity debt securities with maturity date within one year, other securities held by external investment managers of the University for

trading purpose are also classified as current financial assets presented in note 22.

BR3—FAIBNBEENRERESIN  ARBEBIIRERIESENFHIFEEESHRBEANE22P2RNRDENEE -
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Staff Loans and Bank Loan for On-lending to Staff
FHEEMNEEFHME ZRTER

On 27 July 1992, the University entered into an agreement with Hang Seng Bank Limited (the “Bank”) for the granting of loans to
the University for on-lending to qualified staff members. The limit of the facility currently stands at $120 million. The loans are

payable within 12 months and are renewable annually subject to the Bank’s consent.

To be qualified for the loan, a staff member must be over 21 years of age and has been a member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University Superannuation Fund - Part A (“SF (Part A)”) for at least 4 years. The maximum amount of loan to a staff member is the
lower of $1.8 million or 60% of the individual’s superannuation minimum entitlement at the date of the loan application. If the
staff member defaults in repayment, the University can exercise its right to retain an amount equal to such indebtedness out of
any benefits payable to such staff member under the SF (Part A). The repayment terms of staff loans are in agreement with those

applicable to the bank loans.

BBETABRIBERITHAIERAT( "IRITL )RI19N2F7H27BTIERSHK » YBZRITER » BEL TS FEH 2B
8 - RIFYREM2EEER12EET - EMZERARI2EA - WEZIRITER » BFIPYEN

CSTERPBERZHABEDRTR2155 > BFCSNESBIELIASZERARE(PR)( SRR (PR, )RDAF - BUSERE
RAZBBERER180BBTHEBBREZRAREEL,260%  DEEBRERYE - WEREITENRBS  FREREKL
EURIAE (PR) ZRIABF PIOFRAT IR © B S EFUZERIRREIRITERIERIBS -
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24. Accounts and Other Receivables

P& BRIE
Consolidated 35 University A£2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAF#85T51) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Investment Proceeds Receivable RERIGRE 135,463 132,082 135,463 132,082
Accounts Receivable FEUSERFR 177,145 105,523 170,292 97,838
Interest Receivable fEUF 2 66,811 37,436 66,647 37,271
Amounts due from Subsidiaries FEWHIE A SIERIE - - 46,976 77,921
Amounts due from Joint Ventures EEEATERIA 2,828 2,091 2,828 2,091
Amounts due from the UGC EWHRE SRR
Rates and Government Rent ZE R B AR 16,077 16,239 16,077 16,239
Capital Grants Receivable FEWE 2 e S - 1,863 _ 1,863
Earmarked Grants Receivable FERHEE A& MENE 85,111 75,485 85,111 75,485
Supplementary Grants and Others IBMHENE R Hib 34,127 28,298 34,127 28,298
135,315 121,885 135,315 121,885
Prepayments, Sundry Deposits and FANRIE » MIRIRE
Other Receivables R E b EUERIE 167,762 147,044 127,776 106,760

685,324 546,061 685,297 575,848

The majority of Accounts Receivable and Amounts due from the UGC are without fixed terms of repayment and are expected
to be recoverable within one year. Prepayments are expected to be recognised as expenses within one year. All Amounts due

from Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

ABDNEUERIB R ENHESRIADEGEENY @ WARMIRIFANE - ANFIRNEHYRIFAERRFHES - ABIE
WHBAIREENTZIRBIRELS RS RIZEKERE -
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25. Cash and Deposits with Banks

RERBITER
Consolidated #78 University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFBT51) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Cash at Banks and on Hand RERIRITER 454,130 680,255 341,818 522,261
Short-term Deposits SERTERR 5,498,745 2,956,164 5,445,766 2,916,834
Cash and Deposits with Banks in the PHFARRFAZ 5,952,875 3,636,419 5,787,584 3,439,095
Statement of Financial Position RERIBITER
Less: Short-term Deposits with over o =A%
Three Months to Maturity B2
when Placed EREEE S (4,262,581)  (2,623,170)  (4,239,916)  (2,599,894)
Cash and Cash Equivalents in BERBEANZ
the Statement of Cash Flows RERIVEFEY 1,690,294 1,013,249 1,547,668 839,201

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financin

METHEENSEOVEIR

g activities

The table below details changes in the Consolidated Entity’s and University’s liabilities from financing activities, including both

cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash

flows will be, classified in the Statement of Cash Flows as cash flows from financing activities.

TERFHLFERRARKBNE TENEEEE)
FIREREBXRPDEARMETEEENIREN

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

At 1 July 2017
Changes from financing cash flows:
Bank Loans Drawn Down for On-lending to Staff
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending to Staff
Repayment of Bank Loans
Repayment of Government Loans
Finance costs paid for Loans and Borrowings
Total changes from financing cash flows
Other changes:
Interest expenses

At 30 June 2018

Changes from financing cash flows:
Bank Loans Drawn Down for On-lending to Staff
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending to Staff
Repayment of Government Loans

At 30 June 2019

BEIRERIFREES - WE

(AF3B51)

2017578184583

RMERTRE 22
SHETHBE 2 IRITER

BEEEFHME2RITER

BEHRFER

EIERRIEE 2/MHER
MBRERE 2 B EE
HAbEE) -

SR
2018633084585
RMEIRSREZEE)

EIEFREE ZIRITER
EBREEFHHE ZIRITER
BEBRFEMR

201956 33081587

S EEEENDIE - FIBERARVIBERERS

Consolidated and University

RoRKRE
Bank Loan
Loans and for On-
Borrowings  lending to Staff
(note 26) (note 23) Total
HEETHEE
ERREE ZIBITER
(K35E26) (Ff#5¥23) Hest
843,994 24,710 868,704
- 940 940
- (5,820) (5,820)
(291,400) - (291,400)
(44,141) - (44,147)
(6,441) - (6,441)
502,012 19,830 521,842
6,441 - 6,441
508,453 19,830 528,283
- 910 910
- (2,480) (2,480)
(44,147) - (44,147)
464,312 18,260 482,572
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26. Loans and Borrowings

ERREE
Consolidated and University
fRERKRE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF8ITst) 2019 2018
Government Loans BB 464,312 508,453

Repayable: B
Within 1 Year or On Demand —FAGIEBERKER 42,991 44,141
After 1 Year but within 2 Years —FREMFA 41,998 43,081
After 2 Years but within 5 Years MEBRZERAFER 129,120 127,938
After 5 Years hF#% 250,203 293,293
421,321 464,312

464,312 508,453

Government loans were loans from the HKSAR Government to the University for the provision of self-financed
associate degree programmes. The loans are repayable in twenty equal annual instalments over a period of twenty years after
the final drawn down date of each respective loan. The loans for the first ten years are interest-free, and charged at a “no-gain-
no-loss” interest rate to be determined by the Government starting from 2018/19. The “no-gain-no-loss” interest rate as at 30
June 2019 is 1.2% per annum. The loans are unsecured as at 30 June 2019.

MR ERELEBRITHERFATE  BFAREHBESEMBETSMARIENER - ENRAREBREMRRREIRIELEM20

FEHDEHER - FEERNS10F RS » 87%58632018/1 9 BIMKATEI I8 IS, FIESTE IR - HE2019F683086Y
B MERBEFT.2% o ZIREMR2019F 65308 W LK -
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27. Accounts and Other Payables

FEATBRTR

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Accounts and Other Payables
Investment Proceeds Payable
Accounts Payable

Amounts due to the UGC

Earmarked Grants Refundable
Retention Monies and Other Payables
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Receipts in Advance (note (ii))

Contract Liabilities (note (ii))

Deposits received for banquet and
consultancy services

Tuition and Other fees received

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Accounts and Other Payables
Investment Proceeds Payable
Accounts Payable

Funds from Subsidiaries

Amounts due to the UGC

Earmarked Grants Refundable
Retention Monies and Other Payables
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Receipts in Advance (note (ii))

Contract Liabilities (note (ii))

Tuition and Other fees received

(MUTBTat)

[EASBRR

RERII A

[EASBRAR

[ESHESIRR
[ERISE R EMEE

RELE R B AT BRR

DEEERAASTENEREE

FASGRIA(FE5L (i)

GHaE (MIsEi)

BUEBIR S
BIRPBIEE

BEENEMINEINER

(L F8525h)

[EATERR

RERIFRIA

[EASBRAR

SN ERENSIEIE]

[ENHEBIRR
[ERISE RS HEE

R R BB ARR

DUEERR A ST ENEREE

FRUERIR (IS (i)

GHaE (MIE)
BENEMINEINER

Consolidated 55

30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018
2019563308 20187818  2018F63308
256,169 286,624 286,624
444,700 430,503 430,503
144,484 140,454 140,454
104,572 111,857 111,857
949,925 969,438 969,438
- - 298,248
949,925 969,438 1,267,686
54,344 60,098 -
265,001 238,150 -
1,269,270 1,267,686 1,267,686
University K&
30 June 2019 1 July 2018 30 June 2018
2019868308 20187818 2018864308
256,169 286,624 286,624
350,486 350,620 350,620
956,881 895,830 895,830
144,484 140,454 140,454
102,650 89,372 89,372
1,810,670 1,762,900 1,762,900
- - 226,624
1,810,670 1,762,900 1,989,524
235,469 226,624 -
2,046,139 1,989,524 1,989,524
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27. Accounts and Other Payables (Cont'd)
FEASRRTR (48 )
Notes:
(i) The Consolidated Entity and University have initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method and adjusted the
opening balance at 1 July 2018. Comparative information has not been restated.
(i) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, these amounts were reclassified from Receipts in Advance to Contract Liabilities. Accounts

and Other Payables and Contract Liabilities are aggregated into a single line item “Accounts and Other Payables” on the face

of the statement of financial position (see note 1.3.2).

(@) Accounts and Other Payables
All Accounts and Other Payables are expected to be settled within one year. Funds from Subsidiaries amounting to $956.9 million
(2018: $895.8 million) mainly represent the surplus funds of these subsidiaries that are being managed centrally by the University

for generating investment return.

(b) Contract Liabilities
The Consolidated Entity and University receive tuition and other fees in advance from students and deposits from customers for
banquet and consultancy services. The tuition and other fees received is initially recognised as contract liability and is recognised
as income over the duration of the courses. Service income is recognised when the relevant service is rendered. All contract

liabilities are expected to be recognised as income within one year.

ihEE
() FERRABRHERARBHE LRSS B HIRSHERE 1557 WiR2018F 7 1BHEEHIDEER - LLBERGRED]
(i) ERINEBUHRMSEREI55RE 2SR ALGNREND ERSHRE - BNRFNSHEBREYHINRZRPERS
B—188 "ENIRTR. (RMI5E1.3.2)°

(a) MENTBRER
B IRRIEETHIIE —FEARIBE - MEBAINETIRIERI.569BB (20184 : 8.958FB ) ' ERBETBEHRBEDE
BUELREDRNNELAIRBES

by BHEE
FEBRABKBERESIZARFNZ A PIRFINMEBEFEMEARIZE - NEIN2EINEhERARIERASHEE
WHERIZEARFESR AL » IRFFINRIRILBEIRIZISIESR - a5t B SHEBISIE—ERER B -

Movements in contract liabilities

BHBE6VEE)
2019
Consolidated University
=) AE

Balance at 1 July 781 B458k 298,248 226,624
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising REFEDBBESE

revenue during the year that was included in the BRBBPIFERUA

contract liabilities at the beginning of the year ML EHEE (298,248) (226,624)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of REAIRRIUTER

receiving tuition and other fees and BENHMERRZE

deposits in advance during the year 2NN sHNaE 319,345 235,469

Balance at 30 June 68308#%585 319,345 235,469
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@ 28. Provision for Employee Benefits

BTwAMEE
28.1 Provision for Employee Benefits
BT EE
Consolidated #7& University A2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBT51) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Leave Accruals FESHERER 398,066 389,643 366,896 361,477
Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes S RETB AR IR &
(note 28.3) (MF5E28.3) 138,645 130,572 138,645 130,572
Contract Gratuities MM = 113,884 119,808 113,884 119,808
Salaries 357 B 94,738 99,104 41,380 43,542
Long Service Payment and Others RS R A 11,282 19,524 3,708 12,001
756,615 758,651 664,513 667,400
Payable: &S -
Within 1 Year —FRA 382,258 396,063 292,810 307,340
After 1 Year —Fi#& 374,357 362,588 371,703 360,060
756,615 758,651 664,513 667,400
28.2 Employee Benefits Assets
BTREMNEE
Consolidated and University
RERAE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAF8Tat) 2019 2018
Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes (note 28.3) REiEFIRAST2I(MIF28.3) 546 599
€D For provision of retirement benefits to its employees, the University operates and makes relevant contributions to six retirement schemes. Please refer to the
respective notes for the contribution and benefit details of the six schemes as follows:
RRHRABHIGETL  2NAESTRH I ERASTBIIFLBREMHR - BESRASTBINMHMRABRGTS - FLRSMELT
Defined benefit retirement schemes Notes
FEBARAGHE M5
. Mixed Service Pension Scheme (“MSP”) 28.3.1
RERBRIATEE 3.
e The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (“ASRG”) 28.3.2
ESBETARBWAE TRKEFTEI( "HEBTRKE, ) o
Defined contribution retirement schemes
FEHTRKETE
e The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Superannuation Fund — Part B (“SF (Part B)”) 28.4
EBETRERARE () EARE(ZH) ) ’
e The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Provident Fund (“ASPF”) 28.4
SBETARGWHPETNES( "WHEIAES ) ’
e Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) 28.4
BHIENEREBI( TRIEESTElL ) ’
Variable benefit retirement scheme
AEIBFIRIAEHE
e The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Superannuation Fund — Part A (“SF (Part A)”) 28.5
SBETRBERE (PR EREZ(PER)L) '
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Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
BTEMNEE (&)

28.3

28.3.1

Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes

RE @B IR S

The University makes contributions to the following two defined benefit retirement schemes, i.e., Mixed Service
Pension Scheme (“MSP”) and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme
(“ASRG").

ARGV TWMIBR TR BIEITHR - ZMIBFTEIABERZRATHEIRSBIE T AS2HEHIHNE TIRIK
EEEI( "THWEBTIRIAE, ) °

Consolidated and University

FERKRE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF87551) 2019 2018
Mixed Service Pension Scheme RBERFRIAEEE 138,645 130,572
Defined Benefit Liability as at 30 June ReB308HMREBFEE 138,645 130,572
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University BBEIKRE
Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme WENB TIRINE5 & 546 599
Defined Benefit Asset as at 30 June R6A30BNREBHEE 546 599

Mixed Service Pension Scheme
RERERINEEE

The MSP operates under Chapter 90 of the Law, Pensions (Special Provisions) (Hong Kong Polytechnic) Ordinance.
The Ordinance was enacted to accommodate the pensionable Civil Servants who were seconded to serve the
University and continued to work in the University after secondments with their pensionable status remained
undisturbed. The scheme benefits are financed entirely by the University and no assets have been set aside to meet

the scheme benefits.

Under the scheme, a retired employee is entitled to a monthly pension payment based on a multiple of his final salary

and years of service that he provided.
The scheme exposes the University to interest rate risk, inflation risk and longevity risk.

BERBEAEEIRESBIENEIE ri‘&%‘f(ﬁ%‘ﬁ%m)(E%EIMM)M o (RGBS )ELE - WWIRPISEET
ERIREAREEBORABE » REFKRETINAMIIFR  HRIEKREEBAZRE - StEIBN ZH AR
ZMMI&E?E“””qéuiﬁcﬁr?ﬁéﬂ °

HFEIEEIR  BERNMEEBRESERERENMN  BRANE TERNKRRHINLARZ TENFRE

ETEIS REREFNEXRR - BEERIRRIREKRSRER
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28. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
BTEMEE (48)
28.3.1 Mixed Service Pension Scheme (Cont'd)

PolyU Financial Report 2018/19

EERBERERTE (4F)

(@ The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position were as follows:

M BINREIETD 2 BEZRWT

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Present Value of Wholly
Unfunded Obligations

Defined Benefit Liability as at 30 June

(UF8751)

ZEARBERE

ReA30BHRTEIBFEE

Consolidated and University
FERAS

2019 2018

138,645 130,572

138,645 130,572

A portion of the above liability was expected to be settled after more than one year. However, it was not practicable to

segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as future pension payments would also relate

to future changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. Therefore, the entire amount was classified as a non-

current liability.

FREDBERBEIFRIESR - M BRFROVEASHRERKBEERRRNNEINER - UK BRAEZREAREK
128 BB EBRP DR - Eit - ILHBAZEHIANIEREBEIE -

(b) Movements in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations were as follows:

REBFSEIREOEZHWT -

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

As at 1 July
Remeasurements

Actuarial Loss arising from

Changes in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial Loss/(Gain) arising from
Changes in Financial Assumptions

Actuarial Loss/(Gain) arising from
Experience

Interest Cost
Benefits Paid
As at 30 June

(A FB7551)

rR7818
EH5TE
READSERERERZ
B8 &S
REMFHRREE 2
1 EEIE/(BRER)
KB
B8 BIE/(BER)

FISRRA
TR RN
R6A308

Consolidated and University
RERKE

2019 2018

130,572 152,158

7174 1,550

6,044 (6,918)

6,671 (3,467)
19,889 (8,835)

2,595 1,881
(14,411) (14,632)

138,645 130,572

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2019 was 6.0 years (2018: 6.2 years).
SEBNEER2019F 68308690 FIDFER6.0F(2018 : 6.24F) o
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28.3.1

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

BTEMNEE (&)

Mixed Service Pension Scheme (Cont'd)

RERBERMERTE (1)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income were as follows:

EEBWHERPEDOVBEZRWNT -

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Amounts recognised under
Teaching and Research

in the Income and Expenditure Statement:

Net Interest on
Net Defined Benefit Liability

Amounts recognised in
the Other Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial Loss/(Gain)

Total Defined Benefit Cost/(Income)

(LT 7Tst)

TEWSZERIRPEY
Y SE R
FTiEsR By 2R

SERNFEEZ
FHE

FEHMZEWSP
fesRevEsa:

BEER/(RER)

SRETBRBLA/ (WA )H8 R

EAMHHRE 2018/19 111

Consolidated and University

RERKE
2019 2018
2,595 1,881
19,889 (8,835)
22,484 (6,954)
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28.

28.3.1

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
BTRENEE (48)

Mixed Service Pension Scheme (Cont'd)
BEERIBERMNRERTE (4E)

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Sensitivity Analysis were as follows:
EXFERZEHBEDFUT :

Discount Rate HIRR
Future Pension Increases RERAEFHIR
Mortality P A

As at As at

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
R2019F68308 R2018F68308
1.4% p.a. 2.1% p.a.
FE1.4% 552.1%

2.5% p.a. 2.5% p.a.
F52.5% FF2.5%

Hong Kong Hong Kong

Life Tables 2017 Life Tables 2016

EBAOENHFR2017 EBAOEHFR2016

The below analysis shows the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions:

TIRFREBNEEHEABERREDOHRE 20

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF8TE1)
Change in
Assumption
BRe2E e
Discount Rate IR 0.25%
Future Pension Increases RIS EFHIE 0.25%
Mortality BT 1 Year
1%

Impact on Defined
Benefit Obligation

HREBNESENHE

Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption
BRE2IE N0 G

2019 2018 2019 2018

2,213) (2,036) 2,277 2,095
2,100 1944 (2,052) (1,899

(7157)  (7115) 7182 7195

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and

therefore it does not take into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

2

2

FRHREDITEERSEBERREHZ2HMB N  FHIt BB RER BRI EFTEER -
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28. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
BTEMERE (48)

28.3.2 The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme
BEBET RBHENE T RIREETE

The ASRG is administered by an independent trustee with its assets held separately from those of the University. The
ASRG is funded by contributions from the University in accordance with an independent actuary's recommendation
based on periodic actuarial valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuation of the ASRG was at 31 December
2016 and was prepared using the attained age method. The actuarial valuation indicated that the scheme assets were
sufficient to meet the scheme obligations.

Members of the ASRG are entitled to the scheme benefits upon normal retirement, early retirement, ill-health or death.
The benefits are calculated based on a multiple of their final salary and years of service in the scheme.

The scheme exposes the University to investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk.

WEE LERENEERRARNEBESHITE » MHBBIUZTAEE - B8 DRIRESBARIRBIEIIEEETE LS
BEBEMREZERZRF BN - ROMVEBIIBELABEREZR2016F128318 » WIEEETRERE - SEEGER
B STEINEE RO VESERA -

STEIR B YRERERA « RPENR  MERSHIFESBEF - Bt ERERE LEBORERFHHASBIARBFTENR

S o

BBl S REBRERERR « AIZKE R MR FMNERE -

(@) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position were as follows:

BRI EIEB2ERWT -

Consolidated and University

RERKE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF8Tst) 2019 2018
Fair Value of Scheme Assets StEIEENAREE 3,735 4,402
Present Value of Wholly or Partly Funded Obligations ~ =2k 20 BESEIRE (3,189) (3,803)
Defined Benefit Asset as at 30 June R6B30BNREBFEE 546 599

A portion of the above asset was expected to be recovered after more than one year. However, it was not practicable to
segregate this amount from the amounts recoverable in the next twelve months, as future contributions would also relate
to future services rendered and future changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. Therefore, the entire
amount was classified as a non-current asset. In addition, the expected employer contribution by the University to the
scheme for the financial year ending 30 June 2020 is nil.

EutEbnEEFABETFRUID o AW - BRARKOHRERIIBHORFEBERBDRONEE T - SREREHEE
BAEARKRI12EBOENBEEP D - Bt - WEERZEMAERBERE < 1IN ZRRBE2020F6 308 LLHFHFE
TetEINARREEHRRE -
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28.

28.3.2

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

STREMEE (F)

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont'd)

BBETI ABHE TRIREE ()

Movements in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations were as follows:

REBNSEIREOEZHWT -

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

As at 1 July
Remeasurements

Actuarial Loss/(Gain) arising from
Changes in Financial Assumptions

Actuarial Loss arising from
Experience

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Benefits Paid
As at 30 June

(UFB75t)

R7818

EEEE

REHBREEE
BEEE/(RE)

ROERZ
BEEE

SRS A
R SR
IERISEN]
R6A8308

Consolidated and University

RERKE

2019 2018
3,803 5,863
45 (119)
50 1
95 (118)

- 4

69 50
(778) (1,996)
3,189 3,803

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2019 was 2.9 years (2018: 3.1years).

REMBANSIR2019F6 83080 FI9FEEH2.95(2018 : 3.146) o
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28. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
BTREMEE(E)

28.3.2 The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont'd)
FERETIREHYPE TERREFE (4F)

(c) Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets were as follows:
SHEIEEND A BERET -

Consolidated and University

FERKRE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF8TE) 2019 2018
As at T July R7818 4,402 6,175
Contributions by Employer BEHIR - 3
Administrative Expenses ITRER (M) (M
Interest Income RSN 81 53
Return on Scheme Assets, F0BRFISUIAGY

excluding Interest Income StEIEEOR 31 168
Benefits Paid BRI (778) (1,996)
As at 30 June RrR68308 3,735 4,402

(d) Scheme Assets consist of the following:
STEIBERIBTIISIA -

Consolidated and University

RERAE
2019 2018
% %
Equities TR 39 37
Fixed Income Securities BEWNES 60 60
Cash R 1 3
Total FiREC] 100 100

As at 30 June 2019, 23% of fixed income securities and 100% of equities had quoted prices in active markets (2018: 35%

and 100% respectively). The remainder of the fixed income securities did not have quoted prices in active markets.

R2019% 68308 » 23%8IEEWAEHR100%REREEH BB T 2BENHT B LETEE2018 : DEIR35%R100%)
BEWNESNER NS RISEMGIHRBTEHENHBTEERS -
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28.

28.3.2

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

BTEMNEE (&)

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont'd)

BBEIABHEE TRREE ()

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income were as follows:

EEBEWERPIETOIBEZRWT ¢

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Amounts recognised under
Management & General and
Premises & Related Expenses in the
Income and Expenditure Statement:

Current Service Cost

Net Interest on Net Defined
Benefit Asset

Administrative Expenses

Amounts recognised in
the Other Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial Loss/(Gain)

Return on Scheme Assets,
excluding Interest Income

Total Defined Benefit Cost/(Income)

(A F855h)

FEIEZERE PHY
EER—RIAEH
K& REMAX
PiEsRey =28

SHRBAA
FEBNFEEL
RIS

ITHER

EHbZBEUZRP
tEsBoVEEE:
EE BB

FOBFF S UIABY
STRIEE DR

SEREBFBLA/ (AN )HBER

Consolidated and University

N

2019 2018
- 4
(12) 3)

1 1

(1 2
95 (118)
(31) (168)
64 (286)
53 (284)
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Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
BTEMNEE (&)

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont'd)
BERETIABWHEE TRINEE (4F)

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Sensitivity Analysis were as follows:
BABERREAGREDTWOT

As at As at

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

R2019568308 2018563308

. & 1.5% p.a. 2.0% p.a.
HIRER

Discount Rate 54E1.5% 552.0%

. = 3.50% p.a. 3.50% p.a.

Future Salary Increases RIGFHETHE S3.50% S3.50%

The below analysis shows the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions:

TIRREBHNEEHEABERRESOHRE 2047

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF87Tsh) HREBHSENHE
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
[EEa= ) {RRERIZ N0 {RRsR R

2019 2018 2019 2018

Discount Rate IR 0.25% (23) (28) 23 29
Future Salary Increases KERFEFIR 0.25% 23 29 (22) (28)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and

therefore it does not take into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

ERBBEDTRENS BB EBREDREEAEE © DI BR MNERHDE S HER -
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28.

28.4

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
SETREMEE (&)

Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes
REMRTRIRETE

The University operates two defined contribution retirement schemes, i.e., The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
Superannuation Fund — Part B and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Provident Fund (“ASPF”) under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. Both schemes are administered by independent trustees. The members
of the two schemes and the University are required to make contributions at fixed percentages of the members’ salaries to
the respective schemes. The University’s contributions to the two schemes vest in accordance with their respective vesting
scales as stipulated under the scheme rules. The University also guarantees the members of the ASPF an interest at a rate
of not less than 4% per annum to members’ fund balances. As at 30 June 2019, the income from the investments under the
ASPF was sufficient to produce interest at the rate of 4% per annum and so no liability was recognised at year-end. The
University’s contributions to these two defined contribution retirement schemes for the financial year ended 30 June 2019
were $26.1 million (2018: $27.5 million).

The University also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees under the jurisdiction of the Employment Ordinance and not covered by the University’s
other retirement schemes. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by two independent
trustees and comprises two member classes — Basic and Class A. The mandatory contributions from Basic and Class A
members and the University vest immediately while the University’s voluntary contributions for Class A members to the MPF
Scheme vest in accordance with the vesting scale as stipulated in the participation agreements of the MPF Scheme. The
University’s contributions to the MPF Scheme for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 were $224.6 million (2018: $210.8

million).

£ TEFERIASTBIEGIL T - ARIRBMIBSREHIURIASTE]  DRIRSBIEIASERRE(CRRESBIZIAZHYETNES
(TEWBEIEE ) MIBSTEIOBBIZEAEE - ARKETEIZMEIFRMENFEFLEES D L2 fHRENERI5TE]
A o B PREZ ARUEREIER » 1IDIKERMIRST B 2 (RAIPIR ENREREETE - ARUNQEHEE TABEMEREE - PEESADR
HNBEEER4%0FR - 8122019768308 » S TNBEOIRBINNBMIZFRZRANETE B FREDRBERE - R
201968308 ILEFHFE - AR M EMIBSTEHFUEAG B2 HRR2,610%875(2018 : 2,750887T) °

LRI ATEESTEIRGIT » SRR EBHIENEESTEI( " BEEETE, ) REREIEAISBEEINRBEMRASTERENET
RIMREE - BEEEEI R —FERTENEE » WEELZME BRBEALERIRPIRER - ThMIDBIZEAERE - STEINESR
18RI R PRIERINE + MRAKPIIELEI@HIILHR - BISBRETME - ARINSRPIRIERIMNEFLERILHR - MBFRILH
2B - AURIE BB Tt BIZ HiRENRERRSTE - R2019F6830BILHIMEFE - AREBEEBI2HNR2.246(E8 T
(2018 : 2.108{287T) °
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Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
SETREMEE (&)

Variable Benefit Retirement Scheme

AJEEF ARG E

The University also makes contributions to a variable benefit retirement scheme, i.e., The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
Superannuation Fund — Part A (“SF (Part A)”). The SF (Part A), which was restructured on 31 March 1995, becomes “self-
balancing” in that over time liabilities will automatically equal assets, much akin to a defined contribution retirement scheme.
The restructuring has limited the University’s liability to the sum of the Aggregate Guaranteed Amounts (i.e. “normal” leaving
service benefits as at 31 March 1995) and the Aggregate Minimum Amounts (i.e. the sum of each member’s Minimum
Amount, which is an amount equal to 5% x final annual salary x years of fund services following 31 March 1995). No
additional cash injection to the SF (Part A) by the University is required unless the market value of the fund assets is lower

than such liability, the occurrence of which is very unlikely.

The SF (Part A) is funded by contributions from the University and the members at fixed percentages of the members’ salaries.
The University’s contributions to the SF (Part A) for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 were $29.9 million (2018: $32.4
million). The latest independent actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2017 indicated that the fund assets were sufficient to
meet the aggregate vested liability and the regular contributions together with the fund assets were expected to be sufficient
to meet the sum of the Aggregate Guaranteed Amounts and the Aggregate Minimum Amounts throughout the three-year
period after 31 December 2017. As at 30 June 2019, the net assets of the SF (Part A) amounting to $1,321.9 million (2018:
$1,377.9 million) were sufficient to meet the Aggregate Guaranteed Amounts and the Aggregate Minimum Amounts of $62.9
million (2018: $77.0 million) and $236.5 million (2018: $243.8 million) respectively.

ARINRHIEBFRASTE] > AISBIETABERAE(PER)( HRINE(PL) L IWFEHRR - BERE(PRR1995F3F318FBIE
51 MRAEBEIREIRECSTE] 0 BEPHNEESBIEEREE + BREMFRIASTEIBL, - ZEFTIEARNEERRIBRESZR
(BIRRERT995F3 31 BIE BB < RFHEF) LR RIELIRA(BIS B 2 RIEHER2AD » FR5% x REFH x 1995438318
BISEAREZIRBER)ZIBN - IFERREBEZMBBEERIEE » SRIFKEARRERE(PLR)ININES » BIRILFIE
BB IMUT E ©

BAE (PR DBEAREMENBHENENFTFLEEESD LM - #22019F68308 IEHRFE » ARERIKE(PE)

ZHERR2,9908555(2018 : 3,240885T) - R2017F 12831 B RIOHNETIEEGEEL  RREEERUENAMER

8% BRNERERTEEEFTEREHMBUEN2017FE12331 BE3FRNIRIREEZELURREEERZIRA0 - 1)R2019546830
8 ERT(FREBEEFERI3.219RB(2018 : 13.779=8T) » B5E(T6,290885(2018 : 7,700&870) 80iRREETR R
2.36512871(2018 : 2.438[2)870) VIR RIKEIZE -
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29. Deferred Income

EIE YA
Consolidated #78&
(35}
Capital Grants
Earmarked Other Grants & from
Block Research  Earmarked AA&IBlock Government Donations
Grants Grants Grants  Allocations Agencies and Others Total
HE2es
JSLIEER
e Hih 1082~ #1018 BT
(In thousands of Eadi R BERE RNEIRE 118 eI
Hong Kong dollars) (UFB7Tst) EhE EE HEhE RS B R EAfth st
At1 July 2017 R201757818 - 202757 104568 276,349 123,596 31,873 739143
Subventions/Donations ~ EUIELELL
Received or Receivable BIRIBE 2,786,090 114,379 14,370 59,246 229,415 110,311 3,313,811
Recognised as Income ~ AFE#D
for the Year 2 BN (2,634,058) (124,633) (52,760) (7433) (218,762) (82,587) (3,120,233)
Transferred to EIRE
Deferred Capital Funds EXEBAES (152,032) - (119) (65,941) - (27,976)  (246,068)
At 30 June 2018 1R2018%F68308 - 192,503 66,059 262,221 134,249 31,621 686,653
Subventions/Donations ~ EUIEELN
Received or Receivable BER/ABE 2,820,433 201,842 46,002 3,060,658 258,499 131,283 6,518,717
Recognised as Income ~ AFEH#EE0
for the Year 2N (2,714,067) (123,653) (42,251) (1,100) (248,483) (109,476) (3,239,030)
Transferred to EIRE
Deferred Capital Funds EXEBAES (106,366) - - (118,267) - (4,340)  (228,973)
At 30 June 2019 R20195685308 - 270,692 69,810 3,203,512 144,265 49,088 3,737,367
To be Recognised
s
Balance at 30 June 2018  [R2018F63308
Within 1 Year —FR - 91,624 66,059 262,221 124,029 26,456 570,389
After 1 Year —F#& - 100,879 - - 10,220 5,165 116,264
- 192,503 66,059 262,221 134,249 31,621 686,653
Balance at 30 June 2019  5R2019F64308
Within 1 Year —FRN - 117,162 69,810 267,812 138,674 41,039 634,497
After 1 Year —Fi& - 153,530 - 2935700 5,591 8,049 3,102,870
- 270,692 69,810 3,203,512 144,265 49,088 3,737,367

€D The University received a one-off capital grant, the UGC Hostel Development Fund (HDF), for two hostel development projects at Ho Man Tin Slope of

HK$1,268.4 million and Kowloon Tong of HK$1,668.2 million, totalling HK$2,936.6 million in February 2019. The HDF and related investment return
from the investment on unspent balance of HDF are transferred to deferred income upon receipt or accrual. The amounts spent on capital expenditure
are initially recorded as Deferred Capital Funds and recognised as income over the useful lives of the student hostels when they are put into use, to the
extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the HDF received of HK$2,936.6 million and investment return of $26.5 million from the investment on unspent balance
of HDF were recognised as Deferred Income. The capital expenditure spent for the two student hostel projects transferred to Deferred Capital Funds
was HK$27.5 million.

ABEES-—AEHPE  BRESESERES(HDF) > AREZMEBSIES  —BEQUNBRIREERR12.684F8x 0 —BENEEBEE/16.682(E8
7 MBIEBE2019F2 BNIRMHAIEERR29.366E T - ESHRETRABKREANBSHRETHLNBEINEOR - EINEINESTIFERREN -
TEINEFALSRRIDHHBLEFES  RESEBSNIBFRUELLETSHBRBEREMEEDINEEREDRIANA -

HE2019F683082FE  BESERETINEE29.366EBITRKEREANBEHREATHRENNEDIR2, 650BBITLERHBLEIN « B RLEERE
EHMESEBESIRENERMZR2, 750887 ©
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EEWA (48)
University K&
(35}
Capital Grants
Earmarked Other Grants & from
Block Research  Earmarked AA&IBlock Government Donations
Grants Grants Grants  Allocations Agencies and Others Total
H2mes
TN
e Hih 02~ #18 BT
(In thousands of 2e2 R BERAE RNSIRE HHE B
Hong Kong dollars) (UF8Tst) EhE EhE HEhE SRR R R Efth a5t
At 1 July 2017 KR201787818 - 202,757 104,568 276,349 115,372 30,238 729,284
Subventions/Donations ~ BUIELELL
Received or Receivable BER/ABHS 2,786,090 114,379 14,370 59,246 211,595 110,159 3,295,839
Recognised as Income ~ AFE#E:D
for the Year BN (2,634,058) (124,633) (52,760) (7433) (204,510) (81,812) (3,105,206)
Transferred to EIRE
Deferred Capital Funds EREBAES (152,032) - (119) (65,941) - (27,976)  (246,068)
At 30 June 2018 1R2018%F68308 - 192,503 66,059 262,221 122,457 30,609 673,849
Subventions/Donations ~ SULELELYL
Received or Receivable BER/ABHS 2,820,433 201,842 46,002 3,060,658 242,168 131,449 6,502,552
Recognised as Income ~ AFEIED
for the Year Al AN (2,714,067) (123,653) 42,251) (1,100) (231,319) (108,884) (3,221,274)
Transferred to EIRE
Deferred Capital Funds EREBAES (106,366) - - (118,267) - (4,340)  (228,973)
At 30 June 2019 R20195F68308 - 270,692 69,810 3,203,512 133,306 48,834 3,726,154
To be Recognised
HFHESBTE
Balance at 30 June 2018  R2018F63308
Within 1 Year —fER - 91,624 66059 262,221 112,237 25444 557585
After 1 Year —F#& - 100,879 - - 10,220 5,165 116,264
- 192,503 66,059 262,221 122,457 30,609 673,849
Balance at 30 June 2019  5R2019F 68308
Within 1 Year —FRN - 117,162 69,810 267,812 127,715 40,785 623,284
After 1 Year —F#% - 153,530 - 2935700 5,591 8,049 3,102,870
- 270,692 69,810 3,203,512 133,306 48,834 3,726,154

€D The University received a one-off capital grant, the UGC Hostel Development Fund (HDF), for two hostel development projects at Ho Man Tin Slope of

HK$1,268.4 million and Kowloon Tong of HK$1,668.2 million, totalling HK$2,936.6 million in February 2019. The HDF and related investment return from
the investment on unspent balance of HDF are transferred to deferred income upon receipt or accrual. The amounts spent on capital expenditure are initially
recorded as Deferred Capital Funds and recognised as income over the useful lives of the student hostels when they are put into use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the HDF received of HK$2,936.6 million and investment return of $26.5 million from the investment on unspent balance
of HDF were recognised as Deferred Income. The capital expenditure spent for the two student hostel projects transferred to Deferred Capital Funds
was HK$27.5 million.

ARBEES-—REHPE  BRESBSERES(HDF) > AREZMEBTIES @ —@EIXBRIEELER12.684RBT - —BENEIEELER16.682E8
7 MBIEBE2019F2 BRI TERR29.366BT - BSHRETRAEBREANESERESEIRVERINEDR - EUEISHESTIFERIBLEIA -
TEINEFARSRRVLFAHBLEFES  RESEBSNYBRFRUELLBEHBRBEREMEENINEEREDAIA -

HE2019F68308.2FE  BSERESTWEIN29.366BITRABRE[NESERETHRENREDR2,6502BLEBRBLINN - EBNARLEESEE
EHMBESEESIRENERFAZR2, 750887
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Deferred Capital Funds

Consolidated and University

FEoRKRE
Construction Furniture,
in Equipment Library
Buildings Progress & Fittings Collections Total
(In thousands of Z4RL ~ 580 BEEE
Hong Kong dollars) (ATt 185 EETE REE s fmst
Balance at 1 July 2017 R2017%E7 B1B84%56% 3,192,710 72,507 449,884 20,212 3,735,313
Additions during the Year ~ AEEIRE 100,429 65,482 75,232 4,925 246,068
Transfers AR 81,510 (81,510) - - -
Release to Income and HERE
Expenditure Statement 7 BRIB (222,272) - (136,264) (7,491) (366,027)
Balance at 30 June 2018 R20185F 633081585 3,152,377 56,479 388,852 17,646 3,615,354
Additions during the Year ~ AFEEIZE 6,604 113,610 105,141 3,618 228,973
Transfers AR 62,064 (62,064) - - -
Release to Income and SRR
Expenditure Statement ISZ8R1E (197,471) - (148,519) (6,499) (352,489)
Balance at 30 June 2019 HR2019FE6 3308 #585 3,023,574 108,025 345,474 14,765 3,491,838

the depreciation charge for the related assets.

BIEEAERICETEERRID AR  REELARESEBREWZIRIBIUIRHZBRAEZNITERS -

€D Deferred Capital Funds are categorised into four by the nature of fixed assets. It will be released to the Income and Expenditure Statement to offset against
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Capital Management
BEXEE

The University is a government subvented education institution established under the laws of HKSAR, which objects are
to provide for studies, training and research in technology, science, commerce, arts and other subjects of learning. The
University is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements, except as stated in note 11.2(a) and its activities are
mainly funded by government grants and tuition fees, the spending of which is governed by the UGC Notes on Procedures
and other grant conditions. The University’s activities are also funded by donations and funds generated from self-financing
activities.

The various funds represent the unspent balance of such grants, income, donations and other specific purpose funds. These
funds are managed according to the relevant grant and funding conditions, where applicable, and the University’s investment
and financial management guidelines and procedures with the view of meeting the objects of the University.

None of the University’s subsidiaries is subject to any externally imposed capital requirements and their capital management
policies are governed by the University’s financial management guidelines and procedures with the view of safeguarding the
subsidiaries” ability to continue as a going concern.

ARB-ARBEBHIITIHEER  WHPUFERMMAINEN EREBEREHRESE 183 RARE - BE&8 - BE -
S A B S SRR o FRIMIEET1.2(2)PI839N » ARUEZIMENE R REMRS - HEHEEEBBHFHHERE
BWANED  MERSZESIHESEFEEREMMEEMBONERMES - 1 - BEBROBEEEETHMB RN
AREEEN R B IR

SHREZZBRPHB2MHHE - WA\ BEREMBEBEASHES - ZRERECHHDERETEHER) - RARER
VHERIESIRER RAKSEARNREMERELES -

AROWBLAILEZIMENEFREMRE - HEAEENREBFIROPBHEIRESIREFMER » BREREHBEAT
HBicEmen -

0

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
TRIERBERRANEE

The Consolidated Entity’s and University’s financial risks associated with financial instruments are mainly attributable to
financial assets which include cash and deposits with banks, held-to-maturity debt securities and trading securities managed
by external professional investment managers. The risks on investments are controlled in accordance with the University’s
Statement of Investment Policies and Guidelines (“SIPG”) formulated by the Investment Committee, which is responsible for the
governance on investment management for the University, and approved by the University Council. This is achieved through
diversified asset allocation, rules governing the selection and credit limit of investment counterparties with reference to their
credit rating and financial strength, and investment mandates for each investment manager governing the asset allocation,
investment limitations and performance measurement of the portfolio. On-going monitoring of investment strategies and
performance are carried out by the Investment Committee to ensure that the investment objectives and performance targets are
met. Asset allocation of the University investments is managed by the Investment Committee, taking into consideration the cash
flow requirements as well as the strategic development of the University.

FERRABZEMIECHRBEIZRBEEMEE  BREREERBITENR  FERHREHES  REEREEEEEN
EBEES HRETENEREOEEE e AEREEENREZESMHISIRASBRESH M ENRERB RISESI&HE
RREEEEE8OHEERN  SERIRESNEERNFHEDMETENREREEIRR - BREERREDENIRES
B MREERNESEEXRBIFLER - IREZESHBEERARERBREXBUBREEAHNREBRRERIE - BREE
EERABNRERBTRAREBERFLEERM
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
EREREERAANEE(E)

(a)

(b)

Credit Risk
S E R

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to

the Consolidated Entity and University.

The Consolidated Entity’s and University’s exposure to credit risk is mainly attributable to cash and deposits with banks,
accounts and other receivables, staff loans and held-to-maturity debt securities. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of these financial assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The majority of all Consolidated Entity’s and University’s cash and deposits are placed with local licensed banks. The credit
risk on cash and deposits placed with local licensed bank and held-to-maturity debt securities are limited because the
counterparties are mainly banks and companies with high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies
as specified in the SIPG. The Consolidated Entity and University do not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Consolidated Entity and University to credit risk.

The Consolidated Entity and University assessed that there is no significant loss allowance in accordance with HKFRS 9
as at 30 June 2019.

ERRRRERZETREBITECREHSEIGRCRRERASZEZHHBROVER

RERRABIZZIIRERIRITEN  BIIRR - ABEETR  REBE2IIPNEFESZEERRITE - IZHNES
CERBAGERBRABYHBRNRNEASEMEENERBE -

ABDIFCERABNIREREFRIIETRAMGFRIRT - REREESIBERXZZZ—HERRIRITREREERIBIG
FRENRNOAT  MUZFRERRBRITIGARBEENNEHES 2EERBRER - FoRRASWEER IS
WRERBRABRIEEERRIVER -

FRERRABR2019F68308REESBYHMSLER FIRIED L ES NGB

Foreign Currency Risk
MBS [EL Bz

Foreign currency risk arises where assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency different from the functional
currency of the Consolidated Entity and University, which is the Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”). For cash and deposits with
banks and held-to-maturity debt securities, there are investment guidelines governing the exposure denominated in foreign
currencies. As at 30 June 2019, cash and deposits with banks and held-to-maturity debt securities are not materially
exposed to currencies other than HKD, United States Dollar (“USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). As HKD is currently pegged
to the USD, the risk of movements in exchange rates between the two currencies is considered insignificant. Despite
the decrease in holding of RMB financial assets during 2018/19, the Consolidated Entity’s and the University’s total
income would have decreased/increased by 0.4% (2018: 0.4%) and 0.3% (2018: 0.3%) respectively if RMB had been
depreciated/appreciated against HKD by 10%, with all other variables being held constant. Therefore, the currency risk
of RMB exposure is limited.

HNERBREOREBIRGFCERASBNEEER( "B, )JZBERBEREBEMES - WRBERIRITER » kT
BEIRESHES  HoRRABMUEREESISHIIMNEIRE - R2019F64308 » RERIRITHENR - BIFER2HMES
#E o RIBT S EARAREBI RERRABIANIEAEMHMINESHEZIRE - BRBTHEETED  EMES
EEOVEREF K - BEMTENARBEMEEE2018/19FEFY » £EMBERMERAET » HEARBEBT TR
S EFT0%  FE R ARIBITA LD B2 8718100.4%(2018 : 0.4%)50.3%(2018 : 0.3%) » FIUAREEIZENE
BER
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
TREBEERANEE ()

(b)

(c)

Foreign Currency Risk (Cont'd)

SMNEERELRE (48 )

In respect of the trading securities that are mainly managed by professional investment managers, the majority of these
securities are denominated in HKD and USD, and the investment managers are allowed to use currency forward contracts
to manage the foreign currency risk exposure.

As at30June 2019, the percentage of financial assets denominated in currencies other than HKD and USD to total financial
assets (which also included cash and deposits with banks, investment proceeds receivable and investment proceeds
payable) of the Consolidated Entity and the University were 4.7% (2018: 3.8%) and 4.2% (2018: 2.6%) respectively.
Apart from the financial assets held by the Consolidated Entity and the University denominated in RMB of 2.6% (2018:
3.6%) and 2.1% (2018: 2.4%) respectively, the remaining 2.1% (2018: 0.2%) of financial assets denominated in foreign
currencies other than USD were represented by various currencies, with not more than 0.6% in any single currency.

Details of financial assets denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:

FERBEFERECIEMEENESEES » APBDLERBoRETSHE X MRELBENIREEBRESHERMBEN
INEE BB ©

[R2019563308 @ RS RABLIFBTRETHENEMNEEZCRENEE(BRBRRERRITER  REB[UIREBERER

BIETHRIE) 2 LLED BIR4.7%((2018 1 3.8%)F4.2%(2018 : 2.6%) ° [ 3 #7EE58:22.6%(2018 : 3. 6%));‘27@%22 1%(2018
P 2A4% A RESHENSRIEE © RIAF2.1%(2018 : 0.2%)MIFETSHENEREE Y RSBEH - 8 —EEAiI8)180.6% -
DOMNESHEN SRBESFIRWT ¢

Consolidated #5585 University <23
2019 2018 2019 2018
0/0 0/0 0/0 O/D
United States Dollars ES 66.1 64.9 67.3 66.6
Renminbi AR 2.6 3.6 2.1 2.4
Others Hte 2.1 0.2 2.1 0.2

Interest Rate Risk

AIESEN

The Consolidated Entity and University has exposure to interest rate risk through the impact of the rate changes on cash
and deposits with banks as well as interest bearing financial assets, including those managed by professional investment
managers as well as interest-bearing borrowings. The Consolidated Entity and University manages the exposure to
interest rate risk through diversification of investments into a variety of fixed and floating rate instruments with various
tenures. Interest rate swaps and other derivatives, where necessary, are used by professional investment managers as

hedging tools to manage the interest rate risk of their portfolios.

REBRABNAERBEHBIRERFITGR BTSN THNEE  BERSFEREKEERENTRNEERSTSHOEM
RAREEMESE - FEBRABEIOFEES R EEAIBRERSBABFHNE TR ZIEAERTELKREIR
FTEHNMNERR - MEBEBERECBIEEREZFZBMNEREHENREMTESRNEEFEPTANSIRIZEESHN
FIERRBE o
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
TRERBERRANEE ()

(c)

(d)

Interest Rate Risk (Cont'd)
FREE (48)

As at 30 June 2019, income arising from cash and deposits with banks as well as interest bearing financial assets
represented around 2.2% (2018: 1.8%) and 2.6% (2018: 1.9%) of the Consolidated Entity’s and the University’s total
income respectively. A general increase or decrease in interest rates will not have substantial impact on the Consolidated

Entity’s and the University’s operating results and fund balances.

As for interest-bearing borrowings, its exposure primarily relates to government loan on “no-gain-no-loss” interest rate as

detailed in note 26 of the Financial Statements.

fR2019%F 68308 » BIRERIRITHEN » Rt RIER ééﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬂ@ﬂﬁl?\ /%‘Jﬁ%?/\:.\‘é‘:}iZMst%uHﬂU\LZ 2%(2018 : 1.8%)
702.6%(2018 : 1.9%) - —R&FIFK EF el FRLIRG IR A ZEEBRREEHBEAW N SSNEANFE -

STEERRBEZHEBFEMRN "HEE, A - SFIBERMH 26 -

Liquidity Risk
IIILE}JQ%HB

The Consolidated Entity and University monitors current and expected liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that it

maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable securities to meet its payment obligations.

The maturity profile of loans and borrowings of the Consolidated Entity and the University is disclosed in note 26. As at
30 June 2019, the Consolidated Entity and the University have sufficient liquid assets to cover all current liabilities due

to external parties as follows:

FEBRASN—BNRATHEZRBEFRABHZABDEST K  BREFEDIREBHBARBITIEIR 2EBES - M
iﬁﬁﬁ’%ﬁﬂlﬁ °

FRERRARNERZESINHBIBRMIFE26 - R2019F68308 @ FERRARTERNOAREDEELEBNMBEY
INURBEEWT :

Consolidated #78 University X&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFBTst) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Cash and Deposits with Banks RERIRITER 5,952,875 3,636,419 5,787,584 3,439,095
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities —FREIHEY
with Maturity of Less than 1 Year HBEZREBREHES 335,755 178,694 335,755 178,694
Fixed Income Securities —FREIEGY
with Maturity of Less than 1 Year @ E W& 25 176,293 45,572 176,293 45,572
6,464,923 3,860,685 6,299,632 3,663,361
Less: Current Liabilities due to i EIN
External Parties REBIR 2,352,225 2,302,653 2,071,380 2,026,962

4,112,698 1,558,032 4,228,252 1,636,399
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
EREREERANEE ()

(e)

Price Risk
B8 [E b

Price risk is associated with changes in the value of the securities (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
foreign currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting
all instruments traded in the market. Its exposure to price risk arises primarily from equities and fixed income securities
which are classified as trading securities. Price risk is managed by professional investment managers, using various
risk management and assessment tools and through comprehensive monitoring systems. The Consolidated Entity and
University controls its exposure to such price risk by diversifying the portfolios, in terms of concentration limits on asset

types and geographical areas.

If the market prices of equities and fixed income securities classified as trading securities at year end had been 10%
higher or lower, with all other variables being held constant, the value of the Consolidated Entity’s net assets would have

increased or decreased by 310.4 million (2018: $315.8 million) for the year.

ERRERIIERFN BRERIINERRINESBESSHMSINNRR - HRERARERERIZE - EFITE » ARXEME
ROBEESTENRIEMELE - FERRASMAZINEREREBRRERELEEESNREREEWAES © B8

RiREaBXNRERIEESERAKREE HMEIARGESNESZRIAMEIE - (FSRBBOBUILERS - BIERH
EPREREEERRILE - MEZREMBHNEBSRE -

FEEMAESEH I AENERT  BRAREEESFNREREEWAEZSOHESREREANTRHI0%  FE5E2
PEERRFEBBEIZI0EH D HI3.10425855(2018 : 3.158887T) -

Details of the equities and fixed income securities classified as trading securities by markets at year end are as follows:

RERBRAHEEFSNREREEWNNEFZNHIBHRVFIFUT

Consolidated and University

FERAS
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBT51) 2019 2018
Equities and Fixed Income Securities KRREREEWAFES
Hong Kong BB 16,691 23,598
us ESE) 1,697,341 1,717,940
Europe &M 768,060 802,197
China PEY 117,087 -
Others Hith 505,046 614,590

3,104,225 3,158,325
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
THEBEERANEE (&)

(f)

Fair Values

NREE

(i) Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value
BARBESIENERHNTA

The following table presents the fair value of financial instruments measured at 30 June 2019 on a recurring basis,

categorised into the three levels of the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and

significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active

markets for identical financial instruments at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are

not available

Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using significant unobservable inputs

TREIGIEEEEER2019F6F30B8EEBUBMSENF 135 - AABEFEMFTE T ZZELINEBES
RP o MAABESFEZEMIE - AABENERBEFIRIEE DR TIEBEESEPERENALEZ
YERURBEN

F—RBEE  RIEME-RBARBBSTEEAREBE  BRSTEBMEREN I EAEERMIGZRIEHBR
B

ETRBEE  ERETRBABBSFEARAEE  BIRETEE—RIIEZHNBEBERANEAEANY
B=HARE - FTYBEREARUBDMIBEERERI B NS

FoRBE  MEANBRRRVBESTELNEE
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
EREBRERRASEE ()

(f) Fair Values (Cont'd)
NREE(E)

(i) Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value (Cont’d)
BARBESENESRTERGE)

Consolidated and University

RERKRE
2019

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFB7Tst) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—iR ETIR E=iR 85

Equities Securities e ARFE S 1,872,771 - - 1,872,771
Fixed Income Securities BEWNGE 5 - 1,226,480 - 1,226,480

Investment in Institutional Entities and ~ {tEEER

other Equity Securities HAbRAGES00IRE - - 6,553 6,553
1,872,771 1,226,480 6,553 3,105,804

Consolidated and University

RERAZ
2018
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBTat) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—iR B FE=ik st
Equities Securities RAFES 1,757,350 - - 1,757,350
Fixed Income Securities BEUANES - 1,400,975 - 1,400,975
1,757,350 1,400,975 - 3,158,325

During the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Consolidated Entity’s and University’s policy is to recognise significant transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

RAERLFERN E—REFHRIBISIEER  FPAZFBEBE=R -KREBRARBIZERERBEEBERIBANEE
FiR 2B E 2 BERER -

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements:

EMANBESTEMERZGEESEREE:

The fair value of fixed income securities in Level 2 is mainly determined by price for identical or similar assets in over the

counter market that are not active.
FERETERNESNRANBELIEERIBIINZIZHIZNZIEENBBEANEEBIREE
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
TREBREERANEE ()

(f) Fair Values (Cont'd)
NREE(E)

0]

(ii)

Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value (Cont’d)

RARBESTENEMIEGE)

Information about fair value measurements of instruments in Level 3:

FZMERTEZARNBESBENER

The fair value of Investment in Institutional Entities and other Equity Securities in level 3 is determined based on
the attributable net assets values. The significant unobservable input includes the attributable net asset value and
the fair value increases with the increase in the attributable net asset values.

AT

NEMBREMRAZSNRECE=RVANBERBESFEEERTE EXTNYRRIEBEBRIEERETF
C RABERRIGEEFEILIMIGI0 -

m 7

The movement during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:
E=iREM T EBEROVE I T

Consolidated and University

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFBTst) HeRAE

Balance at 1 July 2017 R2017FE7818 1,140
Net Unrealised Loss KREIRFEIE (16)
Proceeds from Sales EBNMSRE (1,124)
Balance at 30 June 2018 R2018F68308 -
Initial application of HKFRS 9 BB IREYERIFISR0RICIER 5,945
Balance at 1 July 2018 R2018F7818 5,945
Unrealised gain for the year FFEREIREF 608
Balance at 30 June 2019 1R2019563308 6,553

Fair Values of Financial Instruments Carried at Other Than Fair Value

FFEANBESISEYHBIAENAABE

All financial instruments were carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 30 June 2019
and 2018.

R2019%68308R%2018F68308 @ e LENKBERQAANBEIDEEA DA
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Involvement with Unconsolidated Structured Entities
REBARNGEERE S

The table below describes the types of structured entities that the Consolidated Entity and the University do not consolidate but

in which it holds an interest.

TRBLIFSERABRIGS NRENERRNBHEBER 2B -

Interest Held by the
Consolidated Entity and
the University

Type of Structured Entity Nature and Purpose meERAE

fEiBEEaR HERNABE FHEOERS

Investment funds To manage assets on behalf of third party investors Investments in units

NEES and generate fees for the investment manager. issued by the funds.
DRERE=SREECIEEERAREIEIEEEEIENE EBREEMBITONEN

These vehicles are financed through the issue of units
to investors.

I TEBRREERTNEMMEER

The table below sets out interest held by the Consolidated Entity and the University in unconsolidated structured entities. The
maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held.

TRITFSRRABHARGFS NRNBBEBREMMTENER - RANBEEARFEENEE 2RBAE -

Consolidated and University

GEeRAE
Carrying Amount Included
in Current Financial Asset
(In thousands of Number of Investee Funds Total Net Assets BEERESNEE
Hong Kong dollars)  (IXF&tst) BEEZHE mIEE 2 iEEE
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Equity Fund REEE 3 3 157,275,142 179,316,713 1,872,589 1,757,350

During the year, the Consolidated Entity and the University did not provide financial support to unconsolidated structured
entities and have no intention of providing financial or other support.

The Consolidated Entity and the University can redeem units in the above investment funds on a specified date.

REFER @ FERRABRBEORGENRNBEERRHSALN KB REENVEMZHHRS -
HEERASYREEBHEBELD LMIRERERHEEN -
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34. Related Party Transactions

FEALRS

Due to the nature of the University’s operations and the composition of the University Council (being drawn from the University,
private and public sector organisations), it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member
of the University Council may have an interest. All transactions relating to the purchase of goods and services and capital
projects involving companies in which members of the University Council, senior management, directors or shareholders of
subsidiaries may have an interest were conducted on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the Consolidated
Entity’s procurement procedures. Donations received from members of the University Council, senior management, directors
and shareholders of subsidiaries or from companies controlled or significantly influenced by them had been approved in

accordance with the University’s regulations.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Consolidated Entity entered

into the following significant related party transactions including commitments:

BRASBHNEESTNREARES ZMEHEG(AZ » WAL ERIBIEE)  ABHRISLENESNECHUKES
25  MERASREBNE  BIESE ISHI%ATZ BARRBBEAANBORADET ZRBESREZTIR  I9IRRIE
SEERRRGORNRBIEFET - HABRESNE  BIESE - WEBLATZ2EBRRRAZEEHNNEAZENLAIM
WELZ RS - ERESBIZETIASERIESHA -

BRUEFBREAMWESBRBONLIZRGERI  REREAREMBEEAT ZEARZRRENT !

(@) The University accepted annual contribution for a Research Centre from a company and its joint venture, in which the
Executive Director of the company is a member of the University Council. The annual contribution from the company and

its joint venture was $5 million (2018: $5 million) for the year ended 30 June 2019.

REES I - BBASEREGREETITESNLAIRASERIRMRPLONFEMRR - BIE2019F633081LFE
1H3A@&HE\%’ATESEEL%RESOO%%E(ZN8:500%7%75)"

(b)  The University accepted donation for a Research Centre from a company, in which the Director of the company is a
member of the University Council. The company has committed to donate $10 million to the University and as at 30 June

2019, the University has received $4 million from the company.

AREBES S —BHABRESNEREIESNATRMRP OB - ZRTRGEBIBIEAE,0008B T - HE20195F
64308 » KBRNZNTES S4008BTT °
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34. Related Party Transactions (Cont'd)
HEALRS ()

@ (o)

Key Management Personnel Remuneration

FTEEBABZF
Consolidated 54 University A &2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFBtsh) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Salaries, Allowances and e RBR
Other Benefits HAthigF| 68,242 65,744 68,240 65,743
Post-employment Benefits #0m K R IR TE A 8,430 8,110 8,430 8,110
76,672 73,854 76,670 73,853

Key management personnel include officers of the University and its senior management executives, the elected staff
members of the University at the Council, and the lay and other members of the Council who serve the University

without any remuneration.

TEEEAERBARTERBEBIEAE

-

BERELNASRESUBERNEREFN 2 BINRENEMRE -

35. Capital Commitments
BEEIEEKIE

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2019 not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

[R2019FF 6 308 KRR BIMEZA B BNERIBEFIEWLT ¢

Consolidated #78 University A&

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFBTsh) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Contracted for 25719 326,095 390,060 312,962 383,650
Authorised but not Contracted for DREMERETH 2,977,482 63,661 2,975,542 59,301

3,303,577 453,721 3,288,504 442 951

€ The Key Management Personnel Remuneration information cover 24 staff members (2018: 23) including all the senior management executives of the University
and the elected staff members of the Council, the majority of which has also been included in the staff count of note 8.3.

TRERABZHFHERIRE 24K E (2018 2301) BEABHPITEEBALRBERELNONEFHWENER  MABHALITBERMIZES.IN2HRZ

N
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Operating Lease Commitments
Z«(L.jfﬁ 7?}}%

As at 30 June 2019, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
were payable as follows:

R2019F 68308 » BRMERNYRBMIEEHE ZRRFERENRUT ¢

Consolidated #75 University A £3
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF387551) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Within 1 Year —FA 18,526 18,669 17,429 17,392
After 1 Year but within 5 Years —FREAFA 7,978 15,892 7,978 15,013
26,504 34,561 25,407 32,405

Comparative Figures
LER B F
As a result of adoption of new HKFRSs and CAGs, certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current year’s

presentation.

BREMANE B HRSERRMAD BB ETHRMFSEI  UFESEFFEN2WO I °

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

EEHEET R A ER

The Consolidated Entity’s and University’s fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, after taking into account their estimated residual value. The Consolidated Entity and University reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on management’s experience with
similar assets and, where applicable, taking into account anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement. The depreciation

charge for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Notes 28 and 32 contain information on the assumptions and risk factors relating to defined benefit retirement obligations and

financial instruments.

FERRABNETEENITEBRAGSIYEATHINFEHREBEMEREEE - FORRASSETERNEENGST
UEAFRRFHGEERECTURSFENNERS - YEAREREMBEESRECSIEBHRIZAUEENER  1SB
B EEBEMFASTORITRER - WRIHNIGESHEERNEE » RAHMBOINERAZSRMIFLRHE -

MisE28 R3I2BEEHATBIENRTERENTENBRERBEZEZER -
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Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for the
Year Ended 30 June 2019

HE 2019 & 6 A 30 HIEFEEFHARERGERERBER BRI RERAIEEENTE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2019 and which have not been adopted in these financial

statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Consolidated Entity and University.
BEXAYBFWERBME - SBSSTERBEM S — LB HERNBSET » FILHERKERE » REZ22019F6830BLLFEDRE
B BIDREMRESHFRERDP - NIRRT LIRS IR R ASIBRN ST ERNEST RANIGER -

Effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after

Rt BEAE/ 2 BBV FERER

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BEBYHRSEAFI65E—HE 20191818
HK(FRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
EB(ERMHRSEEERER)23 0 MERHBHAEENM 20191818
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
BB HIRSHER2015-201 7BV F EGE 2019F1818
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2019
EBGTERIE285R.2125] » MELAIREGERINRMERS 2019F1818
Amendments to HKAS 9, Employee Benefits 1 January 2019
SR ESTERIFEIR 2135 BT A 20191818

The Consolidated Entity and University is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Consolidated Entity and
University has identified some aspects of HKFRS 16 which may impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of this standard may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Consolidated Entity and University, and further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Consolidated Entity’s and University’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020. The
Consolidated Entity and University may also change its accounting policy elections, including the transition options, until the

standards are initially applied in the financial statements.

RORRARBIEANEZFES]  MNBERREEENICEAIRELNRE - E2SFSHRRABEHPISBY B RSEL
F16ENETHEIRELEFRESUHREISUTE - BRERRREIE—FTHBR T G - BEERESBUBIRSEAE16
2L ARHTN  IEBRRINERARELECERTEIREMAE  BRESTMZIGLREFSERAZIRGY
BSERMEL  MRBEMAZSERRFCERASH E2020F6 3308 L FEMHFRRAIESHIAMRE - HFSER
RENEHBEHSSIRERE - BIEERER  BEEVIEAZSEIRYBRS -
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Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for
the Year Ended 30 June 2019 (Cont'd)
#ZE 2019 % 6 B 30 HEFESHHABE MM EREMNET  FNEREAREEIREEENTE (E)

HKFRS 16, Leases
BB BRSHERIE 165 -HE

As disclosed in note 1.8, currently the Consolidated Entity and University classifies leases into finance leases and operating
leases and accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Consolidated Entity

and University enter into some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that the Consolidated Entity and University account for their rights
and obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, the Consolidated Entity and University will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, the Consolidated Entity
and University will account for all leases for more than 12 months in a similar way to current finance lease accounting. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the Income and Expenditure Statement and other comprehensive income over the period

of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Consolidated Entity and University plan
to elect to use the modified retrospective approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to the opening fund balance at 1 July 2019, if any, and will not restate the comparative

information.

WP EET.8PTIER - BRIGSERASZR[IEED HMERERICEHEE - WREEEDBMUAESINHHELZIHREITESIRIE - 76
BBAASMEREEANFIEAZRST 3 —LIBKO

SBUBMSERE o5kt HIRS ’%%iﬂ?tm?‘ﬂﬂ%@TB@@*U&%EBU%%EE@IﬁEK%% o SAM > —BIRMESBYHRSLER
F1657  #75 —%Uﬁﬁgh?%[ DREEEREEES - 8k AEREENET  RSRAASHMEERNEEEZ5HELIEY
BREMESRI1I2EBEEETSEE - ﬂéﬁ‘;\:ﬁrﬁﬁmﬂfﬁﬁrﬁ STEENEENAENILN - TR EZEEMBRIERPHE
AR -

EBHBIMSEAE16571R2019F1 5183 2RI TFEIRBLEM < {FEIER A BEERBIYESSTONS I ELKNS BRI
WELERISE 1657 » WHR2019F7 B1BAEANRSIHEED R ENESBRNARE - 106 » TEABHILEWER -
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